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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility
than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance
is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Sun Kong
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”). The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief,
the information contained in this report is accurate and complete
in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, there are
no other matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERBESE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company,
| am pleased to present the annual report together with the annual
audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2022 (the “Reporting Period”).

During the year, the economy in the Hong Kong and People’s
Republic of China (“Mainland China”) continues to deteriorate
under the prolonged effect of the COVID-19 pandemic outbreak,
which resulted in the lockdown in major cities in the Mainland
China and slowdown in economic activities in Hong Kong as a result
of the series of precautionary and quarantine control measures
implemented.

The crude oil price continues to increase throughout the year
because of market expectation on stagflation and economic
contraction caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. Increase in
procurement costs and operating costs as a result of various anti-
epidemic measures imposed by governments further demands on
Company working capital requirements.

The Group has recorded a revenue of approximately HK$230.9
million for the year ended 31 March 2022, representing a decrease
of approximately HK$9.2 million or 3.8% as compared to the
Group's revenue of approximately HK$240.1 million for the year
ended 31 March 2021. Loss attributable to the owners of the
Company was approximately HK$3.1 million for the year ended
31 March 2022, representing a decrease of approximately HK$4.4
million from a loss of approximately HK$7.5 million for the year
ended 31 March 2021.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERBESE

Going forward, we strive to maintain a steady business scale, to
improve operational efficiency and to stay extra alert and flexible
in adapting to new challenges. We will implement the Group’s
business strategies step by step in order to strengthen the Group’s
position as an established diesel oil provider in Hong Kong and
create long-term shareholder’s value.

I, on behalf of the Board, would like to offer my appreciation and
gratitude to our shareholders, business partners and customers for
their utmost support to the Group. We would also like to take this
opportunity to thank all management members and staff for their
hard work and dedication throughout the year.

Law Ming Yik
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERRRDH

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the sale of diesel oil and related
products in Hong Kong. The services of the Group include sourcing
and transportation of diesel oil and related products in Hong
Kong. Most of the Group’s customers are logistic companies and
construction companies which require diesel oil to operate their
logistic fleets. The Group had eight diesel tank wagons of various
capacity as at 31 March 2022.

During the year, the economy in the Hong Kong and People’s
Republic of China (“Mainland China”) continues to deteriorate
under the prolonged effect of the COVID-19 pandemic outbreak,
which resulted in the lockdown in major cities in the Mainland
China and slowdown in economic activities in Hong Kong as a result
of the series of precautionary and quarantine control measures
implemented.

In the meantime, crude oil prices have increased significantly during
the year largely driven by the stagflation expectation and economic
contraction caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. Brent crude oil
recently reached over USD 100 per barrel. Our purchase cost of
diesel oil are substantially raised and directly creates pressure on the
operating cash flow.

Shenzhen, Guangdong province, has tightened COVID-19
prevention and control measures to prevent imported cases
from spreading in the city by strictly implementing closed-loop
management of truck drivers at cross-border transfer stations.
Therefore, cross-border transportation was limited and the market
demand for diesel oil from the logistics sector was then reduced.
Fortunately, construction in Hong Kong has resumed and therefore
market demand for diesel oil for machineries on construction sites
was improved.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERmRAHN

The Group has recorded a revenue of approximately HK$230.9
million for the year ended 31 March 2022, representing a decrease
of approximately HK$9.2 million or 3.8%, as compared to the
Group's revenue of approximately HK$240.1 million for the year
ended 31 March 2021. The decrease was mainly due to decrease
in the sale of diesel oil as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak which
has caused severe disruption to manufacturing and logistic activities
between Hong Kong and the Mainland China.

The Group recorded a loss attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$3.1 million for the year ended 31
March 2022 representing a decrease of approximately HK$4.4
million as compared with the year ended 31 March 2021.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The uncertainty as to when the COVID-19 pandemic can be fully
contained had made the Group's operating environment extremely
challenging. The Group will continue to closely monitor the
development of the COVID-19 pandemic, pay close attention to its
cash flow management, integrate existing resources and actively
adjust business plans to ensure stability of its operations amid such
difficult times while being fully prepared for business recovery
immediately upon the COVID-19 pandemic being contained.

Furthermore, the Group will continue to carefully review the current
situation of the COVID-19 pandemic to reduce related risks in its
business operations and continue to adopt suitable precautionary
measures to ensure the safety of all the staff and working partners
as necessary.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERRRDH

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group's revenue decreased by approximately HK$9.2 million or
approximately 3.8% from approximately HK$240.1 million for the
year ended 31 March 2021 to approximately HK$230.9 million for
the year ended 31 March 2022.

Revenue from the sale of diesel oil and diesel exhaust fluid
accounted for approximately HK$230.4 million and HK$0.5
million respectively, representing approximately 99.8% and 0.2%
respectively, of the Group's total revenue for the year ended 31
March 2022. For the year ended 31 March 2021, the revenue
from the sale of diesel oil and diesel exhaust fluid accounted for
approximately HK$239.4 million and HK$0.5 million respectively,
representing approximately 99.7% and 0.2% respectively, of
the Group’s total revenue. Sale of diesel oil remained the largest
contributor to the Group’s revenue.

Sales quantity

The sales quantity of diesel oil decreased by approximately 42.6%
from 87.1 million litres for the year ended 31 March 2021 to 50.0
million litres for the year ended 31 March 2022, which showed less
diesel oil was required from the Group’s logistics customers during
the year ended 31 March 2022. The sales quantity of diesel exhaust
fluid increased by approximately 17.8% from 102.0 thousand litres
for the year ended 31 March 2021 to 120.2 thousand litres for the
year ended 31 March 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERmRAHN

Selling price

The average selling price of the Group's diesel oil increased by
approximately 67.6% from HK$2.75 per litre for the year ended 31
March 2021 to HK$4.61 per litre for the year ended 31 March 2022
whereas the average selling price of the Group’s diesel exhaust
fluid decreased by approximately 11.3% from HK$4.51 per litre for
the year ended 31 March 2021 to HK$4.00 per litre for the year
ended 31 March 2022. The increase of the average selling price of
the Group’s diesel oil was in line with the increasing trend in the
prevailing market prices.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales primarily consists of costs of diesel oil, diesel exhaust
fluid, direct labour costs and depreciation. The purchase cost for
diesel oil and diesel exhaust fluid depends on the domestic purchase
price offered by the Group's oil suppliers, with reference to the price
indices such as Europe Brent spot crude price.

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group's cost of sales was
approximately HK$224.0 million, representing a decrease of 5.9%
from HK$238.0 million for the year ended 31 March 2021. Such
decrease was in line with the overall drop in revenue.

The largest component of the cost of sales was diesel oil cost,
which amounted to approximately HK$230.4 million and HK$217.1
million, representing approximately 96.8% and 96.9% of the cost
of sales for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2022, respectively.
The average unit purchase cost of diesel oil increased by 63.8%
from approximately HK$2.65 per litre for the ended 31 March 2021
to approximately HK$4.34 per litre for the year ended 31 March
2022. The increase in average unit purchase cost of diesel oil was in
line with the market trend for the year ended 31 March 2022.

For the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2022, the diesel exhaust
fluid costs were approximately HK$0.3 million and HK$0.4 million
respectively, representing approximately 0.1% and 0.2% of the
cost of sales, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERRRDH

The direct labour costs comprise wages and benefits, including
wages, bonuses, retirement benefit costs and other allowances
and benefits payable to the diesel tank wagons drivers and logistics
assistants involved in the transportation of the products from the
oil depot to the customers. The direct labour costs amounted to
approximately HK$2.6 million and HK$2.5 million for the years
ended 31 March 2021 and 2022, respectively. The Group had eight
full-time drivers responsible for the logistics support for the Group’s
diesel tank wagons as at 31 March 2022.

Depreciation represented depreciation charges for the Group’s
equipments which consist mainly of diesel tank wagons. The
depreciation amounted to approximately HK$2.4 million and
HK$2.5 million for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2022,
respectively.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit represented the Group's revenue less cost of sales.
The Group recorded an increase in gross profit by approximately
HK$4.8 million or approximately 228.6% from approximately
HK$2.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2021 to approximately
HK$6.9 million for the year ended 31 March 2022. The Group’s
gross profit margin increased from 0.9% for the year ended 31
March 2021 to 3.0% for the year ended 31 March 2022 due to (i)
selling more diesel oil to higher margin customers of construction
thus lift our overall margin; and (i) reduce in repairing costs of diesel
tank wagons thus decrease the cost of sales.

Administrative and other operating expenses

Administrative and other operating expenses mainly include
administrative staff costs, professional service fees, rent and
rate and others. The Group’s administrative and other operating
expenses decreased by approximately HK$0.4 million or 4.3% from
approximately HK$9.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2021 to
approximately HK$9.0 million for the year ended 31 March 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERmRAHN

Income tax credit

All of the Group's profit are derived from Hong Kong and subject
to Hong Kong income tax. The Group did not incur income tax
for the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: an income tax credit of
approximately HK$0.7 million).

Loss for the year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s net loss decreased by
approximately HK$4.4 million from a loss of approximately HK$7.5
million for the year ended 31 March 2021 to a loss of approximately
HK$3.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2022 and the Group’s
net profit margin for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2022 are
negative 3.12% and a negative of 1.36% respectively.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Financial Resources and Liquidity

The Group finances its operations through cash generated from
operating activities and banking facilities. The Group recorded net
current assets of approximately HK$42.3 million as at 31 March
2022.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group's current assets amounted to
approximately HK$61.8 million and the Group's current liabilities
amounted to approximately HK$19.6 million. Current ratio was
approximately 3.2 as at 31 March 2022. Current ratio is calculated
by current assets over current liabilities at the end of the year.

As at 31 March 2022, The banking facilities available to the Group

was approximately HK$11.0 million and approximately HK$10.5
million of the banking facilities was utilised.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERRRDH

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio, being the ratio of bank loan to total equity, of the
Group as at 31 March 2022 was 20.1% (2021: 2.3%).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segmental information is presented for the Group as disclosed in
note 3 of the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group believes that our risk management practices are
important and uses its best effort to ensure it is sufficient to
mitigate the risks present in our operations and financial position as
efficiently and effectively as possible. The followings are the major
risks and uncertainties of the Group's business:

o The Group's earnings, cash flows and financial condition
may be adversely affected if the Group uses an incorrect
oil and gas price assumptions to evaluate projects and
commercial opportunities;

o Transportation service of diesel oil can be disrupted if there
is reliance on one single oil supplier in Hong Kong;

o Loss of customers due to price competitions and global
economic slowdown; and

o Disruptions to operation due to difficulty in retaining
employees.

For other risks and uncertainties that the Group is facing, please
refer to the section headed “Risk Factors” in the the prospectus of
the Company dated 21 December 2018 (the “Prospectus”).

An analysis of the Group's financial risk management (including
market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk) objectives and policies are
provided in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERmRAHN

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE RISK

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and is not exposed to any
foreign exchange risks throughout the year ended 31 March 2022.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2022, the capital structure of the Group
consisted of equity attributable to the owners of the Company of
approximately HK$52.0 million. The share capital of the Group only
comprises ordinary shares. The shares of the Company were listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange on 8 January 2019 (the “Listing
Date”). There has been no change in the capital structure of the
Group since then.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the year ended 31 March 2022. The Group
strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing
credit assessments and evaluations of the financial status of its
customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the
Group's liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of
the Group's assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet its
funding requirements from time to time.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES OR
JOINT VENTURES

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group did not have

any significant investments, material acquisitions nor disposals of
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERRRDH

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had no capital commitments in
respect of the acquisition of property and equipment that have not
been provided in the Group's consolidated financial statements.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the Reporting Period, the payment for capital expenditure
of the Group decreased by approximately HK$2.7 million or 87.1%
as compared with last year to approximately HK$0.4 million (2021:
approximately HK$3.1 million), which was mainly related to the
payment for the purchase of motor vehicle.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed under the section “Future Plans and Use
of Proceeds” in the prospectus of the Company dated 21
December 2018 (the “Prospectus”) and in the paragraph headed
“Comparison of implementation plans for business strategies with
actual implementation progress” below in this report, the Group
does not have any future plans for material investments or capital
assets as at the date of this report.

DIVIDENDS

The Board did not recommend a payment of any dividend for the
years ended 31 March 2021 and 2022.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

No significant events have taken place after the financial year
ended 31 March 2022 to the date of this report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERmRAHN

COMPARISON OF IMPLEMENTATION PLANS IR RIRMITEI I BB R ITEER LR

FOR BUSINESS STRATEGIES WITH ACTUAL
IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS

The following is a comparison of the Group’s implementation U NABRER IRK 8 RFAERIEB R
plans for its business strategies up to 31 March 2022 as set out —EIFFEAEBESREHETTEEESE
in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the 20223831 HAEBBRIETEEMLILER :

Prospectus with the Group's actual implementation progress:

Implementation plan up to

Business strategy 31 March 2022
EER EE202253H310 09 # 17518
Expansion and enhancement of — Replace two existing diesel tank
the Group's fleet of wagons
diesel tank wagons — A MEIRE NS HATIEE

BERMEAERSMITEEER

— Order two new diesel tank
wagons

— 5] R M AT S AT A B

— Order one new diesel tank
wagon
— ] B — T AE AT AR B
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Actual implementation

progress up to

31 March 2022
EE202253H31AMBRERITEE

— Two new diesel tank wagons have
been ordered to replace existing
diesel tank wagons and were
available for use in October 2019

— BT M AT B EAIRE
B mETIEEE > W 2702019108
‘AR

— Two new diesel tank wagons have
been ordered and were available for
use in April 2020

— BT Em@mRChT S W
2020F4B R AER

— One new diesel tank wagon has
been ordered in May 2020 and was
available for use in June 2021

— 10202058 BT B — w50l AT
&8> 2021546 5% AEA



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERBEARKID A

Business strategy

ET5RE

Upgrading the Group’s information
technology and systems

RAXREENERR KRR

Strengthening the Group’s manpower

e AEEBATF

Implementation plan up to
31 March 2022
EE202253H318 #1718

— Purchase a enterprise resource
planning system
—BEEXBERRE AR

— Recruit four drivers and two
logistics assistants to strengthen
the Group’s workforce required
for the Group’s fleet of diesel
tank wagons

— RN S R WY R B
s A E B hETE
BEBMRBIIAL

— Recruit two accounting staff to
support the Group on a wide
spectrum of accounting and
company secretarial matters

—BEMLETAE AXEH
BZNgst R ABMENSE
B2 ¥

— Recruit one administrative staff
to support the expansion of the

Group
—HE—RXITHRAE AEEH
BRI F

Actual implementation

progress up to

31 March 2022
BEE2022F3A31HNBRIETERE

— The Group discussed with a potential
vendor for the requirements
and specification of the new
office administrative information
technology system upgrade

—REEMFTRAZTHENREKR
MARNERRREEBETEHE

L

— Four drivers and two logistics
assistants were hired as at 31 March
2020

— 72202038310 BEEEAMNAFE
1 B2 T W) B I8

— One senior accountant has been
hired to provide financial and
secretarial support to our Group

—EBEA—R%ERE HEER
N BRI EBHIRH =T

— One administrative staff was hired in
May 2019
— BER2019F58BA—%1TTHAE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERmRAHN

Implementation plan up to

Business strategy 31 March 2022

R EFE20223H310 09 # 17518
Working Capital — To be used as working capital

EEEE and funding for other general

corporate purposes according
to the Group’s current business
plans

— REBEAEEERNERE)
RFEEE: kAEM—A
REARREHES
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Actual implementation

progress up to

31 March 2022
EX20229F3A31HNBRIETERE

— The Group remain focused on
maintaining and investing in the
Group's working capital in order to
fund the Group's expanding business
and enhance the Group’s operating
liquidity as well as to pursuit business
and revenue growth

—REFEBRNIERARENEE
ERSEES MEEREREXR
EBRWGERENRR A ETERTR
RN EBREES LIRS AE
ErEE R



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERRRDH

USE OF PROCEEDS

The shares of the Company were listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange on 8 January 2019 by way of share offer. The Directors
intend to apply the net proceeds (the “Net Proceeds”) from
the share offer in accordance with the proposed implementation
plan as set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds” in the Prospectus. The Net Proceeds, after deducting
underwriting commission and other listing expenses, amounted to
approximately HK$34.8 million. Details of the change in use of Net
Proceeds are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 3 July
2020 (the "UOP Announcement”) and 18 August 2020 (the
"Supplemental Announcement”). Set out below is the actual
use of the Net Proceeds up to 31 March 2022:

FRIGRIERR

RABIBI D AP ZEEB R 2019F1 8
SHTEMARFIGEMEM - EFRIZRIBRERE
TRRTERFIEMIBERAR —HMENER
BNt EEARMDEEMERIEFE (B
MIBSREE)) KNG aEEEeREM EHEY
B FIERIEREAN3LSEBE BT BFFR
BRIBFEAREBEHNAAB HEEA2020
F7AHZzZ R (TEERSMIBEBREAM)
K2020F8H18H 2 A (IR AMI) cBEE
20223831 B MIBFENE R A RN
X

Expected timeline

Revised allocation of for fully
Intended Thechange  the Net Proceeds utilising the
allocation of inuseof s setforth in the Unused total  unutilised amount
Net Proceeds as Net Proceeds as  UOP Announcement Actual use of Net Proceeds asat
set forth in the setforthin the ~ and the Supplemental Net Proceeds up up to 31 March 2022
Prospectus ~ UOP Announcement Announcement  to 31 March 2022 31 March 2022 (Note 1)
48R
EERRE EE BE  MoEpA
ARERME EMGRE  PRAGRRRAR 222%3R31H ANE3R[A ABELEN
FERERE  BROGRERE  MARGIERE FriEREREN Nt REREE
RERR  TERERREE MR ERER FrRESE (1)
HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million
BEET BEET EEET BEET =757
Purchase of diesel tank wagons (Vore 2) ~ BEEMERE (1752 150 - 150 124 26 By 31 March
2013
(Note 3)
203383185
3)
Expand manpower BRAN 125 (108) 17 17 - /A
il
Upgrade information technology systems ~~ FHRERRI R &4 50 - 50 - 50 By 31 March
2013
(Note 4)
203373155
(iz4)
Working capital EEEd 23 108 131 131 - /A
TEE
Total i 348 8 m 76
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERmRAHN

Notes:

20

The expected timeline for fully utilising the unutilised Net Proceeds is based
on the best estimation of the future market conditions made by the Group.
It may be subject to change based on the current and future development
of market conditions.

One new diesel tank wagon has been ordered in May 2020 and was

available for use in June 2021.

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the original expected timeline for the Net
Proceeds in the purchase diesel tank wagons to be fully utilised by 31
March 2021. However, the Group has not fully utilised the planned Net
Proceeds in accordance with the proceeds allocation as set out in the
Prospectus. As a result, there was a delay in fully utilising the Net Proceeds
assigned to purchase of diesel tank wagons. It is expected the unutilised
amount of approximately HK$2.6 million will be fully utilised by 31 March
2023 as set out in the above table. Save as disclosed above, the Directors
are not aware of any material change to the implementation plans in

relation to the Net Proceeds as stated in the Prospectus.

As disclosed in the Supplemental Announcement, the Group planned to
utilise approximately HK$5.0 million of the Net Proceeds for upgrading
the information technology systems of the Group and such proposal was
still in negotiation with the potential suppliers on the requirements and
specification of the new office administrative information technology
systems as at 31 March 2020. As such the original expected timeline as
set out in the Prospectus will be extended to 31 March 2021. Nonetheless,
the Company will continue to adopt a prudent approach for such purpose
and will continue to apply the Net Proceeds in accordance with the
proceeds allocation as set out in the Prospectus and it is expected to be
fully utilised by 31 March 2023 as set out in the above table. Save as
disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any material change to
the implementation plans in relation to the Net Proceeds as stated in the
Prospectus.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERRRDH

Save as discussed, the Group will apply the Net Proceeds in the
manners consistent with the proposed applications set out in
the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the
Prospectus. The implementation plans for business strategies and
use of Net Proceeds as stated in the Prospectus were based on the
best estimation and assumption of future market conditions made
by the Group at the time of preparing the Prospectus. The Group
implemented its business strategies and applied the Net Proceeds
based on the actual development of the Group’s business and
industry, as well as market conditions.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2022, the Group engaged a total of 23 employees
(31 March 2021: 27 employees) including the Directors. For
the year ended 31 March 2022, total staff costs amounted to
approximately HK$7.6 million (year ended 31 March 2021:
approximately HK$7.3 million). Remuneration (including
employees’ benefits) is maintained within the market level and
reviewed on a periodic basis. Employees’ salary and relevant
benefits are determined on the basis of performance, qualification,
experience, positions and the Group’s business performance.

ENVIRONMENT POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The principal activity of the Group is governed by Hong Kong
environmental laws and regulations including the Air Pollution
Control Ordinance (Chapter 311 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
the Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 358 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) in Hong Kong. These laws and regulations cover
a broad range of environmental matters, including air pollution,
noise and gas emissions, leakage of oil products or other hazardous
substances. The Group recognises the importance of environmental
protection and has implemented various environmental protection
measures in order to minimise the operation impact on the
environment and natural resources. Details of environment policies
and performance are set out in the section headed “Environment,
Social and Governance Report” on pages 43 to 98 of this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEXELGRS

The Board is committed to establish and ensure high standards of
corporate governance within the Group and therefore has adopted
sound corporate governance practices. The Company's corporate
governance practices are based on the Corporate Governance
"CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The Directors strongly

Code and Corporate Governance Report (the

believe that reasonable and sound corporate governance practices
are essential for the growth of the Group and for safeguarding and
enhancing shareholders’ interests.

The Directors consider that throughout the year ended 31 March
2022, the Company has complied with all the applicable code
provisions set out in the CG Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The key responsibilities of the Board include formulation of the
Group's overall strategies, the setting of management targets and
supervision of management performance. The management is
delegated with the authority and responsibility by the Board for
the management and administration of the Group. In addition,
the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the
board committees of the Company. Further details of the board
committees of the Company are set out below in this report.

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for promoting
the success of the Group by the direction and supervision of
the Group's business and affairs and the ultimate responsibility
for day to day management of the Group which is delegated
to the management. To this end, monthly financial and
operational information are provided to the Board for assessing
the performance of the Company and its subsidiaries. For
significant matters that are specifically delegated by the Board,
the management must report back to and obtain prior approval
from the Board before making decisions or entering into any
commitments on behalf of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EXELRHRS

The Board is responsible for, among others, performing the

corporate governance duties as set out in the code provision A.2.1
of the CG Code, which include:

(a)

to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

review and monitor the Group's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Directors and
employees; and

to review the Group's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

Board Composition

Up to the date of this report, the Board comprised five Directors, of

whom two are executive Directors and three are independent non-

executive Directors. Details of their composition by category are as

follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Law Ming Yik (Chairman)
Mr. Li Isaiah (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Fenn David

Mr. Wong Ka Chun Matthew

Mr. Ho Cheung Kong
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEXELGRS

All Directors have appropriate professional qualification or
substantive experience and industry knowledge. The Board
as a whole has achieved an appropriate balance of skills and
experience. The composition of the Board is in accordance with
the requirement of Rules 5.05 and 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules.
There are three independent non-executive Directors and one of
them has accounting professional qualification. More than one-
third of the members of the Board are independent non-executive
Directors, which brings a fairly strong independence element in its
composition.

The participation of independent non-executive Directors
in the Board brings a diverse range of expertise, skills and
independent judgment on issues relating to the Group’s strategies,
performance, conflicts of interests and management process to
ensure that the interests of all shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholder(s)"”) have been duly considered.

The details of Directors are set out in the section headed
"“Biographies of Board of Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 126 to 132 of this report. Other than that Mr. Law Ming Yik
is the cousin of Mr. Li Isaiah, there are no family or other material
relationships among members of the Board.

The Company is governed by the Board which has the responsibility
for leadership and monitoring of the Company. The Directors are
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Group by
directing and supervising the Group’s affairs.

The Board sets strategies and directions for the Group’s activities
with a view to developing its business and enhancing shareholders’
value. The Board has delegated the daily operation and day-to-
day management of the Group as well as the implementation of
the Board’s policies and strategies to the executive Directors and
management of the Group.

24 SUN KONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021/2022

CREFSHURERENSEXERAEELR
RITEMB -ZEFGEBAERERKCR FEE
HBEENFE -EEGHIRIBGEM EMmRAISE
5.05/&%5.05AKREAM - B =2 BILIEH
PTEFE BEA LEESHEEENR-ESR
ﬁﬁfﬁfﬁé:’*2—8@52%%?%&%%?%%’
HAABBIRT DB Lo

%jﬂlﬁﬂ/—%$7}ﬂ)\§$ﬁ§%%ﬁ%§¢$@

REAXRBE - AaBFRKEEBRENEEH
ZITEBIEEM B B8 )E’z?%_L#'J%ﬁ’LMET?
FABERRRE (IRR) WERSRERDSZE
o

EEZHBEHNAREE126E132EEFE
ReREBEEBEE —f RERELERDT
RBERENRBLUIN EFEHNEZBHER
B HEME KRR F

AABHEFEELR EFEAEMREEERE
%K’&ﬁ%&.‘%%?ﬁﬂ? ERERAERSE
B HEESHIHTERERMY

EEEHEIAEBETRE RS BEEE
BEXERRARREE EFEEEFTHT
BERAEREEBREAEBRNEEER
HEEE WHITESE 2 BIERRHER-



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEXELRRS

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

The Board has established three committees, including the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”), on 11 December 2018 and
delegated them with powers for overseeing particular aspects of
the Company's affair. Each of the committees of the Board has been
established with written terms of reference.

The Board will conduct at least four regular meetings a year. The
Directors can attend meetings in person or through other means
of electronic communication in accordance with the Company's
articles of association (the “Articles”). The chairman also meets
with the independent non-executive Directors at least once a year
without the presence of the other executive Director. Notices and
agendas of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at
least 14 days before convening the Board meeting. For all other
Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally
given. All other schedules and the relevant information of each
Board and committee meeting are generally made available to
Directors or committee members at least three days in advance. The
Board and each Director also have separate and independent access

to the management whenever necessary.

The attendance of each of the Directors at the Board meetings,
meetings of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee held during the Reporting Period is set out
below:

Board
Name of Director Meeting
EEid EE
Executive Directors HiTER
Mr. Law Ming Yik (Chairman) BLERE R 414
Mr. Li Isaiah FRIELE 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BiEHiTES
Mr. Fenn David BERLE 44
Mr. Wong Ka Chun Matthew BREEE 4/4
Mr. Ho Cheung Kong ARIEE 44
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The company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”)
attended all the scheduled Board meetings to report matters
arising from corporate governance, risk management, statutory
compliance, accounting and finance.

Practice and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to Directors in advance. At least 14 days’
notice should be given for a regular Board meeting. For other Board
and committee meetings, reasonable notices are generally given.

Minutes of all Board meetings recording sufficient details of matters
considered and decisions reached are duly kept by the Company
Secretary at the meetings and open for inspection by the Directors.

The Articles contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving transactions in which such Directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each
Board meeting or Audit Committee meeting to keep the Directors
apprised of the latest developments and financial position of the
Company and to enable them to make informed decisions.

Appointment and Re-election and Rotation of Directors

In compliance with the code provision in B.2.2 of the CG Code, all
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. Furthermore, pursuant to the Articles provide that
at each annual general meeting (the “AGM"), one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation and that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at the AGM at least once every three years.
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The Directors were appointed for a specific term and are subject
to re-election. Each of the executive Directors has entered into a
service contract with the Company. The service contract of each of
the executive Directors is for and initial of three years commencing
from the Listing Date, which and will continue thereafter until
terminated in accordance with the terms of the agreement. The
appointment letter of each of the independent non-executive
Directors is for a term of one year commencing from the Listing
Date, which shall be automatically renewed unless terminated
by either party giving at least one month’s notice in writing. The
aforesaid appointment letters are subject to termination provisions
therein and the retirement and re-election provisions in the Articles.
Details of the appointment letters are summarised in the Report of
the Board of Directors on page 103 of this report.

The AGM for the year 2021 was convened on 19 August 2021,
pursuant to which some of the Directors were re-elected in the
meeting. The re-election of Directors for the year 2022 will be
proceeded in the forthcoming AGM.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

To assist Directors’ continuing professional development, the
Company recommends each of the Directors to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant. Up to the date of this
report, all Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by attending training course or reading relevant
materials on the topics related to corporate governance and
regulations. Records of the training received by the respective
Directors are kept and updated by the Company Secretary of
the Company. The Company is of the view that all Directors had
complied with code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Fenn David, Mr. Wong Ka Chun Matthew and Mr. Ho Cheung
Kong were appointed as the independent non-executive Directors
with effect from 11 December 2018.
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The independent non-executive Directors are experienced
professionals with expertise in respective areas of accounting,
legal, finance, industry knowledge and expertise. With their
professional knowledge and experience, the independent non-
executive Directors serve an important function of advising the
senior management on strategy development and ensure that the
Board maintains high standards in financial and other mandatory
reporting as well as providing adequate checks and balances for
safeguarding the interests of the Shareholders and the Company
as a whole; and participate in the Company’s various committees
including Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors the written confirmation of his independence.
The Company considers the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent in accordance with Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Law Ming Yik was appointed as the chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman”) and was re-designated as an executive Director of the
Company on 24 November 2017. Mr. Li Isaiah was appointed as
the chief executive officer of the Company (the “Chief Executive
Officer”) and was re-designated as an executive Director of the
Company on 24 November 2017.

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code states that the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Law Ming
Yik is the Chairman who provides leadership to the Board and
is also responsible for the effective functioning of the Board in
accordance with good corporate governance practice and is
responsible for the overall corporate management of the business
development strategies of the Group. Mr. Li Isaiah is the Chief
Executive Officer who is responsible for the implementation of the
business strategies, policies and objectives set out by the Board and
is accountable to the Board for the overall operations of the Group.
These functions and responsibilities are current being shared by
the management team. The Board believes that this arrangement
enables the Company to make and implement decisions promptly,
and thus achieve the Company’s objectives efficiently and
effectively. The Board also believes that the Company already has a
strong corporate governance structure in place to ensure effective
oversight of management.
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BOARD COMMITTEE

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 11 December
2018 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules
5.28 and 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules and code provision
C.3.3 (currently referred as D.3.3) of the CG Code. The full
terms of reference setting out details of the authority, duties and
responsibilities of the Audit Committee is available on both the
GEM's website and the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Ho Cheung Kong, Mr. Wong Ka Chun
Matthew and Mr. Fenn David. Mr. Ho Cheung Kong is the chairman
of the Audit Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the
Board by providing an independent view on the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control and risk management system,
overseeing the balance, transparency and integrity of the
Company'’s financial statements and the application of financial
reporting principles, reviewing the relationship with the external
auditor and its independence assessment and the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of the Company’s
accounting staff, their training programs and budget.

The Audit Committee is satisfied with their review of the auditors’
remuneration, the independence of the auditors, Mazars CPA
Limited, and recommended the Board to re-appoint Mazars CPA
Limited as the Company’s auditors in the year ending 31 March
2023, which is subject to the approval of Shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM. The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2022.

According to the current terms of reference, meetings of the
Audit Committee shall be held not less than twice a year and the
external auditor may request a meeting if they consider that one is
necessary.
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Details of the number of Audit Committee meetings held and
Directors attendance are set out in the section headed “Number of
Meetings and Directors” Attendance” on page 25 in this report.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 11
December 2018 with written terms of reference in compliance
with Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules and code provision B.1.2
(currently referred as E.1.2) of the CG Code. The Remuneration
Committee consists of two independent non-executive Directors
(namely Mr. Fenn David and Mr. Ho Cheung Kong) and one
executive Director namely Mr. Law Ming Yik. Mr. Fenn David is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendation to the Board on the overall remuneration policy
and structure relating to all Directors and senior management of
the Group, review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals, and ensure none of the Directors determine their own
remuneration. The full terms of reference setting out details of
duties of the Remuneration Committee is available on both the
GEM'’s website and the Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee adopted the approach under code
provision B.1.2(c)(i) (currently referred as E.1.2(c)(i)) of the CG
Code to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management
of the Company. It is also responsible for approving the terms of
the services contracts of the executive Directors. The Company also
looks into individual Director’s competence, duties, responsibilities,
performance and the results of the Group in determining the exact
level of remuneration for each Director.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee,

meeting shall be held at least once a year and additional meetings
should be held if the committee shall so request.
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Details of the number of Remuneration Committee meeting
held and Directors attendance are set out in the section headed
“Number of Meetings and Directors’” Attendance” on page 25 in
this report.

Senior Management’s remuneration
Senior Management's remuneration payment of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2022 falls within the following bands:

HK$
BT

Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,000 to HK$2,000,000

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest
paid individuals are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Remuneration policy

The remuneration policy of the Group for the Directors and senior
management members was based on their experience, level of
responsibility and general market conditions. Any discretionary
bonus and other merit payments are linked to the performance
of the Group and the individual performance of the Directors and
senior management members.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 11
December 2018 with written terms of reference in compliance with
code provision A.5.2 (currently referred as B.3.1) of the CG Code.
The Nomination Committee consists of two independent non-
executive Directors (namely Mr. Wong Ka Chun Matthew and Mr.
Fenn David) and one executive Director (namely Mr. Law Ming Yik).
Mr. Law Ming Yik is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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The primary function of the Nomination Committee is to review the
policy concerning diversity of board members and the structure, size
and composition of the Board on regular basis and disclose such
policy, including any measurable objectives that the committee has
set for implementing the policy and progress on achieving those
objectives, pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules (including disclosure
in the Company's corporate governance report as appropriate);
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members;
assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;
and make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors. The full
terms of reference setting out details of the authority, duties and
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee is available on both
the GEM'’s website and the Company'’s website.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee,
the Nomination Committee should meet at least once a year
and additional meetings should be held if the committee shall so
request.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board and other factors listed in the policy for
the nomination of Directors, including (i) reputation for integrity;
(i) experience; (ii) availability; (iv) professional qualifications; and
(v) Board diversity as well as discussing matters regarding the
retirement and re-election of Directors. The Nomination Committee
would consider the need for nomination of new directors and
would make recommendations to the Shareholders for election as
directors at general meetings or to the Directors for appointment to
fill casual vacancies.

Details of the number of Nomination Committee meeting held and

Directors attendance are set out in the section headed “Number of
Meetings and Directors’” Attendance” on page 25 in this report.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ and auditor’s responsibilities for the consolidated
financial statements

All Directors understand and acknowledge their responsibility for
ensuring that the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
each financial year are prepared to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs, the financial results and cash flows of the Group
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance”). In preparing the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022, the Board
has adopted appropriate and consistent accounting policies and
made prudent, fair and reasonable judgments and estimates.
The Directors are responsible for maintaining proper accounting
records which reflect with reasonable accuracy the state of affairs,
operating results, cash flows and equity movement of the Group
at any time. The Directors confirm that the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group is in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.

The Directors also confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary
steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities. The statement of auditor
about their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s auditor, are set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 137 to 140 of this
report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the remuneration for the
audit and non-audit services provided by the Company’s auditor to
the Group was as follows:

ZEREMEN =
PREE2022F3831HIEFE > AR EZEED
MAEBREHES RIFESHRBOMEOT ¢

Services rendered HK$
RIRTS BT
Annual audit service for the year ended B E2022F3831HIEFER

31 March 2022 FEBRS 480,000
Services provided in connection with certain MR LY EREFRMENRT

agreed-upon procedures 140,000
Total ek 620,000

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

No corporate governance committee has been established and
the Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions as set out in the code provision A.2.1 of the CG code such
as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies, practices on
corporate governance, reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of the directors and senior
management, reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, etc.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) in accordance with the requirement as set out in
the CG Code, which is summarised as below:

The Board Diversity Policy of the Company specifies that in
designing the composition the Board, Board diversity shall be
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All Board members’ appointment
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity of the Board. Selection of candidates for the Board will be
based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, culture, ethnicity and educational background,
professional experience, knowledge and skills.

The Nomination Committee was also satisfied with the Board
diversity in terms of independence, skills, industry and professional
experiences, cultural and educational background as well as
length of services of the Board members. As for the gender and
age composition, the Nomination Committee considered that
enhancement in gender and age diversities should be beneficial to
the Group’s sustainable development. It agreed to take initiatives
to identify suitable candidate with priority on enhancing the gender
diversity by 31 December 2024.

The Nomination Committee will disclose the composition of the
Board in Corporate Governance Report every year and supervise
the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination
Committee will discuss any revisions that may be required, and
recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and
approval.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors. The Company has confirmed, having made specific
enquiry of the Directors, that all the Directors have complied with
the code of conduct throughout the year ended 31 March 2022
and up to the date of this report.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavors to maintain an on-going dialogue with the
Shareholders and in particular, through the annual general meeting
or other general meetings to communicate with the Shareholders
and encourage their participation.

The Company will ensure that there are separate resolutions for
separate issues proposed at the general meetings. All resolutions
put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely
manner after each shareholder meeting.

The Company will continue to maintain an open and effective
investor communication policy and to update investors on relevant
information on the Group’s business in a timely manner, subject to
relevant regulatory requirements.

Significant Changes in the Constitutional Documents

From the Listing Date to the date of this report, there has been
no significant changes in the constitutional documents of the
Company. The Articles are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

Annual General Meeting

The Company’s AGM will be held on Wednesday, 31 August 2022.
The notice of the AGM will be sent to the Shareholders at least 20
clear business days before the AGM.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Principles and Guidelines

The Board has adopted a dividend policy that, in recommending
or declaring dividends, the Company shall maintain adequate cash
reserves for meeting its working capital requirements and future
business growth.

The Board has discretion to declare and distribute dividends to the

Shareholders, subject to the Articles and all applicable laws and
regulations and the factors set out below.
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The Board shall also take into account the following factors of the
Group when considering the declaration and payment of dividends:

a. financial results;

b. cash flow situation;

c.  business conditions and strategies;

d. future operations and earnings;

e. capital requirements and expenditure plans;

f.  interests of Shareholders;

g. any restrictions on payment of dividends; and

h. any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
Depending on the financial conditions of the Group and the
conditions and factors as set out above, dividends may be proposed
and/or declared by the Board for a financial year or period as:

1. interim dividend;

2. final dividend;

3. special dividend; and

4. any distribution of net profits that the Board may deem
appropriate.

Any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to
Shareholders’ approval.

The Company may declare and pay dividends by way of cash or
scrip or by other means that the Board considers appropriate.
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Any dividend unclaimed shall be forfeited and shall revert to the

Company in accordance with the Articles.

REVIEW OF THE DIVIDEND POLICY
The Board shall review the dividend policy as appropriate from time

to time.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(a)

(b)

38

Convening of an extraordinary general meeting (the
“EGM") on requisition by Shareholders

Pursuant to Articles, any one or more Shareholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary, to require the EGM to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
Shareholders also have the right to propose a person for
election as a Director, the procedures are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
Shareholders” meetings

Shareholders are welcomed to put forward proposals relating
to the operations and management of the Group to be
discussed at Shareholders’ meetings. The proposals shall
be sent to the Company Secretary by a written requisition.
Shareholders who wish to put forward a proposal should
convene the EGM by following the procedures set out in
“Convening of the EGM on requisition by Shareholders”
above.
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() Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board to the
extent such information is publicly available to the Company
Secretary who is responsible for forwarding communications
relating to matters within the Board and communication
relating to ordinary business matters, such as suggestions,
inquiries and consumer complaints, to the Chief Executive
Officer, in writing to the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such
a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of
the enquiries.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency
is a key to enhancing investor relations. The Company is committed
to a policy of open and timely disclosure of corporate information
to its Shareholders and investment public. The Company updates
its Shareholders on its latest business developments and financial
performance through its annual, interim and quarterly reports.
The corporate website of the Company (www.skhl.com.hk) has
provided an effective communication platform to the public and the
Shareholders.

INSIDE INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company has established an inside information disclosure
policy. The Board is responsible for timely, accurate and
complete dissemination of inside information about the Group
to the market by making proper and timely disclosure of inside
information announcements. Our policy strictly requires our
Directors, management and employees to keep unpublished inside
information confidential and refrain from dealing in the Company’s
securities if they are in possession of such inside information.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Cheuk Wai, our Company Secretary, is responsible for
advising the Board on corporate governance matters and ensuring
that the Board policy and procedures, and the applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed. All Directors have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that the Board
procedures and all applicable laws are followed. Moreover, the
Company Secretary is responsible for facilitating communications
among Directors as well as with management.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company Secretary has
undertaken more than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for establishing and
maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems of the Group. The Group’s systems of risk
management and internal control include a defined management
structure with limits in authority, is designed to (i) help achieve
business objectives; (i) safeguard assets against unauthorised use
or disposition; (iii) ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publication; and (iv) ensure compliance with
relevant legislation and regulations. The systems are designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks
of failure in operational systems and achievement of the Group's
objectives.

An organisational structure with operating policies and procedures,
lines of responsibility and delegated authority has been established.
The division/department head of each core business segment is
accountable for the conduct and performance of such segment
within the agreed strategies, which are set by themselves and the
Board together, and reports directly to the Board.
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In the course of conducting the business of the Group, it is exposed
to various types of risks. During the year ended 31 March 2022, the
following principal risks of the Group were identified and classified
into strategic risks, operational risks, financial risks and compliance

risks.
Risk Areas Principal Risks
2 Bz E IR FERRE

Strategic Risks

THEAEEXKART HEBRSERER -
é%zizozzﬁﬁmamfﬁr“’zts%aﬁkBIJEz
BT EER D FEA KRR SERR-
B1 75 R Bez EZA%EHBM

Sensitivity to government policies; keeping up with new development and customers’

expectation; market competition risk; reputation risk

BRBS LR

Operational Risks

HEFBERIVSRE ; RIFHERREFHE

s MEHRF AR BERR

Insufficient labour supply; workplace injury; disruption of IT system

ZERRE FTAOtate ; TH  ERRR ARG

Financial Risks
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Compliance Risks

Liquidity risk; credit risk; interest rate risk; foreign exchange risk; inflation risk

s MR ELER

s SNEEELER 5 AR B

Risk related to occupation safety and health; risk of non-compliance with ordinances

related to employment; change of listing rules and relevant company regulations and

ordinances
R AR
NEVFRBI B A& B E L

The Board is ultimately responsible for the risk management of the
Group and it has delegated the executive management with the
responsibility to carry out the risk identification and monitoring
procedures. The objectives of the risk management are to enhance
the governance and corporate management processes as well as to
safeguard the Group against unacceptable levels of risks and losses.

The risk management process of the Group will involve, among
others, (i) an annual risk identification and analysis exercise which
involves assessment of the consequence and likelihood of risks and
the development of risk management plans for mitigating such
risks; and (i) an annual review of the implementation of the risk
management plans and fine tuning of the implementation plan
when necessary.
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During the Reporting Period to the date of this report, the Board,
through the Audit Committee, has conducted review of both
design and implementation effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
with a view to ensure that resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions are
adequate. In this respect, the Audit Committee will identify and
inform the Board of any material issues.

The Company will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review the Group’s internal control and risk
management system annually and further enhance the Group’s
internal control and risk management systems as appropriate.

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group. The
Directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit function and
are of the view that in light of the size, nature and complexity of the
business of the Group, it would be more cost effective to appoint
external independent professionals to perform internal audit
function for the Group in order to meet its needs. Nevertheless,
the Directors have the overall responsibility for risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing its effectiveness and will
continue to review at least annually the need for an internal audit
function.

GOING FORWARD

The Group will continue to review its corporate governance
standards on a timely basis and the Board endeavors to take the
necessary actions to ensure compliance with the required practices
and standards including the provisions of the CG Code.
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APPROACH

Sun Kong Holdings Limited (“Sun Kong"” or the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the business of the sales of diesel oil and related products in Hong
Kong. While integrating sustainability into its business strategy, the
Group has taken into account various factors, including business-
related challenges, work ethics, global trends, applicable laws and
regulations, in order to constantly promote business growth and
achieve long-term sustainability. The Group is constantly seeking
opportunities to grow its business that will be beneficial not only
to its shareholders, but also to its suppliers, customers and the
environment in which it operates.

The Group recognizes its responsibilities and accountability to
all its stakeholders, including customers, existing shareholders
and potential investors, employees, suppliers, non-governmental
organizations (NGOs) and local community. Understanding the
needs and expectations of the stakeholders is the key to the
Group's success. The Group is keen to ensure its stakeholders’
interests are of the utmost importance.

Within the Group, it often keeps a close eye on monitoring the risks
and exploring potential opportunities. For the sake of striking a
balance among business needs, social demands and environmental
impacts, it is committed to continuously monitoring the risks and
opportunities which exist in its daily operations, and at the same
time, embracing transparent corporate culture to ensure that
sustainability strategies of the Group are well communicated to its
employees, customers, the communities and other stakeholders.

To implement sustainability strategies which apply to all levels of
the Group, the top-down approach is adopted for the following
sustainability strategies:

To achieve environmental sustainability

To respect human rights and social culture
To engage with stakeholders

To support our employees

To sustain local communities
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group is pleased to present its Environmental, Social and
Governance ("ESG") Report. The content contained herein
focuses on providing an overview of the environmental, social and
governance performance of its major operations in Hong Kong
from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 (the “Reporting Year"). It
helps the Group to keep a close eye on its current performance as
well as the opportunities to improve its performance. The Reporting
Year coincides with its financial year.

Scope of the Report
The ESG report has been prepared in accordance with

(the
"ESG Reporting Guide"”) set out in Appendix 20 to the Rules

“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”

Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The ESG report
summarizes the Group’s ESG performance from the Reporting Year,
and covers its management policies, mechanisms, and measures
in place during the Reporting Year with respect to environmental
protection, emission reduction, safe workplace, personnel
training and drills, supply chain management and community
investment and engagement. Focuses are placed on certain aspects
closely relevant to its shareholders and stakeholders, and its full
commitment to sustainable development of the Group as a whole.

The Group has complied with the disclosure requirements of
the “comply or explain” provisions set out in the ESG Reporting
Guide and the Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG
strategy and reporting. The Board is responsible for evaluating
and determining the Group's ESG-related risks and ensuring that
appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal
control systems are in place.
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Reporting Principles
Materiality

The materiality and relevance of the ESG related issues are carefully
evaluated by the Group and the opinions of its stakeholders, such
that the identified material ESG issues are validated and reported
according to the stakeholder’s concern.

Quantification

The KPIs disclosed in this report are supported by quantitative data
and measurable standards. All applicable statistics, calculation
tools, methodologies, reference materials and sources of conversion
factor used are disclosed when presenting the emission data.

Consistency

To facilitate the comparison of ESG performance between years,
consistent reporting and calculation methods are adopted as far
as reasonable, any significant changes in methodologies are also
detailed in relevant sections.

Feedback

For details of the ESG performance of the Group, corporate
governance as well as financial performance, please visit the
Group's website at http://www.skhl.com.hk and its annual reports.
The Group is open to and values all advises and suggestions
received, in order to uphold the common interests of the Group and
all stakeholders, Stakeholders are welcome to send such advises
and suggestions to the Group’s email: info@skhl.com.hk.
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ABOUT THE COMPANY

The Business of the Group

The Group was listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange in 2019 (stock
code 8631). Its sales services include sourcing diesel oil through
oil trading companies, dispatching the fleet of diesel tank wagons
to collect diesel oil from oil depots designated by the suppliers,
and eventually delivering diesel oil to destinations designated by
the customers. With the delivery capacity and flexibility to devise
delivery schedule for the customers, the Group enjoys a competitive
edge in the industry.

Goal

To become the leading diesel oil provider focusing on the logistics
sector in Hong Kong.

Board of Directors (the “Board”)

As at the date of the ESG report, the Board of the Company consists
of:

Executive Directors

R A 2E

FEBBER

AEBMP2019FEMARZPAGEM L (R
5% :8631) -HIHERBEEEBRHEZ R
BIREBSOM KB R IT I B AT (e
IBERHERES N TRERFHEERER
FIEERN B - KEBBZEIRBER
RUSEINBERNBELERHTERS

B2

B

AR BB RITERNESRRRHEE -

Exg (lEF9))

RERBE - HAEREABRSE AARESR
gHE:

Independent Non-executive Directors

HITES
Mr. Law Ming Yik (Chairman)
BRESLE (ZE)
Mr. Li Isaiah (Chief Executive Officer)
TR E ((TEH )
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BOARD STATEMENT

The Group understands that the importance of efficient ESG
governance to corporate sustainability. Therefore, the Group has
developed an ESG management framework to ensure the effective
implementation of relevant ESG policies in its operations. The Board
is primarily responsible for supervising ESG governance matters of
the Group. For instance, determining the Group’s ESG approach,
managing ESG related risks, as well as supervising the management
and relevant departments in formulating relevant policies with
appropriate measures. The board also requires the management
of the group to report ESG-related matters and provide follow-up
developments in a timely manner, such as when ESG performance
indicators deviate significantly from pre-set targets, serious ESG
incidents, and changes in regulatory requirements.

The Board is responsible for:

e appointing key personnel in charge of the Group’s ESG
matters;

e approving ESG strategies, action plans and targets;
e approving the resources required to implement ESG-related
measures;

*  monitoring the progress and performance of ESG initiatives;
and

e reviewing and approving the annual ESG reports.
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Management is responsible for:

identifying and assessing ESG-related risks and opportunities
and report to the Board;

developing ESG strategies, action plans, targets and arranging
works accordingly;

ensuring appropriate and effective ESG risk management and
internal control systems are in place;

reporting to the Board on the progress and performance of
ESG work; and

reviewing and submitting annual ESG report to the Board for
approval.

Functional departments are responsible for:

coordinate and implement specific ESG policies and measures;

report to the management on ESG work regularly;

collecting information and data in relation to ESG performance
of the Group; and

preparing annual ESG reports and reporting to the
management.

The Board will continue to observe the ESG-related work and keep

up on the latest ESG disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Stock Exchange. The Board will also ensure close collaboration

between all departments to achieve the goal of operational

compliance, shoulder on social responsibility and develop clearer

ESG objectives and targets for the Group in the future for striving

better performances and better aligning with stakeholders’

expectations.
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PARTICIPATION OF STAKEHOLDERS

The Group actively strives to better understand and engages its
stakeholders to ensure continuous improvements. The Group

strongly believes that its stakeholders play a crucial role in sustaining

the success of its business in the challenging market.

Stakeholders

FinE

The Hong Kong Stock
Exchange

BBMRFR

Probable issues of concern

BENRIEER

Compliance with the Listing Rules, and
timely and accurate announcements

BT EHARA BRREEEL AR

&S A

AEEBRBRNONBERAT EFHELRAE
EEUERENSIFENRA -AEER
S RN ERAEREBETMRENT ST
NEES I EEREENAR-

Communication and responses

BiA bR FE

Meetings, training, roadshows, workshops,
programs, website updates and
announcements

GBI EOE TES BB IR E
/N

The Government

Compliance with laws and regulations,
prevention of tax evasion, and social
welfare

Interaction and visits, government
inspections, tax returns and other
information

B BT ERRER BRRIIREER®N BEIERRS BHEE - RMEREMER
Suppliers Payment schedule, stable demand Field investigation
HAER TR ER BRENES BiE %

Shareholders/Investors

BREIEE

Corporate governance system, business
strategies and performance, and
investment returns

TEEERARA EBRBRRFLUREK
=R

Organizing and participating in seminars,
interviews, shareholders’ meetings,
providing financial reports and/or
operation reports to investors, media and
analysts

BB Z2HEDKEE RIE R D TENSR
BUBRST & sk IRERAE IR
WER/NEERE

Media and Public

Corporate governance, environmental
protection, and human right

Publishing newsletters on the corporate
website

1RRE K AR TEEA BRRAE INNEIEEN R eSS R

Customers Product quality, delivery times, reasonable  Field investigation and after-sales services
prices, service value, labour protection
and work safety

ey EmE & XMEE - SIEER - IR EMER R EBRS

BE - BIRERIFZE

> 4
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Probable issues of concern

BENESEE

Stakeholders
FinE

Communication and responses

B B e R

Employees Rights and benefits, employee Discussion between employees and
compensation, training and executives, trainings, interviews with
development, work hours, and working employees, employee handbooks, internal
environment memos, employee suggestion boxes

(3= R KB ~ R E RN ~ BT EE B ~ HEERFER 1Hil  EEEBETHE
TR B R TARIR IR T EEFM FENISETE

RUEERRME

Community Community environment, employment Community activities, employee
and community development, and volunteering activities, community
social welfare welfare, subsidies and charitable

donations

& HEGEEF EERXRLEE - HEBATER

HERIRE - EBEATEERURLER
W

REERE

Industry Association Advocate fair competition through
compliance with laws and regulations,
standardizing product and services of
association members and coordinating
members

BT ERER RELWEHERE

n M AR K AR R B 2R BB AT 5

7

=

TEHE &

Sn

H

Meetings, seminars, workshops and direct
announcements

Gk Mg TIEHREREAMH
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

For the Reporting Year, the Group has undertaken its materiality
assessment exercise. This involved conducting surveys with
internal and external stakeholders including the management,
employees, customers, suppliers, industry associations, community
organizations and investors to identify the most significant
operating, environmental and social impacts towards the
Group's business. With reference to the reporting scope and the
consideration towards the corporate business characteristics, the
Group has identified related material topics and is detailed in the
following diagram:

EEMFE

RAERSEFE AEBCETEEMFMGT
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EREHERHRNBDEFRENE R ~&EH
CREMRBEANZE FRTHE :

ESG Materiality Assessment
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No. ESG Topics ESG Topics ESG Topics
e IRIR-HEREREE RIg - g REREE RIFE-HHEREREE
Environmental Issues Social Issues Operational Issues

IRIBME HEME EiERRE
1 Greenhouse gas emission/
global warming

BERBEHER2IKE(L
2 Exhaust air emission

&SR

3 Energy consumption

BERHFE
4 Water consumption
KIHFE

5 Hazardous waste/sewage

BEBERY),/ 75K

6 Non-hazardous waste/
sewage

mEBERY),I5K

7 Paper consumption

ARSRIHFE

8 Climate change

RIEEE

9 Compliance with
environmental laws and
regulations

BTRFARER
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As shown in the diagram above, the material ESG topics of the
Group covers issues in the 3 aspects, in which 5 most important
ESG issues are identified, namely compliance with environmental
laws and regulations of environmental issues; anti-COVID-19
epidemic of social issues; service quality, operational compliance
and anti-corruption of operational issues. The importance of these
issues highlights the Group’s principle in being responsible in both
the environmental and social aspect while also strictly abide by its
operational standards and maintaining the quality of its service.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to maintain
communication with various stakeholders and collect opinions
through different channels more extensively for making substantive
analysis. At the same time, the Group will also revise the reporting
principles of materiality, quantification, and consistency to
better align with the expectations of stakeholders and reporting
requirements regarding the content of the ESG Report and the
presentation of the information when necessary.

MEBFR~ REBNEARE - HEREA
EENEIESENEE EPSERAEEN
RE-HE@rhEAMEERETE  MRIEHEER
THETFRFZEEZR HLEHEBETNRE
COVID-19EFE - EEMEE M NRFER &
BEHRMRE T HILEMENER LB TR
EEERERMEFEASEENRE) R
METHESERERFRIFREER

BRERK AEEREBEIFNHERTE
BBEBARREEEZMEEERETEE
M- BILRE  REBTRESTARER
MEBER—BENRERA UELERS
FRAEFNERFTURABRRE HERER
BEABNENZ2|RBOBERE
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SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group strongly believes in the virtues of sustainable
development, and that its business development should not be
achieved at the expense of the environment. While pursuing
growth in sales of diesel oil in Hong Kong, the Group stays
committed to protecting the nature. The Group endeavors to
integrate components of environmental sustainability into its
business operations through various measures, so as to raise its
employees’ awareness, as well as better monitor its carbon emission
level and the relevant intensity.

During the Reporting Year, the Group did not find any material
non-compliance issue with relevant laws and regulations related to
the environment. The Group will continue to be alert to any non-
compliance behavior related to critical environmental issues.

A1 Emissions

The Group is committed to promoting environmental health
and human well-being. Environmental protection and emissions
reduction are always the top priority at the Group. The emissions
data has been measured for better understanding its environmental
impacts and taking meaningful actions in the future.

Air Emissions

Combustion of diesel oil from vehicles was the main culprit of
the Group’s emissions of air pollutants, including nitrogen oxides
("NOx"), sulphur oxides (“SOx") and particulate matters (“PM")
etc. Due to the limitation in data collection for the distance travelled
by the vehicles, the Group's air emission was estimated by the unit
of diesel oil consumed by the vehicles?. The composition of its air
emissions was as below:
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Nitrogen Sulphur Oxides
Oxides ("NOx") ("SOx")
=Rl malty

1,199.81 1.26
kg T7% kg T

Particulate
Matters ("PM")
2 R
86.83
kg T

1 The different intensity figures in this ESG Report were calculated using FRFE-HEREAREHNTAEEHELE
the monthly average number of vehicles (including private cars under BEHEW (BEAEEL TNARE K IFH
the Group and the private cars but not held by the Group used for daily AEEFEEANRBEEENTAKE) 8IRAF
operations) and monthly average number of employees, which were HREANHFE  Fil#iER202263831H 725
14.31 (FY2020/21: 16, using total number of cars) and 21.83 (FY2020/21: #14.3187 (2020/2 184 4F © 1680 > /S BAEH) &
26.5) respectively as at 31 March 2022. The total number of vehicles and 21.83A (202021844 : 26.50) c ARV B AEE
the relevant intensity figures of the Previous Financial Year have been REBNEE B8 F—MREENE@HEH K
adjusted to present a more comprehensive and accurate data. TERE EHBRIEL A

2 By estimating the travelling distance based on the units of fuel consumed 2 BB EAKETIEE Nhttps:/ecib.emsd.gov.hk/

by the vehicles, using the “Transport — Energy Utilization Index"” issued by index.php/hk/energy-utilisation-index-hk/transport-
Electrical and Mechanical Services Department at https://ecib.emsd.gov. sector-hkE B9 E &S FUH FETS IR At B R E
hk/index.php/hk/energy-utilisation-index-hk/transport-sector-hk. S E FEIAH AV 1T B EE B ©
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During the Reporting Year, the total air emissions amounted to
approximately 1,288 kg (FY2020/21: 1,604 kg), with a decrease
of approximately 20% compared with the financial year ended
31 March 2021 (the “Previous Financial Year” or “FY2020/21").
Correspondingly, the air emission intensity amounted to
approximately 90 kg per vehicle (FY2020/21: 100 kg per vehicle),
with monthly average number of 14.31 vehicles® (including light
vehicles, oil tanks, tractors and private cars) operating under
the Group during the Reporting Year, showing a decrease of
approximately 10% compared with last year. The decrease in
air emissions was mainly due to the serious impact to the cross-
border transportation service in Hong Kong and reducing market
demand for diesel oil from the logistics sector under the severe
impact of the Coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19") infection
starting from late December 2021 (“fifth wave” of COVID-19
epidemic), with revenue of the Group are principally generated
from the sale of diesel oil to the customer of logistic sectors in
Hong Kong. On top of that, various anti-epidemic measures were
imposed and implemented by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region, which also led to the suspension
of construction projects for preventing infection and spread of
COVID-19 during the abovementioned period. The market demand
for diesel oil for machineries on construction sites was also affected
due to the fifth wave of COVID-19 epidemic. Notwithstanding,
the Group has implemented various measures in limiting its air
emission, such as planning ahead the route for raising efficiency in
vehicle usage and arrange delivery of diesel oil to clients in the same
district in the same batch of delivery.

While the Group's air emissions largely depend on market
demands, the Group will continue to record and evaluate its air
emission data while giving annual disclosure of the relevant data.
By this means, the Group keeps a close eye on the effectiveness of
the Group’s measures and continue to invest in emission reduction
in the future.
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To this end, the Group has set preliminary directional targets in
terms of maintaining or reducing air emissions. The Group will
review the progress and explore more opportunities for better
environmental protection performance.

3 There were 2 private cars and 1 oil tank disposed during the Reporting
Year, therefore monthly average number of vehicles is used as intensity
(FY2020/21: total number of vehicles).

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG"”) Emissions

Greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions are the main contributors to
global warming. In an effort to reduce GHG emissions and carbon
footprint, the Group embraces green practices in its day-to-day
business operations, contributing to environmental conservation,
natural resource preservation and waste reduction.

During the Reporting Year, the Group recorded approximately
213 tonnes of GHG emissions (FY2020/21: 338 tonnes), with a
decrease of 37% compared with the Previous Financial Year. The
corresponding GHG emission intensity amounted to approximately
15 tonnes per vehicle (FY2020/21: 21 tonnes per vehicle), with
average number of 14.31" vehicles (including light vehicles, oil
tanks, tractors and private cars) operating under the Group during
the Reporting Year, showing a reduction of approximately 29%
compared with the Previous Financial Year. With the sales of diesel
oil being the principal business, the Group’s GHG emissions were
mainly attributed to the direct emissions from the combustion of
diesel oil used by vehicles in delivering products to customers with
a total of 91% of the total GHG emissions, and direct emissions
due to petrol used by private cars on daily operation accounted
for approximately 7% of the total GHG emissions. Total direct
emissions amounted to approximately 98% of the total GHG
emissions during the Reporting Year. Other emission sources
included indirect emissions due to electricity consumption, paper
waste disposed at landfills, electricity used for processing fresh
water and sewage by the corresponding government departments,
accounting for the remaining 2% of the total GHG emissions. The
composition is illustrated as follows:
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58

Total Emissions
e s

213 .

Tonnes Mi#

The different intensity figures in this ESG Report were calculated using
the monthly average number of vehicles (including private cars under
the Group and the private cars but not held by the Group used for daily
operations) and monthly average number of employees, which were
14.31 (FY2020/21: 16, using total number of cars) and 21.83 (FY2020/21:
26.5) respectively as at 31 March 2022. The total number of vehicles and
the relevant intensity figures of the Previous Financial Year have been
adjusted to present a more comprehensive and accurate data.
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Scope 1 - Direct emissions
(From Mobile Combustion Sources)

#HE— —BEHFR REBRBRER)

Scope 2 - Indirect emissions from Electricity Consumption

HE — — BB

Scope 3 - Other indirect emissions
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AEERFREFERFMREZE REEHFNEA
AE IS TR - A FHIER SR FERRRBURLE
BRHEE UEFEERR B RIFENIBER KR
REVE BE&RVER LU D AR BB -

The Group's detailed greenhouse gas emissions breakdown in the
Reporting Year can be found in the table below. These data will
be used as a benchmark for comparison with future data, so that
informed decisions and meaningful actions can be taken by the

Group to reduce emissions in different categories in the future.

GHG Emission Sources

= RAEHRUR

Scope 1 - Direct emission from diesel and petrol

H£E——RBRHHE

GHG produced
in 2020/21

(tonnes)

20204 /214
EXHNAERE
()

GHG produced
in 2021/22

(TED)

20215F /224
EENBEERE
()

% change
(approximately)

GEIL
(#E#)

combustion (vehicles and private cars) FEMELENBEZHIN
(B RMKE) 333.50 207.97 138%
Scope 2 - Indirect emissions from electricity #E " —FBIHEN
consumption? [SEE2E 3 3.73¢ 418 112%
Scope 3 — Other indirect emission sources #E = - HEMEEEER
TR
~ Paper waste disposal at landfills - BIRIEIRIEH
SRR IR 0.42 0.60 143%
— Electricity used for processing fresh water® - RKEEIEPTARE 0.01 0.02
— Electricity used for processing sewage’ - 5KEIEFTRES 0.01 0.01
— Business air travel by employees -BEEBABMEHE - -
Grand Total st 337.67 212.78 137%
GHG Emission Intensity per vehicle and SWMBERKRMLKEN
private car BERBHEREE 21.10 14.87 130%
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GHG emissions from scope 1 has decreased by 38% compared
with the Previous Financial Year. As aforementioned, the demand of
diesel oil from the logistics sector and machineries on construction
sites were seriously affected due to the impact of the fifth wave of
COVID-19 starting from late December 2021, the principal business
of the Group for delivering diesel oil products to customers were
also seriously affected.

The emissions from both scope 2 and scope 3 increased compared
with last year, showing an increase of approximately 12% and 43%
respectively, which was mainly due to the slowdown of COVID-19
epidemic during the period of July 2021 to early December 2021
in Hong Kong, the employees of the Group resumed to normal
working hours at the Headquarter leading the increased usage of
paper and electricity.

As aforementioned in the “Air Emissions” section, while the
Group’s direct GHG emissions from fuel combustion by mobile
sources largely depends on market demands, the Group will
continue to record and evaluate its air emission data while giving
annual disclosure of the relevant data. Besides, only certified energy
efficient products will be purchased as office equipment. Employees
are also highly encouraged to adopt natural lighting whenever
possible.

On the other hand, the Group upholds the 3Rs principle, namely
reduce, reuse and recycle. We promote reduction in consumption
of electricity, water resources, paper and stationery. Employees
are reminded to adopt double-side printing, while single-side-
printed paper is collected for reuse. A whiteboard is also adopted
in the meeting room, so that the Group’s employees can use it for
discussion instead of using paper.
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Moving forward, the Group will continue to monitor and control
its GHG emissions in a bid to contribute to energy conservation,
maintain or cut down its greenhouse gas emissions and carbon
footprint as far as possible.

4 The carbon emission of China Light and Power (“CLP") was 0.39 kg
CO2e/kWh for the year 2021 as announced in their Sustainability Report
2021.

° The Scope 2 indirect GHG emission from electricity consumption in
2020/21 has been adjusted with a more precise measurement adopted as
stated in Note 4.

6 Purchased electricity consumption per unit volume of fresh water treated
was taken as 0.596 kWh/m3, as latest announced by Hong Kong Water
Supplies Department in their 2019/20 Sustainability Report (the latest
Sustainability Report).

7 Purchased electricity consumption per unit volume of sewage treated
was 0.29 kWh/unit, as latest announced by Hong Kong Drainage Services
Department in their 2020/21 Sustainability Report.

Waste Management

The capacity of landfills and the availability of suitable land
for landfills have been continuously decreasing. Together with
the significant environmental impacts of waste disposal, waste
reduction has always been one of the Group’s objectives.

Hazardous Waste
As aforementioned, the Group's core business involves the sales of

diesel oil. No hazardous waste such as chemical waste and clinical
waste was produced during the Reporting Year.
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Non-hazardous Waste

The Group's non-hazardous waste was mainly composed of paper
waste. During the Reporting Year, the total paper waste produced
amounted to approximately 0.13 tonnes (FY2020/21: 0.09 tonnes),
with a corresponding non-hazardous waste intensity of 0.006
tonnes per employee (FY2020/21: 0.003 tonnes per employee),
considering the monthly average number of employees being
21.83in the Reporting Year (FY2020/21: 26.50).

AEENEEEENTIEZCEER - RAR
SEE EAXBEEREEA490.1305 (2020/21
B 0.09M8) » ZEBIAFEFEARNSHF
HEB AEA21.83A (2020/2184%F  26.50
AN HEEMEBEEEEYREEASHRESR0.006
ME (2020/2184 5 : &% EE0.003MF) °

Paper waste (in tonnes)

R4 (1)
0.5
0.4
0.3
0.2
01 0.09
: -
2020/214F

0.13

2021/22%

@ Paper waste produced (tonnes)

AR (1R)

Logging is involved in paper production process, provoking both
direct and indirect negative impacts on the environment. To
advocate waste reduction within the Group’s workplace, the Group
has encouraged the Group’s employees to adopt double-side
printing, with single-side-printed paper being collected for reuse.
In the Reporting Year, the total non-hazardous waste disposed by
the Group and the waste intensity increased approximately by 43%
and 73%, which was mainly due to pandemic subsides during the
period of July 2021 to early December 2021 in Hong Kong, the
employees of the Group resumed to normal working hours at the
Headquarter leading to increased usage of printed papers.

Moving forward, the Group will continue to implement the above-
mentioned resource saving measures and strive for reduction in
paper consumption, so as to maintain or reduce the production of
paper waste and its corresponding emissions.
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A2 Use of Resources

The Group pledges to become an environmental friendly and a
sustainable enterprise. To reduce carbon emission and footprint, the
Group has implemented a range of carbon reduction measures in
the Group's daily operations, ranging from the adoption of energy—
saving equipment to the promotion of 3Rs principles among the
employees.

Energy Consumption

In the Reporting year, the total energy consumption amounted
to approximately 10,719 kWh (FY2020/21%: 10,092 kWh), with
electricity being the only source of energy. The corresponding
energy consumption intensity, which is calculated by dividing
the electricity consumption by the monthly average number of
employees, was approximately 491 kWh per employee (2021: 381
kWh per employee). Compared with the previous year, the Group’s
energy consumption and intensity have increased by 6% and
29% respectively. Due to the slowing-down spread of COVID-19
epidemic during the period of July 2021 to early December 2021 in
Hong Kong, the employees of the Group resumed normal working
hours at the Headquarter, hence consequently increased the energy
consumption. The breakdown of the Group energy consumption by
month is as below:
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On top of external factors, the Group has continued to invest
in energy conservation, such as purchasing certified energy
efficient products as office equipment. The Group has reminded
the employees to switch off idle electronic appliances and lights.
The Group will put continuous effort in the aspect of energy
conservation to further minimize carbon footprint of the Group.

In the future, the Group will continue to actively implement its plans
and measures to achieve the goal of energy saving and efficient
consumption.

8 The monthly electricity consumption in FY2020/21 were not calculated
by the exact number of days. Instead, the electricity usage data on the
electricity bill received in the month was taken as monthly electricity usage
of that month.

Water Consumption

The total water consumption?® in this Reporting Year amounted to
approximately 46 m? (FY2020/21: 35 m3). The corresponding water
consumption intensity, which is calculated by dividing the water
consumption by the monthly average number of employees, was
around 2 m? per employee (FY2020/21: 1 m? per employee).
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The total water consumption increased by 31%. This was mainly
due to the slowing-down spread of COVID-19 epidemic during
the period of July 2021 to early December 2021 in Hong Kong,
the employees of the Group resumed normal working hours at the
Headquarter leading to the increase of total water consumption.

Effective use of water can significantly whittle down the indirect
consumption of electricity during water processing. The Group
encourages its employees to save and use less water by promoting
water conservation among its staff with the help of reminders
posted next to water taps.

The Group's water consumption is not directly associated with its
principal business. Nonetheless, the Group is still committed to the
conservation of water resources. We will continue to monitor our
use of water closely, so as to minimize the corresponding carbon
footprint.

Looking ahead, the Group will actively implement its plans and
measures in water-saving to maintain or reduce the intensity of

water consumption.
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Packaging Material

As the Group's core business involves the sales of diesel oil, we
did not find any significant usage of packaging materials in the
Reporting Year.

9 The monthly water consumption was not calculated by the exact number
of days. Instead, the water usage data was calculated by dividing the water
consumption data on the water bill roughly by the number of months
involved.

As the water bill from February 2022 to March 2022 were yet to be
obtained, the water consumption data in these months were estimated

based on the consumption in previous months of the financial year.
A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group believes that business development should not be
achieved at the expense of the environment. As such, the Group
has been implementing various environmental friendly practices
in various aspects as mentioned above. More resources will be
invested in this aspect to further upgrade the Group’s equipment
and its existing vehicles according to the environmental standards
in Hong Kong in the future and reduce our carbon footprint.

With the Group's dedicated effort in environmental protection,
the Group is pleased to report that no material non-compliance
issue regarding relevant laws and regulations was identified in the
Reporting Year. To keep up with this achievement, the Group will
continue to monitor its use of resources and strive to further reduce
its consumptions, in a bid to contribute to environmental protection
as an environmental friendly and a sustainable enterprise.
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A4 Climate Change

Fossil fuel consumptions and human activities are largely
responsible for climate change due to increased emissions of heat
trapping gases like carbon dioxide into the atmosphere. Given high
concentration of greenhouse gases in the atmosphere, there is
an urgent need to transitioning into a more sustainable and low-
carbon economy for curbing global warming and its accompanying
detrimental effects.

The Group acknowledges the threat of climate change confronting
humanity at the present time. As the primary business of the Group
is under the energy sector, it is vital for the Group to understand
its corporate role in addressing climate change threats, which
could impact the Group in terms of its profitability, resilience,
and sustainability in business in a long run. Therefore, integrating
climate considerations into the Group’s decision-making process
and strategic business planning is crucial for developing an effective
action plan to adapt its operation to the uncertainties brought by
climate change. Moreover, the Group shares the responsibilities to
reduce its emissions and join the endeavour in relieving the impact
from climate change as far as possible.

The physical risks faced by the Group includes a higher frequency
and intensity of severe weather events, with extreme precipitation
and tropical cyclones being the most dominant threat faced by
the Group and its employees. While these events endanger the
safety of employees working at the premises or delivering diesel
oil to destinations designated by the customers, the goods and
services provided by the value chain may also be disrupted due to
obstruction towards logistic of products to customers caused by the
extreme weather conditions. In this regards, the Group has already
established guidelines regarding working arrangements under bad
weather conditions such as rainstorm and tropical cyclones in order
to ensure the safety of employees.
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On the other hand, long-term temperature change may lead
to various environmental conditions, including rising sea level,
precipitation pattern changes, and possible reduction of water
availability. Refineries and petrochemical plants of the upstream
explorer and producer in the oil and gas industry may be faced
with the problem of water scarcity and possible flooding problems.
With the climate-related uncertainties affecting and threating the
exploration and production of diesel oil from the upstream explorer
and producer, the stable supply of diesel oil to the Group may be
affected. Since the supply and production of diesel oil is unstable,
the procurement cost over diesel oil from the middle stream diesel
oil suppliers maybe relatively high, thus may bring negative impact
to the Group's financial performance and business sustainability.

Moreover, with more climate-related policies and initiatives expected
in the future, a possible increase in operational costs is projected. For
instance, the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (“the Government”) announced “Hong Kong's Climate
Action Plan 2050” (“Action Plan”) on 8 October 2021, which
outlines the strategies and targets for combating climate change
and achieving carbon neutrality. In the Action Plan, one of the
major decarbonization strategies includes green transport, which
the Government aims to achieve target of zero vehicular emissions
and zero carbon emissions in the transport sector before 2050,
through the electrification of vehicles. Thus, the Government has
also announced the “Hong Kong Roadmap on Popularization of
Electric Vehicles”. The Government has implemented several key
measures in promoting the replacement of diesel commercial vehicles
in phasing out Euro IV diesel commercial vehicles (including light,
medium and heavy goods vehicles) starting from 2020, has planned
further promoting the use of electric vehicles for commercial vehicles
proactively starting from 2025 to 2030. With the above measures by
the Government, additional costs of replacements will be brought to
the Group for the replacement of existing commercial vehicles to more
environmental friendly and energy-efficient vehicles. Furthermore,
due to the strategies and measures to phasing out diesel commercial
vehicles to promoting the use of electric vehicles for commercial
vehicles, the demand of diesel oil for commercial vehicles for logistic
industries is expecting to be decreased, this brings huge threat to the
long-term financial performance and business sustainability of the
Group given that diesel is the main product of the Group's business.
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The Group will develop new business strategy and review its
existing business strategy for both long-term and short-term
in order to minimize the abovementioned physical risks and
transitional risks which affects both the financial performance and
business sustainability of the Group over different time frames.
Nevertheless, the Group is sought to being an environmental
responsible corporation, in which it will continuously optimize its
business model and advocate green business, so that corporate
strength could also be enhanced while achieving sustainability
concurrently.

SECTION B: SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES

B1 Employment

Employees are fundamental to the Group’s success. All the
Group's employees’ contribution and dedication to the business
development are valued equally by the Group. The Group has put
continuous effort to provide a harmonious working environment
for its employees. In the meantime, the Group strive to grow with
its employees as it is mutually beneficial to both the employees and
its business development in the long run.

Our Employees
As at 31 March 2022, the Group consisted of 23 employees

(FY2020/21: 27 employees), of which all are from Hong Kong. The
composition of the Group’s employees is detailed below:
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By Gender By Employment Type
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The Group consists of diverse workforce of different age groups ZEBEEAFNRIEGHAR RERNE T o4
and gender. The Group believes that a workforce with diversityand S£ERAEE S THERERENE T XA H
inclusiveness are essential to a successful and sustainable business. I KRB FENESREFEE - B 4961%
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them having served for more than 10 years. ARFE BB+
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The Group strives for a harmonious and inclusive working
environment, so that the employees are free from harassment
and discrimination. The employees of the Group are also recruited
regardless of their age, gender, marital status, pregnancy, family
status, disability, race, nationality, religion and/or sexual orientation.

Equal opportunities and diversity for all employees are highly valued
by the Group. Such employment opportunity policy is applicable to
the Group's staff recruitment, remuneration, as well as termination
and dismissal. Job applicants will be required to attend interviews,
during which applicants’ performance will be assessed together
with their academic qualifications and other references available.
Background search will also be conducted for recruitment of staff
in higher ranks.

The Group also maintains employees’ compensation insurance
for all of its employees as required under the Employees’
Compensation Ordinance (Chapter 282 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and other applicable laws and regulations in Hong Kong. The Group
operates defined contribution retirement benefits schemes under
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF") schemes registered under the
relevant laws and regulations for our employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions to such schemes are based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not find any material
non-compliance regarding employment.
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Employee Benefits

Comprehensive remuneration package is provided to all of the
Group’s employees with reference to market practice and their
performance. On top of that, year-end bonus is awarded to staff
based on their contribution, as well as the Group's performance.
Special bonus may also be given to staff with outstanding
achievement. Moreover, the Group contributes to the MPF and
provides employees’ compensation insurance in compliance with
the Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong. Considering the needs
of employees in different job positions, different employees’
compensation insurance would be purchased for drivers and office
staff separately. Moreover, the Group also offers extra medical
insurance for better healthcare of the employees.

To enhance the performance and address the learning needs of the
Group's employees, annual staff assessment will be conducted. The
evaluating factors including team spirit, job responsibility, attitude,
punctuality, capability, quality of work and efficiency. Employees
with satisfactory results in the annual appraisal may be considered
for promotion, salary adjustment and bonus.
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Work-life Balance of Employees

The Group understands that adequate rest is crucial to the
sustainability of its workforce, thus it has developed corresponding
internal policies to help its employees achieve work-life balance.
To accommodate the routines of different job positions, different
working hours are assigned to drivers and office staff. Drivers are
working on shifts, while office staff are working from Monday to
Saturday. Our employees are engaged in 50 to 60 hours of work
each week, with at least 1 rest day to ensure sufficient rest. They
can also adopt flexible lunch hour based on their needs.

On top of these, the Group's employees are entitled to a range
of leaves, including annual leave, maternity leave, marriage leave,
family bereavement leave, as well as medical leave. To celebrate
festivals and recognize the contribution of the Group’s employees,
the Group also distribute gifts to its employees on special occasions
such as Mid-autumn Festival and Tuen Ng Festival. During the
Winter Solstice, the Group also organizes dinner gatherings upon
the end of the calendar year.

Talent Retention

During the Reporting Year, the employee-oriented approach
successfully achieved a healthy monthly average turnover rate at
approximately 1.26% (FY2020/21: 0%). The monthly average
turnover rate of employee by gender was approximately 1.19 % for
both male and female. The monthly average turnover rate by age
group were approximately 0.39% (26 to 35 years old) and 3.16%
(36 to 45 years old). The monthly average turnover rate for 18 to 25
years old, 46 to 55 years old and 56 to 65 years old was 0% during
the Reporting Year.

Since all staff are from Hong Kong, the corresponding monthly
average turnover rate by geographical region was also 1.26%.
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Turnover Rate by Gender

BRI B D ERKRE

16%

14%

12%

10%

8%

6%

4%

2%

0% N
Apr  May  Jun Jul Aug Sep  Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb  Mar Monthly
mA mA XA A A hA t+A +—A+ZA —A —A =A average
2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2022 2022 2022 turnover

® Male @ remale ﬂrgrj%eggz
EElEs 7t
Turnover Rate by Age Group
RERAR B D RURKE

16%

14%

12%

10%

8%

6%

4%

2% I

0% -

Apr  May  Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb  Mar Monthly
mA mA <A A A hA t+tA +t—A+=ZA —A Z—A =A average
2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2022 2022 2022 turnover
rate
Rigime®
18-25 © 26-35 @ 36-45 46-55 56-65
18-2575% 26-355% 36-4575% 46-557% 56-657%

74 SUN KONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021/2022



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIR-HERELRHS

B2 Health and Safety

The Group is committed to safeguarding the safety, health and
welfare of all its employees. Not only does it aim to meet the
minimum occupational health and safety standards required
by law, but to exceed them for creating a safe and healthy
working environment. To realize this commitment, the Group
has implemented a number of policies with regard to keeping
workplace safety.

In accordance with “Dangerous Goods Ordinance (Cap. 295)", all
oil tank wagons and tractors under the Group have registered for
the relevant licenses from the authority to operate and deliver diesel
oil. They have been equipped with fire equipment for potential
hazards, while labels declaring the presence of inflammable goods
inside the vehicles have been attached to the front or rear end of
all vehicles. Vehicles are also under regular checks and maintenance
to ensure that they are in good condition. Besides, the Group
maintains a license register to keep track of all the licenses and their
respective expiry dates, so as to arrange renewal of the licenses in a

timely manner.
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On top of these, all drivers are required to attend safety training
sessions organized by Sinopec before they are allowed to operate
oil tank wagons in the oil depots. Only authorized persons with
relevant license from Sinopec will be permitted in the oil depots.
Smoking is strictly prohibited at oil stations to prevent fire hazards.
Meanwhile, safety handbook has been established and distributed
to all the drivers responsible for delivering diesel oil. It outlines
the safety protocols for various hazards, such as car crash of
various severity, oil leakage and fire. Emergency contacts for
government bodies, hospitals, and garages for maintenance are
enclosed in the handbook as well. The Group has also equipped
its office and station with adequate fire equipment and first aid
tool box, with various signage posted around the workplace to
remind its employees of the importance of work safety. All these
measures help to create a safe working environment and protect its
employees from occupational hazards.

In the meantime, the Group provides employee compensation
insurance to all its employees, which cover work injuries and other
medical needs. In case of work injury, our employees are entitled to
medical leave, so that they can have sufficient rest for recovery.

The Group is pleased to report that there was no work injury and no
fatalities (FY2020/21: nil, FY2019/20: nil) reported within our Group
in the Reporting Year. As the Group places its employee safety as
top priority, it will continue to strive for a safe and healthy working
environment for its employees.
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COVID-19 epidemic is one of the most concerned issues of the
Group and its stakeholders since early 2020. Therefore, due to the
continued influence of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has
issued a notice and adopted safety measures to protect the health
of staff. Staff are required to keep a reasonable social distance and
avoid gatherings, be vigilant with maintaining personal hygiene
including wearing masks and keeping proper hand hygiene to
avoid getting infected with COVID-19. Besides, staff are required
to have temperature checks before entering into the office area;
sanitization and cleaning disinfectants are provided to staff for
cleaning the office area and staff are required to wear mask in the
office area at all times. Furthermore, due to the serious spread of
the mutation virus for COVID-19 (namely “omicron virus”) since
late December 2021, the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region announced on 25 February 2022 that the
testing result of rapid antigen tests (“RAT") is acceptable by the
Government to avoid further spreading of the virus. The Group has
also procured RAT test kits for employees in order to conduct RAT
test before each working day. The Group is committed to create a
healthy and safe working environment for its staff and to minimize
their tendency of getting infected with COVID-19.

B3 Development and Training

The Group encourages its employees to engage in continuous
learning, in order to equip themselves for future challenges.
On-the-job training is provided to all the newly recruited employees,
so that they can acquire all the necessary skills and knowledge for
their roles, as well as assimilating into the Group smoothly. Drivers
are required to attend safety training organized by Sinopec Group
before they are allowed to operate oil tank wagons in the oil
depots.

We have also set up standardized operation manual for the Group’s
employees’ reference.
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During the Reporting Year, 7 employees (FY2020/21: 8 employees)
of the Group have received a total of 28 hours (FY2020/21:
16 hours) of training in the Reporting Year, the corresponding
percentage of employees who received training was 30%. The
percentage of trained employees by gender was 100% for male
and 0% for female, while by employment level was 86% for
frontline staff, 0% for middle management and 14% for senior
management. On the other hand, the average training hour by
gender was 1.6 hours for male and 0 hour for female, while by
employment level was 1.8 hours for frontline staff, 0 hour for
middle management and 0.5 hour for senior management.

Moving forward, the Group will continue to invest more resources
into its employee training and development as Hong Kong
transitions from COVID-19 infection peak, so that its staff can keep
abreast of the market changes and demands.

B4 Labour Standards

The Group highly values human rights and it strictly complies with
all labour laws and regulations that prohibit child labour and forced
labour. During the course of our recruitment process, documents
authenticating the applicant’s identity and eligibility to work are
obtained and verified, so as to ensure compliance with relevant
laws and regulations. No person below the age of 18 will be hired
or forced to work at the Group. Any act of violence, with the
purpose of deliberately causing discomfort, threats and/or bodily
harm, as well as forcing employees to work, is strictly prohibited by
the Group. The Group’s employees are welcomed to report to the
management if they notice any potential violation, or if they are
experiencing forced labour. The management will investigate the
matter and take follow-up actions in serious manner, in a bid to
ensure that no employee is working against his/her will.

In the Reporting Year, there was no material non-compliance with
applicable laws and regulations in relation to labour standards.
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SECTION B: SOCIAL - OPERATING PRACTICES
B5 Supply Chain Management

The Group believes that proper supply chain management could
bring positive impacts to the social environment in which it
operates, thus measures of quality assurance are in place to monitor
its supply chain closely. The Group maintains a list of approved
suppliers which have met its procurement requirements. Purchase
order will only be made with suppliers on the list, ensuring the
quality of the Group’s products and mitigating the risk of potential
disruption in the Group’s supply chain. Regular assessment will
also be conducted to our suppliers so as to keep a close eye on the
standard of their products and services. New supplier assessment
will be conducted to the Group’s new suppliers in order to ensure
the quality of the products provided by the suppliers and the quality
of the products fit the Group's procurement requirements.

The Group suppliers are also encouraged to demonstrate corporate
social responsibilities by complying with the relevant codes and
business ethics with respect to business operations, marketing
activities, social contacts and environmental responsibilities. The
Group also encourages suppliers to adopt environmental friendly
practices such as saving resources, as well as takes into account
if suppliers comply with relevant environmental laws, so that the
products and services provided meet the environmental standards
of the regulations and the Group. Moreover, any form of bribery is
also strictly prohibited by the Group, while confidential information
related to business activities, business structure, financial status and
financial performance etc. should only be disclosed in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations.

With a limited number of suppliers in the industry, the Group’s
strict supplier selection process and strategic partnership with our
suppliers have given us competitive edge. In the Reporting Year,
the Group has engaged 6 suppliers (FY2020/21: 7 suppliers) in
Hong Kong, supplying diesel oil and other materials. Long-term
relationship with these suppliers has also enabled stable supply
of products at reasonable prices. Moving forward, the Group will
look into any potential green procurement process when selecting
suppliers.
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B6 Product Responsibility

The Group is committed to safeguarding the interests and safety
of the general public. Product Quality is one of the major concerns
for the Group and its stakeholders. As its core business involves
the sales and transportation of diesel oil, the Group understands,
the potential hazards surrounding its business activities, and the
Group endeavours to mitigate risks to the best of its ability. Oil tank
wagons and tractors under the Group are registered with relevant
license from the authority under the Dangerous Goods Ordinance
(Cap. 295), while safety hazard labels have been displayed on
the vehicles. The vehicles are also under regular checks and
maintenance to ensure that they are in good condition. Vehicles
which have failed to pass the checks will be strictly prohibited from
operating. All its drivers are required to attend mandatory induction
training to familiarize themselves with the operations of oil tank
wagons and the safety protocols. Meanwhile, safety handbook and
Industrial Safety Policy is distributed to all drivers for easy reference
and handling of products during delivery. The Group has continued
to place much emphasis on the importance of safe driving, strictly
prohibiting speeding and driving under the alcohol influence.

With its dedicated effort in upholding the safety standards,
the Group is pleased to report that there was no material non-
compliance with product responsibility during the Reporting Year.

Quality Control

The Group's diesel oil is sourced only from the list of approved
suppliers, all of which are authorized agents appointed by the Qil
Majors, so that consistent quality of its products can be ensured.
Diesel oil is transported directly from oil depots of our suppliers to
our customers’ premises, which contributes to smoother delivery
logistics.
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The Group is pleased to report that we did not receive any
complaints or claims for compensation from our customers in
this Reporting Year. Given that the business nature of the Group
involves the sales and transportation of diesel oil, no products
sold or shipped were subjected to recalls for safety and health
reasons. The Group will continue to implement strict supply chain
management to keep up with its achievement.

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group's core business involves the sales of diesel oil. There was
no intellectual property rights registered during the Reporting Year.

Privacy

The Group has established an Internal Guideline on inside
information, outlining the regulations and importance of inside
information protection. The guideline has been circulated to all
our employees so that they can familiarize themselves with the
protocols. Employees are strictly prohibited from disclosing any
inside information of the Group both during and after employment,
irrespective of the circumstances of termination. In particular,
pricing of our diesel oil is highly confidential, and its employees
should refrain from activities that may potentially result in leakage
of the information at all times. Failure to comply with the guidelines
would be deemed as severe misconduct, in which the employee
concerned may be subjected to summary dismissal.
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B7 Anti-corruption

All forms of bribery and corruption are strictly prohibited by the
Group. Employees should not offer, solicit or accept anything of
material value to or from their colleagues, customers, suppliers or
other business partner of the Group without permission from the
management. This applies to, but is not limited to, both monetary
and non-monetary gifts, loans, fee, reward, employment, contract
and service etc. Moreover, under no circumstances may a director
or employee offer benefits to any person or company for the
purpose of influencing the party in business dealings. Employees are
welcomed to report potential cases of misconduct through various
channels, while the management will take immediate action to
investigate the issue in a serious manner. The Group refers to ‘Anti-
Corruption Programme — A Guide for Listed Companies’ issued by
the Corruption Prevention Department of Independent Commission
Against Corruption as guideline for employees in compliance with
relevant laws and regulations. Although there was no related
anti-corruption training provided to the employees of the Group
during the Reporting Year, the Group promises to arrange relevant
trainings, if necessary, in the future.

The Group is pleased to report that there was no concluded legal
case in any forms of fraud brought against us or our employees
in the Reporting Year. The Group will continue to adopt the zero-
tolerance approach and stay alert to potential misconduct of its
employees.
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SECTION B: SOCIAL - COMMUNITY
B8 Community Investment

The Group places much emphasis on community investment, and it
has continued to contribute back to the society in which it operates
in.

The Group has been making monthly donations to World Vision,
a renowned charitable organization aiming to alleviate poverty
among children around the world, as well as promoting public
education and raising public awareness of global issues such as
poverty, hunger, public health and children’s rights. The Group’s
donation to World Vision amounted to HKD2,640 for the year
ended 31 March 2022.

The Group is unable to participate in community services in
response to a series of COVID-19 related measures implemented by
the Government, including the restriction and prohibition on group
gatherings and maintaining social distance. Notwithstanding, the
Group will strive to participate in other possible forms of community
services whenever situation allows.

The Group will continue to invest more resources and engage more
employees in community investment as far as possible, as well as
devoting its resources to areas other than alleviating poverty. By
doing so, the Group hopes to encourage its employees to serve
and give back to the community while promoting corporate social
responsibility and bringing positive impacts to the society as a
whole.
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ENVIRONMENT DATA IR
Year ended Year ended
Emissions 31 March 31 March
2021 2022
. BE2021F  #HEF20225F
3B31HLLEE 3A31HLEEE
Total air emissions ARBEBAEE 1,603.92 1,287.90  kilogram
T
Nitrogen oxides (“NOx") ag1t% (TNox 1,484.16 1,199.81  kilogram
T2
Sulphur oxides (“SOx") a1ty (F'soxy) 2.01 1.26  kilogram
T2
Particulate matter (“PM") Bk (TPm ) 117.74 86.83  kilogram
T2
Air emission intensity KRB EE 100.24 90.01  kilogram/vehicle
7,/ B
Total greenhouse gas emissions BRERBAEGINE 337.68 212.79  tonnes
g
Scope 1 — Direct emissions (from mobile #1[E——H 1% 333.50 207.97  tonnes
combustion sources) e (kg2 g
BENRIER)
Scope 2 — Emissions from electricity H;E_—8 3.73 4.18  tonnes
consumption TBFERVHER W5
Scope 3 Other indirect emissions HE=—HMEE 0.44 0.63  tonnes
B N5
Greenhouse gas emission intensity RERBEHREE 21.10 14.87  tonnes/vehicle

Mg, B &
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Year ended Year ended

Use of Resources 31 March 31 March
2021 2022
& BE2021F  #@EF2022%F
3A31HLLEE 3A31HLLEE
Total electricity consumption BHFEEE 10,092.00 10,718.58  kWh
T REF
Electricity consumption intensity BIVHERE 380.83 49093  kWh/employee
FRE/EE
Total water consumption KHFEARE 35.40 4581 m?
AR
Water consumption intensity KHERE 1.34 2.10  m¥employee
YAHK BB
Paper waste BEAR 0.09 0.13  tonnes
U
Paper waste intensity BE4R = FE 0.003 0.006  tonnes/employee
L=
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SOCIAL DATA g &
Year ended Year ended
Employment 31 March 31 March
2021 2022
#E20214 #E20225F

L 3E3MBEILEE  3ANALEE
Total Employment BERH 27 23
Employment by Employment type ZERBEESNES

full time 2 100% 100%

part time B - -

temporary B& B - -
Employment by Gender ZERBDNES

Male B 78% 78%

Female gl 22% 22%
Employment by Age Group BFERAERNEDHES

18-25 18-255% 4% 0%

26-35 26-355% 26% 30%

36-45 36-455% 30% 22%

46-55 46-555% 19% 22%

56-65 56-655% 22% 26%
Employment by Geographic Region EiE s omES

Hong Kong &5 100% 100%
Employment by years of serving the Group 12 IR#FS A~ EE BRI EHIR)

NS

under 1 year Y S 1% -

1 -3 years 1-3%F 44% 39%

3 -5 years 3-54F 19% 22%

5— 10 years 5-104F 1% 22%

over 10 years Z105E 15% 17%
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Year ended Year ended
Employee Turnover Rate 31 March 31 March
2021 2022
HZF2021F #F2022F
L i 3EMALEE  3HMALEE
Overall monthly turnover rate HEERRmAE - 1.26%
Monthly turnover rate by gender EMERIB DA TR X
Male B - 1.19%
Female pegis - 1.19%
Monthly turnover rate by age group HFER AR DY B A=
18-25 18-25m% - -
26-35 26-355% - 0.93%
36-45 36-455% - 3.16%
46-55 46-555% - -
56-65 56-655% - -
Monthly turnover rate by geographic region %@ &5 B k=K
Hong Kong A - 1.26%
Year ended Year ended
Health and Safety 31 March 31 March
2021 2022
RERES #X20215F #HE20224F
3B31HLLEE 3A31HLEEE
Number of work-related fatalities RTIETAHK - -
Number of work-related injuries AIZEAH - -
Lost days BEARTEEHE N/A N/A

IR ARAR 2021/2022 F5R 87




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BRI -HERELGERS

Development and Training

& Rt

Total training hours
Percentage of employees trained
By Gender

Male

Female

By Employee Category

Frontline employees
Middle management
Senior management
Average training hours completed per
employee
By Gender
Male

Female

By Employee Category

Frontline employees

Middle management

Senior management
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31 March
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8§ F2021F

3A31HLEFE

16
30%

Not disclosed

RIER

Not disclosed

RNIREE

Not disclosed

R ER

Not disclosed

RIRE
Not disclosed

RIKER

Not disclosed

R ER

Not disclosed

RINER

Not disclosed

RIER

Not disclosed

RIER

Not disclosed

RIER

Not disclosed
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30%
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Year ended Year ended

Supply Chain Management 31 March 31 March

2021 2022

e #ZE2021% #HZE20225

- 3A31HLLEE 3A31HLLEE

Number of suppliers HEmEE 7 6
Number of suppliers by geographic region — #Zith& 2|5 B9 HER EH

Hong Kong B5E 7 6

Year ended Year ended

Product Responsibility 31 March 31 March
2021 2022
#;ZF20215F #ZFE20224F
3B31HLLEE  3H3MHLEEE

EmEE

Percentage of total products sold or shipped B & EEZ% E REHTE

subjected to recalls for health and safety EEEZ2IBEAMARIIK N/A N/A

reasons MBS B ~EA
Number of products and service related HERRERKREN

complaints received ’IRE B - -
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Year ended

31 March
2021
HZF2021F
331HILEFE

Anti-corruption

Number of concluded legal cases regarding ¥1#/7 A E{REIR I
corrupt practices brought against the BEENESHFREYN

issuer or its employees

Year ended
Community Investment 31 March
2021
o #H=E2021%F

HERR 3B31HLEE
Corporate Charitable Donation (HKD) PERSIEMR (B $2,640
Employee Volunteering BEET
Number of employee volunteers BERIHHE Not disclosed

RIKEE
Total number of service hours Ak 75 48 By 24 Not disclosed

RIEE
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX RIE-HEREBRSEIEIRTRGIR
Aspects ESG Indicators Description

=] BRI - ERERERE fd

A. Environmental

A IRIR

A1. Emissions General Disclosure Information on the policies and compliance with relevant 54-62

laws and regulations that have a significant impact on

the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

A1EERY —fRIREE ERERACRERBEHFI - BKREMBPE S -BSE
REZEEYNELESHERNETHETARE
FEVERERERRPIBNER -

KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emission data. 54-57
REREISIZEAT BERY) TE A R 1B RE HE B -
KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) 57-61

greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

RASRAE IETRAT.2 B EE) REREE@ED) A=
UMEETE) & QER) BE WUSE
whstE) o

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and where 61

RSB E
EE-81

appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

RS EMIERA13 FREEEEREEYRE CUEEE) k (MER) BE
WU BESBA - BERMH) °

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, 62

i

where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

R AEMIETRA1.4 FREEmREEEYRE CUEE) &k (MER) BE
WU SESBA - §ERMEH) °

KPI A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to 57-62

i

achieve them.

B RAEIEIRATS HHPAE]IBYBENE B 1R e A E 24 B IRFT SR EY
BRI ER o
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Aspects

B

A2. Use of Resources

A2. 5 RfER

ESG Indicators

RIE-HEREBER

KPI'A1.6

RASEAEWIEIZA1.6

General Disclosure

—RRE
KPI'A2.1

R SRAE IS IRA2.1

KPI'A2.2

RS A 51RA2.2
KPI A2.3

RS IRA2.3

KPI A2.4

HREMIERA2.4

KPI'A2.5

BB AE R FEIRA2.5

Description

it

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, and a description of reduction
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

HRIER EREEEREYNG % RIEHFTET IR
R B IR R R 2 E B RPTERENAY 2 B o

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.

BMERER (BIEER K REMEMED BBER

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in "000s) and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
RN DNER K REFER QIE -~ R 4
#E USTHTRRESE REE G E%%
i~ BIERMEE) °

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of

&

production volume, per facility).

MEKEREE WUBESSBM -§ERMEH) ©
Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

HFrE] L RBERERAME B R A EIZFER
P EREX B9 27 B o

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.

Hat SKEE A /KR _EPT A ERIRERE - UK FrET LAY
KW ak B IR e A E Z 5 B ARPTERERAY 2 8]

Total packaging material used for finished products (in
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

SRk o P A B ML AR 8 (ST H) K
FEEMUGLSE-

(WEA) =
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RIR-HERELRHS

Aspects ESG Indicators

Description

BE RIE-HEREBER

A3. The Environment General Disclosure

and Natural
Resources
AIRIERRAERE —RIFE

KPI'A3.1

B SRR RS IRA3.T

A4. Climate Change General Disclosure

Ad.mIREE — R B

KPI'A4.1

B SRR RS 1RAL.1

Faatt
Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impacts on 66
the environment and natural resources.

BRBTAHRERRABE RSN EARTENBER
Description of the significant impacts of activities on the 66
environment and natural resources and the actions taken

to manage them.
HAEBEIHIRIERRAERNEALERER
REIEFMEENITE -

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant 67-69
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those

which may impact, the issuer.

WAl REHE S KOIEEHBETAEELENEKR
RIEERAEERIBR

Description of the significant climate-related issues 67-69
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the

issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.
BB RN A EEHETAEEFENERRIEE
ST MEHITH
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BRI -HERELGERS

Aspects

=]
B. Social
B.#t&

B1. Employment

B1.IE{E

B2. Health and
Safety

B2.EEHRZ R

ESG Indicators

RIE-HEREBER

General Disclosure

—AR I ER

KPI'B1.1

B SR AR FE1RB 1.1

KPIB1.2

B SR AR AN F51RB1 .2

General Disclosure

—fRIREE

Description
it

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact

on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.

BRI R~ B R E A TIER 8 (REA~ T &
e Zalb s RERUKREMGEERERNBER Kk
BTHETAREARENERNEERRLANEE
Total workforce by gender, employment type (for
example, full- or part-time), age group and geographical
region.

R EEEE 2B FRE)  Fi R kit &
gD EE®RE -

Employment turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region.

R~ Fl AR R Rt & B DV BB RAREEE o
Information on the policies and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

B 22 TFRERFREREBEHEMLLS
R KRETHETABERZENRBAERNE
PR E KL o
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BRI -HERELGERS

Aspects ESG Indicators Description

[Em RIE-HERERIEE #lt
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in 76

each of the past three years including the reporting year.

B SR AR A5 1RB2.1 BE=F (OREERFE) SFRIILETAHRLER.

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 76
RA R G X F512B2.2 HITEERXITIFH#-
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures 77

adopted how they are implemented and monitored.
R G F518B2.3 P ERAR RV B SR R R B 2 2 HE T » LURABRE I T R
BERAE
B3. Development and General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills 77-78
training for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities.
B3.2 R K353l —ARiREE BRI EERTT LIFR SRR # R SERIEIR
A IEFIES o
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and 78
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management).
AR AR A5 1RB3.1 BHRKEEER WEREERE - PREERE) 89
NZMEEBT DL
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by 78

gender and employee category.
R R AR WIE1EB3.2 BRI REERERNE D SR EETAZINN TR
2o

IR ARAR 2021/2022 F5R 95
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BRI -HERELGERS

Aspects

B

B4. Labour standards

B4.%5 T #8I

B5. Supply chain
management

B5.{itfEHE EIE

ESG Indicators

RIE-HEREBER

General Disclosure

—fRIREE

KPI B4.1

SR A AN 5 1RB4.1
KPI B4.2

B SR AR A5 1%B4.2

General Disclosure

—MRINEE

KPI B5.1

R S A SN 15 1R85 1
KPI B5.2

% $2 4R AL F51%B5.2

KPI B5.3

RS F51RB5.3

KPI B5.4

B S AR F51%B5.4

Description

Faatt

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.
BRAIEET &EH% TR RETHETAR
BEARXENBBERRREHNER

Description of measures to review employment practices
to avoid child and forced labour.

AR ST RIS 1B G AR S B T Ko 58155 T AHET o
Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices
when discovered.

M B RER B RE HRARIE P EREX B 2 5 o
Policies on managing environmental and social risks of
the supply chain.

HERIRIZ Rt G RENEIRBR -

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

TithE 8 DR EEBE o

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented and
monitored.

Hit B RIS AR IEA > mERITE RIS 8 H
FEEEE - U BRREANMITREZR A
Description of practices used to identify environmental
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

it S R 8 B (R SR B IR BT VIR IR KAt B AR89
TBA) > LU B AITREER 5%

Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting

suppliers, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

HEEREHERREESRRAERMRBEIE
B> LU BRI T REER T 7%
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BRI -HERELGERS

Aspects ESG Indicators Description

fEm RIF - ERERIERE

B6. Product General Disclosure Information on the policies and compliance with relevant 80-81
responsibility laws and regulations that have a significant impact on

the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and method of redress.
B6.EmBEE —ARiREE BRIFEHERNRBNRREZS - BE - REXK
TWERSEEU ARG ENBERRETHETARR
FENMERERRROINER -
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to 81
recalls for safety and health reasons.
RA 2 & W F512B6.1 EENREXEREHPRZ L EREIEHMAR
KRB DL
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints 81
received and how they are dealt with.

B SR AR 515B6.2 RERRERMRBHRFHREUREH -

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and 81
protecting intellectual property rights.

BSR4 F51%B6.3 it B A B o (R PR K B EE P R RABYIB 1 o

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall 81
procedures.

BRI AE XI5 15B6.4 i E ST B2 K EmEIERF -

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy 81

policies, how they are implemented and monitored.
R R AR W IE1EB6.5 U B E BRHRE R AR U RBRAMIT & EE
B ike
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B  HEREANRS

Aspects

B

B7. Anti-corruption

B7.RES

B8. Community
investment

BS.it &R E

98

ESG Indicators

RIE-HEREBER

General Disclosure

—fRIREE

KPI'B7.1

B SR AE XI5 1RBT .1

KPIB7.2

R SEAE WIS 1RB7.2

KPIB7.3

RS AE IS 1ZER7 .3

General Disclosure

—fRIREE

KPI B8.1

B $2 4 2 F51RB8. 1

KPI B8.2

% $2 4R 21 F51%B8.2

Description

Faatt

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

BRI 95 MR BB B R T
TABEARENHEBNEERRANEK

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the Reporting Year and the outcomes of the
cases.

REABREFEHRHETANEESRDIEEGHE
e ASUSEIENEES

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

WP EIE I R BT UREBRITRERS
VAo

Description of anti-corruption training provided to
directors and staff.
HilmESRETIRHENRESE -

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates and
to ensure that its activities take into consideration the
communities” interests.

BRIt RBERTHRETAESEMTLEEREEM
BAREEHIHEE BLERImIIBER

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs, health, culture,
sport).
EIEREBE
XAc B8H) ©

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus

WMHEBE RFEFEEFHLER B

area.

HEEIHBFAFAER WS EER)
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ESERE

The Board are pleased to present the annual report together with
the annual audited financial statements of the Group for the
Reporting Period.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION AND SHARE OFFER

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Act as an exempted company with limited liability on
31 October 2017. The shares of the Company have been listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange by way of placing and public offer on
8 January 2019 (the “Share Offer"”). In connection with the listing
of the shares of the Company on GEM of the Stock Exchange, the
companies comprising the Group underwent a reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”). Pursuant to the Reorganisation, the Company
became the holding company of the subsidiaries comprising the
Group on 29 November 2018. Further details of the Reorganisation
are set out in the section headed “History and Development,
Reorganisation and Group Structure” of the Prospectus.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 11
to the consolidated financial statements. The principal activities
of the Group are the operation of the business of the sale and
transportation of diesel oil and related products in Hong Kong.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The financial performance of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2022 and the financial position of the Group as at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 141 to
146. The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2022.

EFEMAZRAEBNBREMB 2 FRE
B FEEBZMBRER

EERBHERRKRMEE

RRABR2017F10A31BREBAEETHE
HEEMRILAEHRRERAT - ARTRMN
20191 H8A BB E R AREE (TRR17#
€ ) R SZFIGEM LT o BLANA B B9 FL B 32
PRGEMLETME > AEFIRRKIE N ABETE
B (TE4M) ~RIBER A RFM2018F 118
9B A TERREETHBATNIZERA
e EMHNE—DFBFHNBREERES
MR EHAEERRE -

FEEH

RABZEBEHRAREER - HI B AT
TEEHHNGEMBRRNE N AEEZ
TEARHAHEETBETR MR E RS
EREBHWER-

REBEHZE2022F3831HIEFENF R
HEURAEERZBNMBRTERE141
FI4ENGEMBERR - BESTEEMEE
20223831 HIEFERIERARE
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ESERE

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five years ended 31 March 2022 is set out
on page 228 of this report. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed under the section “Future Plans and Use
of Proceeds” in the prospectus of the Company dated 21
December 2018 (the “Prospectus”) and in the paragraph headed
"Comparison of implementation plans for business strategies with
actual implementation progress” in this report, the Group does not
have any future plans for material investments or capital assets as
at the date of this report.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES OR
JOINT VENTURES

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group did not have
any significant investments, material acquisitions nor disposals of
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE SHARE OFFER

On the Listing Date, the Company’s shares were listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange. A total of 100,000,000 new shares with
nominal value of HK$0.01 each of the Company were issued at
HK$0.60 per share for a total of approximately HK$60.0 million.
The Net Proceeds received by the Company from the Share Offer,
after deduction of the underwriting commission and related
expenses in connection with the Share Offer, was approximately
HK$34.8 million. The Net Proceeds, upon receipt by the Company
after Listing, has been deposited at a bank and such Net Proceeds
will be applied in the manners consistent with the proposed
applications set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use
of Proceeds” in the Prospectus, the UOP Announcement and the
Supplemental Announcement.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ESERE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2022 are set out in note 12
to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK OVERDRAFT AND BORROWING

The banking facilities available to the Group was approximately
HK$11.0 million and approximately HK$10.5 million of the banking
facilities was utilised.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

The Group has not capitalised any interest during the year ended 31
March 2022.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2022 are set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company'’s securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2022 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 144.

VENC Y54

BE20226F3831HIEFE  7EBYE BB

KRB FH N R HRARMEE12

IRITEZ K fETR

AEBEFERSHNRTRENSI.0BEET,

B#M105BBBTHRITREESH B
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EERF] R -
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ESERE

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2022, the Company did not have any reserves
available for distribution as calculated in accordance with the
relevant provisions of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Since the Listing Date and up to 31 March 2022, there has been no
purchase, sale or redemption of any Company’s listed securities.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 March
2022 and up to the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Law Ming Yik (Chairman)
Mr. Li Isaiah (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Fenn David
Mr. Wong Ka Chun Matthew
Mr. Ho Cheung Kong

Pursuant to article 84 of the Articles, one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation at each AGM provided that every Director shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election at the relevant
AGM.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ESERE

Confirmation of Independence

Each independent non-executive Director has given the Company
an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the
independent non-executive Directors are independent and meet
the independent guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS OF
APPOINTMENT

(a) Executive Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company on 11 December 2018 for an
initial term of three years commencing from the Listing Date
and shall continue thereafter unless terminated in accordance
with the terms therein. Under the terms of the service contract,
the service contract may be terminated by not less than three
months’ notice served by either party on the other. The term of
service of a Director is subject to the provisions on retirement
by rotation of Directors as set out in the Articles.

(b) Independent Non-executive Director

Each of the independent non-executive Director has signed
a letter of appointment with the Company and which may
be terminated by not less than one month’s notice served by
either party on the other. The term of service of a Director is
subject to the provisions on retirement by rotation of Directors
as set out in the Articles.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has or is proposed
to have a service contract and/or a letter of appointment with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries (other than contracts expiring
or determinable by the Company or its subsidiaries, as applicable
within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation).
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ESERE

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

The emolument of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee by reference to the benchmarking of
the market. The Company also looks into individual Director’s
competence, duties, responsibilities, performance.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration committee will review and determine the
remuneration and compensation packages of the Directors with
reference to their responsibilities, workload, time devoted to the
Group and the performance of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 126 to 132 of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report, no transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance to which the Company, any of its
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its parent company was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year ended
31 March 2022 or at any time during the year ended 31 March
2022.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ESERE

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year ended at 31 March 2022, the Company did not
enter into or have any management and/or administration contracts
in respect of the whole or any principal business of the Company.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this report, the Directors
are not aware of any business and interest of the Directors nor
the controlling shareholders of the Company (the “Controlling
Shareholder(s)”) nor any of their respective close associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) that compete or may compete
with the business of the Group and any other conflict of interests
which any such person has or may have with the Group since the
Listing Date and up to the date of this report. The independent non-
executive Directors confirmed that the internal control measures in
relation to managing actual or potential conflict of interest of the
Group have been properly implemented.
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ESERE

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS BY THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

On 11 December 2018, Mr. Law Ming Yik and Fully Fort Group
Limited (“Fully Fort”), the Controlling Shareholders, entered
into a deed of non-competition (“Deed of Non-Competition”)
in favour of the Company (for itself and each of its subsidiaries),
pursuant to which each of Mr. Law Ming Yik and Fully Fort has
irrevocably and unconditionally, jointly and severally, warranted and
undertaken with the Company that, immediately upon the Share
Offer becoming unconditional, each of them shall not, and shall
procure each of his/its close associates (“Controlled Persons”) and
any company directly or indirectly controlled by Mr. Law Ming Yik
and Fully Fort (except for the members the Group) (”Controlled
Company”) not to except through any member of our Group,
directly or indirectly (whether on its own account or with each other
or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person or company, or as
principal or agent, through any body corporate, partnership, joint
venture or other contractual arrangement and whether for profit
or otherwise), carry on, engage in, invest or acquire or hold any
rights or be interested or otherwise involved in any business that
is similar to or in competition directly or indirectly with or is likely
to be in competition with any business currently and from time to
time engaged by the Group in Hong Kong and any other country
or jurisdiction to which the Group carries on business or grants
franchise from time to time (“Restricted Business”).
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Mr. Law Ming Yik and Fully Fort further undertake that when any
Controlled Persons and/or any Controlled Company is offered or
becomes aware of any new project or business opportunity (“New
Business Opportunity”) directly or indirectly to engage or become
interested in a Restricted Business, he/it (i) shall promptly notify
the Company of such New Business Opportunity in writing, refer
the same to the Company for consideration first and provide such
information as may be reasonably required by the Company to
make an informed assessment of such New Business Opportunity;
and (ii) shall not, and shall procure that the Controlled Persons
or Controlled Company not to, invest or participate in any such
New Business Opportunity unless such New Business Opportunity
is declined by the Company, or the Company does not proceed
with such New Business Opportunity within 30 business days from
the date of the written notice (of if requested by the Company
in writing, such 30 business days period may be extended to a
maximum of 60 business days), and the principal terms of which
he/it and/or his/its close associates invest or participate in are no
more favourable than those made available to the Company.

For further details of the Deed of Non-Competition, please refer to
the section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders —
Non-Competition Undertakings” in the Prospectus. Mr. Law Ming
Yik and Fully Fort have both confirmed to the Company of his/its
compliance with the Deed of Non-Competition from the Listing
Date up to the date of this report. The independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed
that all the undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition have
been complied by each of Mr. Law Ming Yik and Fully Fort and duly
enforced since the Listing Date and up to the date of this report.

DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

Since the Listing Date and up to 31 March 2022, there has been no
purchase, sale or redemption of any Company’s listed securities.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong, the
“SFO")) which were required (i) to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or (ii) to be
entered into the register required to be kept therein, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or (jii) to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by Directors to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

EERRBITHRABRE AT REMBEX
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*RE

122022 3R31H  EERARBERBITHA
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Long position in the shares RERGAHPNEFE
Percentage of
issued share
Capacity/ Number of capital of
Name of Director Nature of Interest shares the Company
HEAT]
BRITRAE
e 815 #wmE iR & E Bt
Mr. Law Ming Yik Interest in a controlled corporation 251,110,000 62.78%
(Note 1) shares (L)
(Note 2)
BmLESRE R EE T (HaE1) 251,110,000 62.78%
& B 17 (L)
(Hiz%2)
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Notes:

(1) The Company is owned as to 62.78% by Fully Fort which is wholly owned
by Mr. Law Ming Yik, the Chairman and an executive Director. Under the
SFO, Mr. Law Ming Yik is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Fully Fort.

(2)  The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the relevant shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO,
or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules, notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Interests and short positions of the substantial Shareholders
and other persons in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations

As at 31 March 2022, so far as it is known to the Directors, the
following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had or were deemed to have interests in shares or
underlying shares of the Company which (i) were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO, or (ii) which would fall to be disclosed under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and the GEM
Listing Rules, or (iii) who will be, directly or indirectly, be interested
in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of
any member of the Group.
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Number of Percentage of

Name of Shareholders Capacity/nature of interest shares held shareholding

RRER, s B wElE FHERMN#UE e =Rl oo

Mr. Law Ming Yik Interest in a controlled corporation 251,110,000 shares 62.78%
(Note 1) (Long position)

BRERE R EEE R (W) 251,110,00088 B& 15 62.78%
@A)

Fully Fort Group Limited Beneficial owner (Note 1) 251,110,000 shares 62.78%
(Long position)

EEEBRBRAR BmmEB A (Wat1) 251,110,0000% f& 15 62.78%
wa)

Note: Hat

1. The shares are held by Fully Fort, the equity interest of which is owned
as to 100% by Mr. Law Ming Yik. Mr. Law Ming Yik is deemed to be
interested in all the shares held by Fully Fort for the purpose of Part XV of
SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, the Directors have
not been notified by any person who had interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO, or which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

Share Option Scheme

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the rules of
the share option scheme conditionally adopted by the resolutions
in writing of all the Shareholders (the “Share Option Scheme”)
passed on 11 December 2018 (the “Adoption Date”). The Share
Option Scheme became effective on the Listing Date. The terms of
the Share Option Scheme are in accordance with the provisions of
Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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(a)

(b)

(o)

Purpose

The Share Option Scheme enables the Company to
grant options to subscribe for the Company’s shares (the
“Options”) to any director, employee or officer, consultant,
professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser
of or contractor to the Company or any of the subsidiaries
(the "Eligible Person”), as incentives or rewards for their
contributions to the Group.

Participants

The basis of eligibility of any person to the grant of any Option
shall be determined by the Board from time to time on the
basis of his or her contribution or potential contribution to the
development and growth of the Group.

Grant of Options

The Board shall not offer the grant of Options to any
Eligible Persons after an inside information has come to the
Company'’s knowledge until the Company has announced the
information in accordance with the requirements of the GEM
Listing Rules. In particular, during the period commencing
one month immediately preceding the earlier of (a) the date
of the Board meeting (as such date is first notified to the
Stock Exchange in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules)
for the approval of the Company’s results for any year, half-
year, quarter-year period or any other interim period (whether
or not required under the GEM Listing Rules), and (b) the
deadline for the Company to publish an announcement of
the results for any year, half-year or quarter-year period under
the GEM Listing Rules or any other interim period (whether or
not required under the GEM Listing Rules), and ending on the
date of the results announcement. The period during which
no Option may be granted will cover any period of delay in the

publication of a results announcement.

(a)

(b)

(c)
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Subject to paragraph (k) below, the total number of the
Company'’s shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the Options granted and to be granted to a participant under
the Share Option Scheme and other schemes (including both
exercised and outstanding Options) in any 12-month period
must not exceed 1% of the the Company’s shares from
time to time in issue, and provided that if approved by the
Shareholders in general meeting with such participant and his
or her close associates (or his or her associates if the participant
is a connected person) abstaining from voting, the Company
may make a further grant of Options to such participant (the
“Further Grant”) notwithstanding that the Further Grant
would result in the total number of the Company’s shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the Options granted
and to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and other
schemes to such participant (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding Options) in the 12-month period up to
and including the date of the Further Grant representing in
aggregate over 1% of the Company’s shares from time to time
in issue. In relation to the Further Grant, the Company must
send a circular to the Shareholders, which discloses, amongst
other, information from time to time as required by the GEM
Listing Rules, the number and the terms of the Options to
be granted. The number and terms (including the exercise
price) of the Option which is the subject of the Further Grant
shall be fixed before the relevant Shareholders” meeting and
the date of meeting of the Board for proposing the Further
Grant should be taken as the date of grant for the purpose of
calculating the exercise price.
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(d) Exercise Price

(e)

The exercise price for any shares under the Share Option
Scheme will be a price determined by the Board and notified
to each participant and shall be at least the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the Options,
which must be a trading day; (ii) the average of the closing
prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the relevant Options; and (iii)
the nominal value of a share on the date of the grant.

Maximum number of Shares

(i) The total number of shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all Options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and other schemes must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the Listing Date
(the “Scheme Mandate Limit"”) unless approved by the
Shareholders pursuant to the terms of the Share Option
Scheme. Options lapsed in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme or other schemes will not
be counted for the purpose of calculating the Scheme
Mandate Limit. On the basis of 400,000,000 shares in
issue on the Listing Date, the Scheme Mandate Limit will
be equivalent to 40,000,000 shares, representing 10% of
the shares in issue as at the Listing Date.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The Scheme Mandate Limit may be renewed by the
Shareholders in general meeting provided always that to
the extent that the total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all Options to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and other schemes under the
Scheme Mandate Limit so renewed must not exceed 10%
of the shares in issue as at the date of such Shareholders’
approval provided that Options previously granted under
the Share Option Scheme and other schemes (including
those exercised, outstanding, cancelled or lapsed in
accordance with the terms thereof) shall not be counted
for the purpose of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit
as renewed. In relation to the Shareholders’ approval
referred to in this paragraph (ii), the Company shall send
a circular to the Shareholders containing the information
from time to time as required by the GEM Listing Rules.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme and
the approval of Shareholders in general meeting, the
Company may also grant Options beyond the Scheme
Mandate Limit provided that Options in excess of the
Scheme Mandate Limit are granted only to Eligible
Persons specifically identified by the our Company before
such Shareholders’ approval is sought. In relation to the
Shareholders” approval referred to in this paragraph (iii),
the Company shall send a circular to the Shareholders
containing such relevant information from time to time as
required by the GEM Listing Rules.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Options may be
granted by the Company if the maximum number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding Options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and other schemes in
aggregate exceeds 30% of the Shares in issue from time
to time.
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(f)

(9)

No Option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the Share Option Scheme since the Listing Date and up
to 31 March 2022 and thereafter up to the date of this annual
report. Accordingly, the total number of shares available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme is 40,000,000 shares,
representing 10% of the issued shares as at the date of this
annual report.

Time of exercise of Option

An Option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during the applicable
option period, provided that, amongst others, the period
within which the Option must be exercised shall not be
more than 10 years from the date on which that Option is
deemed to have been granted. The exercise of an Option may
be subject to the achievement of performance target and/
or any other conditions to be notified by the Board to each
participant, which the Board may in its absolute discretion
determine.

Rights are personal to grantee

An Option shall be personal to the participant and shall not
be assignable or transferable and no participant shall in any
way sell, transfer, charge, mortgage, encumber or create any
interest whether legal or beneficial in favour of any third party
over or in relation to any Option. Any breach of the foregoing
by the participant shall entitle the Company to cancel any
Option or any part thereof granted to such Participant (to the
extent not already exercised) without incurring any liability on
the Company.

(f)

(9)
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(h) Minimum period for which an option must be held

(i)

()

116

before it can be exercised

There is no minimum period for which an option granted must
be held before it can be exercised except otherwise imposed
by the Board.

Amount payable on application or acceptance of the
Option and the period within which payments or calls
must or may be made, or loans for such purposes must
be repaid

The Eligible Person shall remit HK$1.00 to the Company as
consideration for the grant upon acceptance of the Option.
The Option shall be offered for acceptance for a period of
seven days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made.

Period of Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing on the Listing Date, after
which no further Options will be issued but the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect
in all other respects and the Options granted during the life of
the Share Option Scheme may continue to be exercisable in
accordance with their terms of issue.

The Board may impose such terms and conditions on the offer
of Option(s) either on a case-by-case basis or generally as are
not inconsistent with the Share Option Scheme, including but
not limited to the minimum period for which such an Option
must be held, if applicable.
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k) MEF ZSTHAEBRTERFAKS

(k) Granting of Options to a Director, chief executive or

substantial Shareholder or any of their respective
associates

Any grant of Options to any Director, chief executive or
substantial Shareholder, or any of their respective associates,
must be approved by the Independent non-executive Directors
(excluding any independent non-executive Director who is a
proposed participant). If a grant of Options to a substantial
Shareholder or an independent non-executive Director, or any
of their respective associates will result in the total number
of the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
Options granted and to be granted (including the Options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in
any 12-month period up to and including the date of the
grant (i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% (or such other
percentage as may from time to time specified by the Stock
Exchange) of the shares in issue, and (ii) having an aggregate
value, based on the closing price of the shares at the date
of each grant, in excess of HK$5 million, such further grant
of Options must be approved by the Shareholders on a poll
in a general meeting. The participant, his or her associates
and all core connected persons of the Company must
abstain from voting in favour at such general meeting. The
Company will send a circular to the Shareholders containing
the information as required under the GEM Listing Rules. In
addition, Shareholders’ approval as described above will also
be required for any change in terms of the Options granted to
a participant who is a substantial Shareholder, an independent
non-executive Director or any of their respective associates.
The circular must contain the following:
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(i) details of the number and terms of the Options (including
the exercise price relating thereto) to be granted to each
Eligible Person, which must be fixed before the relevant
Shareholders’” meeting, and the date of Board meeting for
proposing such further grant should be taken as the date
of grant for the purpose of calculating the Exercise Price;

(i) a recommendation from the Company’s Independent
non-executive Directors (excluding any independent non-
executive Director who is a proposed participant) to the
independent Shareholders as to voting; and

(iii) all the information as required under the GEM Listing
Rules from time to time.

For the avoidance of doubt, the requirements for the granting
of Options to a Director or chief executive of the Company set
out in this paragraph do not apply where the Eligible Person
is only a proposed Director or proposed chief executive of the
Company.

Equity-Linked Agreement

Save for the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements
that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that require
the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result
in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company
during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

Competing Interests

The Directors confirm that none of the Controlling Shareholders
or the Directors and their respective close associates (as defined
in the GEM Listing Rules) is interested in any business apart from
the business operated by the Group which competes or is likely to
compete, directly or indirectly, with the Group's business during the
Reporting Period and up to the date of this report.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, the
Company confirms that all of the Directors complied with such
required standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Apart from those as disclosed in the paragraph under “Interests
and Short Positions of Directors and Chief Executive in the
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and
its Associated Corporations”, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company granted to any directors or
their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were
any rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable to the Directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporation.
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Save as disclosed above and as provided in the Share Option
Scheme, at no time during the year ended 31 March 2022 and up
to the date of this report was the Company, any of its subsidiaries,
its associated companies or its holding companies a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors or the chief executive of the
Company to hold any interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company and/or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of the SFO).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Directors are aware, the Group has complied in
material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Group. During the year ended 31 March 2022, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations by the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the aggregate amount of
turnover attributed to the Group's largest and the five largest
customers accounted for 27.8% and 81.5% (2021: 23.8% and
77.2%) of the total revenue of the Group, respectively. For the
year ended 31 March 2022, the Group's purchase from the largest
and the five largest suppliers accounted for 50.6% and 100.0%
(2021: 55.1% and 100%) of the total purchases of the Group,
respectively. At no time during the year ended 31 March 2022 did
the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) have any interest in the Group’s
major customers or suppliers as disclosed above.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1.

Master Supply Agreement

Pursuant to the supply framework agreement (the
“Agreement”) dated 11 December 2018 and made between
Wing Fung Co. ("Wing Fung”) and Wing Ko Petroleum
Chemistry (China-Hong Kong) Limited (formerly known as
Wing Ko Petroleum Chemistry (China-Hong Kong) Limited
("Wing Ko")), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
the Group will supply diesel oil and diesel exhaust fluid to
Wing Fung for a term commencing from the Listing Date to 31
March 2021 in accordance with the terms of the Agreement.
Since Wing Fung is wholly owned by Ms. Law So Lin, the
aunt of Mr. Law Ming Yik, the Controlling Shareholder and
an executive Director, Wing Fung is a connected person of
the Company and the transactions contemplated under the
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for
the Group under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
Stock Exchange has granted a waiver from strict compliance
with the requirements in respect of the relevant continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

The annual cap (“Annual Cap”) under the Agreement for the
three financial years ended 31 March 2019, 2020 and 2021
were HK$13.0 million per year. The sell price and terms have
been determined in accordance with the pricing policies and
guideline set out in the Prospectus.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the total sale of
diesel oil and diesel exhaust fluid to Wing Fung by the
Group amounted to HK0.6 million (2021: HK$13.0 million)
which were fully exempted from announcement, reporting,
annual review and shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. The continuing
connected transactions were entered into in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group and on normal
commercial terms.
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Review by the independent non-executive Directors and
Auditors

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
in respect of the Agreement, the transactions were carried out
during the year (1) in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group; (2) on normal commercial or better terms; and
(3) according to the Agreement governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders

as a whole.

The independent auditors of the Company have performed
procedures on the above continuing connected transactions of
the Company and issued a letter to the Board confirming that:

(1) nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe the above continuing connected transactions
have not been approved by the Board;

(2) for transactions involving the provision of goods
or services by the Group, nothing has come to
their attention that causes them to believe that the
transactions were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

(3) nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe the transactions were not entered into, in
all material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing the transactions; and

(4) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to

believe that the above continuing connected transactions
have exceeded the Annual Cap.
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The material related party transactions entered into by the
Group are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements to this report. Save as disclosed above, none of the
related party transactions constituted a connected transaction
or continuing connected transaction (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) that was required to be disclosed. All the
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
had complied with the disclosure requirements of the GEM
Listing Rules.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board considers good corporate governance a key element in
managing the business and affairs of the Group. The management
of the Group periodically reviews and proposes amendments to
its corporate governance practices for compliance with the CG
Code. In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with
the CG Code during the Report Period. Details of the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 22 to 42 of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
report the Company has maintained a sufficient public float as
required under the GEM Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive or similar rights under the
laws of Cayman Islands or the Articles which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing
Shareholders.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year ended 31 March 2022, a directors’ liability
insurance was currently in place to protect the Directors against
potential costs and liabilities arising from claims brought against the
Directors.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had 23 employees in Hong Kong
(2021: 27 employees in Hong Kong). The remuneration package
the Group offered to our employees includes salary, bonuses and
other cash subsidies. In general, the Group determines employees’
salaries based on each employee’s qualifications, position and
seniority. The Group has designed an annual review system to assess
the performance of our employees, which forms the basis of its
decisions with respect to salary raises, bonuses and promotions.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Company as well as a discussion
and analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and the
material factors underlying its results and financial position can be
found in the management discussion and analysis set out on pages
7 to 21 of this annual report. These discussions form part of this
report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group strives to operate in compliance with the applicable
environmental protection laws and methods to minimise the
adverse effects of its existing business activities on the environment.
Details of the environmental policies and performance are set out
in the section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” on pages 43 to 98 of this report.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM of the Company will be held on Wednesday, 31 August
2022, while the notice and circular convening the AGM will be
published and dispatched to the Shareholders in the form required
in the GEM Listing Rules in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to establish entitlements to attend and vote at the
forthcoming AGM, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from 26 August 2022 to 31 August 2022, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of the shares of
the Company will be registered. Shareholders are reminded to
ensure that all completed share transfer forms accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company'’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong (if the transfer will be lodged before 15 August 2022)
or 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong
Kong (if the transfer will be lodged on or after 15 August 2022) not
later than 4:30 p.m. on 25 August 2022.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statement for the year ended 31 March
2022 has been audited by Mazars CPA Limited, who shell retire at
the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, shall offer themselves for
re-appointment.

By order of the Board
SUN KONG HOLDINGS LIMITED

LAW Ming Yik
Chairman
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Law Ming Yik (Z855%) (“"Mr. Law"), aged 34, is the
executive Director, Chairman, compliance officer, chairman of the
Nomination Committee, member of the Remuneration Committee
and the director of Wing Ko and Forever Treasure Holdings Limited,
being the Group's subsidiaries. He is responsible for overseeing
all aspects of the Group’s operations, strategic planning and
formulation of corporate policies. He was appointed as the Director
on 31 October 2017 and was re-designated as an executive
Director on 24 November 2017. Mr. Law is the cousin of Mr. Li
Isaiah, one of the executive Directors.

Mr. Law has over 14 years of experience in the sale and transport of
diesel oil and related products. Mr. Law joined Wing Ko in July 2006
and was appointed as the director of Wing Ko in March 2012. He
was responsible for overseeing Wing Ko's daily operation, including
but not limited to maintaining stable relationship with the Group’s
key customers and the Group’s key suppliers, which are mainly
authorised agent(s) appointed by the Oil Major(s), monitoring the
logistics of projects and managing its corporate accounting and
administrative matters. In 2012, the HKSAR Government started
implementing Euro V vehicle emission standards in phases with an
aim to reduce vehicle emission. Seeing the market potential for
products which would help lower the diesel exhaust emissions from
diesel engines, Mr. Law led the Group to expand the business into
the sale of diesel exhaust fluid as its ancillary product in April 2013.
The Directors believe that his insightful vision is instrumental to the
success of the Group.

Mr. Law obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Design majoring in interior
design from Raffles College of Design and Commerce in August
2009 and an Advanced Diploma in Interior Design in from Raffles
Design Institute in September 2009, in Shanghai, China.

Saved as disclosed above, he was not a director in any listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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Mr. Li Isaiah () (“Mr. Li”), aged 37, was appointed as
the Director and was redesignated as an executive Director on
24 November 2017. Mr. Isaiah Li is the cousin of Mr. Law, the
Controlling Shareholder and the executive Director.

Mr. Li joined the Group in September 2009 and is responsible
for the overall management of its business. He has more than
five years of experience in the area of business administration
and information technology (“IT"). Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Li worked as an IT support in the DBS Bank from July 2004
to December 2004. He had also been an IT support in the Audit
Commission (HKSAR) from January 2005 to June 2005. From
October 2005 to March 2006, he was also a training facilitator in
Bright Long Company, a company principally engaged in tutoring
primary school students. He had also been a sales representative
in Gennett International Limited, a company principally engaged
in sale of electronics, from April 2006 to September 2006. Mr. Li
worked as an IT & Administrative Officer in Million Travel Co., a
company principally engaged in management of carparks from
October 2006 to August 2009.

Mr. Li has obtained a Diploma in Computer Science in Chu Hai
College of Higher Education in July 2006.

Saved as disclosed above, he was not a director in any listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fenn David GE72/&) (“Mr. Fenn"), aged 41, was appointed
as the independent non-executive Director on 11 December 2018.
Mr. Fenn is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee.

Mr. Fenn obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Laws and the
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from The University of Hong Kong
in December 2002 and June 2003, respectively. He subsequently
obtained a master of laws degree in banking and finance from
University College London, University of London in the United
Kingdom in November 2006. He was admitted as a solicitor of the
High Court of Hong Kong in September 2005, and is currently a
member of the Law Society of Hong Kong.

Mr. Fenn has over 12 years of experience in the legal profession.

Mr. Fenn has a number of governmental appointments and serves
on statutory appeal panels and professional bodies. He has been a
Civil Celebrant of Marriages in Hong Kong since 2015. He has also
been a disciplinary panel member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since February 2016 and a member of
the Appeal Panel (Housing) of the Transport and Housing Bureau
of Hong Kong since April 2017, respectively. He has also been an
adjudicator of the Registration of Persons Tribunal of Hong Kong
since November 2013.

Mr. Fenn has been appointed as the independent non-executive
director of Stream Ideas Group Limited (stock code: 8401), a
company whose shares are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange,
since March 2018. Further, he was appointed as the independent
non-executive director of Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments
Limited (stock code: 1082), a company whose shares are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, in May 2018.

Saved as disclosed above, he was not a director in any listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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Mr. Wong Ka Chun Matthew (&3 12) (“Mr. Wong"), aged 34,
was appointed as the independent non-executive Director on 11
December 2018. Mr. Wong is a member of the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Wong has over ten years of experience in corporate finance
and auditing. Mr. Wong obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Business,
specialised in Accounting, Banking and Finance from Monash
University, Melbourne, Australia in September 2011. He has also
been a member of the CPA Australia since January 2016, a member
of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants since
December 2016, and a member of Chartered Global Management
Accountant since December 2016.

Mr. Wong was an auditor in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
from September 2011 to November 2013, an auditor in
PricewaterhouseCoopers from December 2013 to March 2017,
the assistant vice president in the investment banking division
of Zhongtai International Capital Limited from March 2017 to
December 2017 and the vice president in the investment banking
division of GF Capital (Hong Kong) Limited from December 2017
to June 2019. He is currently the assistant vice president in the
corporate finance division of Ample Capital Limited. During
his employment with Zhongtai International Capital Limited,
GF Capital (Hong Kong) Limited and Ample Capital Limited,
Mr. Wong executed a wide variety of capital markets and corporate
finance transactions, including initial public offerings, mergers
and acquisitions, equity fund raisings, structured finance and
compliance advisory.

Saved as disclosed above, he was not a director in any listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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Mr. Ho Cheung Kong (fJ&;1)(“Mr. Ho"), aged 47, was
appointed as the independent non-executive Director on 11
December 2018. Mr. Ho is the chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Ho became a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in May 2003 and obtained a Bachelor’s degree
of Commerce in Accounting in Hong Kong Shue Yan University in
November 2008. Mr. Ho subsequently became a practicing member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in May
2009. He also became a fellow member and certified tax advisor of
the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong in July 2010.

Mr. Ho has over 20 years of experience in the accounting and audit
industry. In particular, he has experience in auditing several listed
companies in Hong Kong. From August 2000 to September 2009,
Mr. Ho was a manager of FTW & Partners CPA Ltd. Mr. Ho was
subsequently promoted in October 2009 and became a Principal
and Director of FTW & Partners CPA Ltd up to present.

Saved as disclosed above, he was not a director in any listed
companies for the last three preceding years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Law Sung Fai (ZB518) (“"Mr. S.F. Law"), aged 49, is our
chief operating officer and is responsible for overseeing the daily
operation of the Group.

Mr. S.F. Law has joined the Group since July 2006. Mr. S.F. Law
has over 21 years of experience in the business of sale and
transportation of diesel oil. Prior to joining the Group, from May
1999 to May 2006, Mr. S.F. Law was the manager of Centre
Transportation Co., a company principally engaging in the business
of transportation of diesel oil, and was responsible for managing,
repairing and maintaining its fleet of tank wagons and its business
operations.
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Ms. Mo Yan Ting (EE ) ("Ms. Mo"), aged 53, is the Group
chief financial officer and is responsible for the general financial
management of the Group. Ms. Mo has joined the Group since
October 2017.

Ms. Mo obtained a Diploma in Business from the Auckland
University of Technology in October 2000. She subsequently
obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Business in Accounting also
in Auckland University of Technology in April 2003. Ms. Mo
completed the graduate conversion course in accounting in the
Sydney University of Technology in December 2006. Since January
2007, she has been a member of the CPA Australia.

Ms. Mo has over 22 years of experience in the accounting industry,
especially with presence in Australia. From May 1997 to February
2003, she worked in Westpac Bank New Zealand in Auckland and
her last position was an accountant assistant. From April 2003
to June 2005, she was an accountant at Longway Industrial &
Development Pty Ltd in Sydney. She then worked as an accountant
in Western Union Financial Services (Australia) Pty Ltd in Sydney
from June 2005 to June 2007. Later, she moved her accounting
practice back to Hong Kong. From August 2007 to March 2013,
she was an accountant manager at Greatsino International (HK) Ltd.
From April 2013 to August 2017, she was an accountant manager
at O'Laughlin Corporation Ltd in Hong Kong.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Cheuk Wai G2{£) ("Mr. Leung”), aged 38, was
appointed as the company secretary of the Group on 24 November
2017.

Prior to his appointment with the Group, Mr. Leung has
accumulated over 12 years of experience in the accounting, audit,
tax and company secretary fields. In June 2007, he joined FTW &
Partners CPA Limited, an audit firm based in Hong Kong, as an
accountant trainee. In August 2008, Mr. Leung served in Pearson
Fearn & Co., an audit firm based in Hong Kong, as their senior
accountant. In August 2013, Mr. Leung joined AE Majoris CPA
& Co, an audit firm based in Hong Kong, as their audit principal
and was promoted to audit partner in March 2016 and AE
Majoris Advisory Limited, a firm principally engaged in provision
of corporate advisory services, and his last position was senior
manager. In July 2017, Mr. Leung joined Alchemist Corporate
Advisory Limited, a company engaged in provision of corporate
advisory services, and was appointed as the executive director.

Mr. Leung obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration
in Accounting from the Open University of Hong Kong in December
2007 and has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since May 2012.

COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Mr. Law is an executive Director and the compliance officer of the

Company. His biographical details and qualification are set out on
page 126 of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZHENES

mazdars

To the members of
Sun Kong Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sun Kong
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 141 to 227, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2022, and of its financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Companies Ordinance.

MazArs CPA LIMITED

PRI (FE) il A A
42nd Floor, Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

T Vs ¥ T Vi 5 9 1 8 9% P B IR 40
Tel E#f: (852) 2909 5555

Fax {#H.: (852) 2810 0032

Email % %: info@mazars.hk

Website #&1k: www.mazars.hk
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
| EN RS

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

The key audit matter
FREEER

Loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL

”

BT EE @

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANVESH M AR IERRBENSE

") of trade receivables

B G BIIBERRIEE R 1R (IFRRIIS BRTHR)) BB 1R

Refer to Notes 2, 15 and 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

BB G R B IR 5E2 ~ 15K27

At 31 March 2022, the net carrying amount of trade
receivables amounted to approximately HK$59,264,000
(2021: HK$50,058,000), which approximated 83%
(2021: 77%) of the Group's total assets. Loss allowance
for trade receivables was approximately HK$4,154,000
(2021: HK$3,258,000).

1£2022F3B31H  BSRBREBERED FEN
59,264,00058 7T (20214 . 50,058,000 ) » H4
% BEEBEEMRENS3I% (2021F :77%) - B5
FE U TR IE B9 RS 1R 54V 754,154,00058 7T (20214F *
3,258,000 7T) °

Management assessed the provision for ECL of trade
receivables based on the historical default rate, and is
adjusted for forward-looking estimates, such as expected
significant changes in general economic environment
and the business operation of the Group.

EEEENELEOXRT G E S BBARIERNTEHRE
EBEBZEEG LA B hst NBREHEIIRIE

We have identified the above matter as a key audit
matter due to the application of significant judgements
by the management over assessing the credit standing of
the Group’s customers and therefore the estimation of
ECL of trade receivables.

BAER LiEEmE MRS EE HREERE
Rt BEEREFERFNEARIKREILGEE SR
WRRIE 2 TRHR{E B A5 18RS R R E K H i o

> 4

Our key audit procedures included:

RANTESEEFEE

e understanding, through enquiry with the
management, the established policies and
procedures on credit risk management of trade
receivables;

e HEEBEEEBUTHRESRUNREEFEERMERE
ZHEBRKRERF ;

e assessing and evaluating the design of controls
with respect to the identification of receivables with
overdue or default payments; and

o PR 5T AE & TE M B 380 BA 30 HE R 1 RR AT B LR
TERVIERIIEM 2 85t 5 &

e  assessing management’s judgement over the ECL
and creditworthiness of the customers by assessing
the available information, such as background
information of the customers, past settlement
records of the customers, concentration risk of
customers, the Group's actual loss experience, latest
economic environment and subsequent settlement
of the trade receivables.

e BBFGEIEEMNELR IXRFERER -ER
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REBAR RSEIRIE R E S RIGRIENE
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ZEH9HIER o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the 2022 annual report of the Company but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e I|dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group'’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law and
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 23 June 2022

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Fung Shiu Hang

Practising Certificate number: P04793
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HMEERE B ER

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other income

Administrative and other operating

expenses

Impairment loss on trade and

other receivables
Finance costs

Loss before tax
Income tax credit

Loss and total comprehensive

loss for the year

Loss per share
Basic

Diluted

Wi 2
IHE R

E#
HAUWA

TEREMEER

B 5 Kk B A EWRRIR YR

BEE
RAE A

PRIR ARS8
FriSiiitse

FEBEREEEGRETE

SARES1E
B

i3]

Notes

Kzt

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$°000
F#ET FET
230,915 240,112
(224,026) (237,976)
6,889 2,136
325 1,247
(9,043) (9,406)
(1,024) (1,995)
(281) (204)
(3,134) (8,222)

- 719
(3,134) (7,503)
HK cents HK cents
A A
(0.78) (1.88)
(0.78) (1.88)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FAaMBRRAR

At 31 March 2022 j$20224F3431H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Deposit paid for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL")

Current assets

Trade receivables

Other receivables

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade payables
Other payables
Bank overdrafts
Lease liabilities
Bank borrowings

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities, net
Lease liabilities

NET ASSETS

Notes
KiaE

ERIEE
D2~ R R ek 12
TRU BB Y BB R R
Fr{dit &
EREEE 13
BBERENTEE
(FERBEHEATE

R NEHREE 14
MENEE
& 5 e EIE 15
HAthEW=IE 16
IRITER AR 17
mEaE
&5 I8 18
B ZIa 19
BITEX 17
HEaE 13
BITER 20
RENEEFEE
BEMAGERRAaE
ERHEE
FIERRIE & &3 58 21
HEaE 13
BEEFRE
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2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FEIT
7,782 7,786
- 1,250

260 651
1,714 =
9,756 9,687
59,264 50,058
629 3,071
1,941 2,056
61,834 55,185
5,332 5,033
3,477 2,694
4,739 1,270
299 418
5,719 =
19,566 9,415
42,268 45,770
52,024 55,457
- 299

- 299
52,024 55,158




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FAaMBRRR

At 31 March 2022 j$20224F3431H

Capital and reserves BARKH#E
Share capital %N
Reserves B
TOTAL EQUITY R4

These consolidated financial statements on pages 141 to 227 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
and signed on its behalf by

LAW Ming Yik
BHE
Director

EFE

2022 2021
20224 20214

Notes HK$’000 HK$000
HiaE FHET FETT
22 4,000 4,000
48,024 51,158

52,024 55,158
HNE141E227EMZE TR EE

ESTHERRENE TR THEFAKRE
=z

LI Isaiah
FHOEE
Director

EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEmEHR

Year ended 31 March 2022 #2022 3/531H IEFZ

Reserve
izl
Share Share Capital Accumulated
capital premium reserve profits Total Total
RE  ROEE BFHE  RiEd st st

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET

(Note 22)  (Note 23())  (Note 23(b))

Waz22)  (Wa2236)  (H223m)

At 1 April 2020 1202054810 4,000 44,810 10 13,841 58,661 62,661
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year  FE 518 R 2 HEEA%E - = = (7,503) (7,503) (7,503)
At 31 March 2021 12021438318 4,000 44,810 10 6,338 51,158 55,158
At 1 April 2021 1202154518 4000 443810 10 6338 51158 55158

Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year FEEER 2 EEERRE - - (3,134) (3,134) (3,134)

At 31 March 2022 1£202243H31H 4,000 44,810

-
o

3,204 48,024 52,024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mMEBRHERER

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Finance costs

Interest income

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Fair value loss on financial assets
at FVPL

Impairment loss on trade and
other receivables

Changes in working capital:

Trade receivables
Other receivables
Trade payables
Other payables

Cash (used in) generated
from operations
Interest paid

Income tax refunded

Net cash (used in) generated from
operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment
Purchase of financial assets at FVPL

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Deposit paid for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment

SR

BRI AR 18
EREEENE

ME BB RRFEITE

R E B2
F B WA
HEME - -BERRHEZ
W
ERBmE AT EFERN
TREEAFEGE
8 5 K B A FEWGRIB YR
BFEE
EEESEE
8 5 B URIE
H thFEURIE
B 5 B RUR
H A FE A RRIB

K& PR FrifRE

BHHE
BRFEHR

eEER (FA) FRiSRE
FER

REES
BEYE -BEKRRE

BEZBBmEATER
ENTMEE

HEYE BB MR PR
/R

TR B2 BB S sr
Fr{d ¥

Net cash used in investing activities X E ESFTRIREFEE

> 4

Notes

Kzt

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
(3,134) (8,222)
391 396
2,668 2,718
281 204
(44) =
(281) =
286 =
1,024 1,995
(10,102) 3,018
2,314 (1,828)
298 3,189
(268) 801
(6,567) 2,271
(257) (172)

- 1,527
(6,824) 3,626
(401) (1,827)
(1,956) =
320 36

- (1,250)
(2,037) (3,041)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HEHERER

Year ended 31 March 2022 #2022 3/531H IEFZ

Notes
k=3
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Inception of bank borrowings MESRITEN
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITER
Repayment of lease liabilities BEEEERE
Net cash from (used in) financing RYE;EZEIFRE (FRA) IRE
activities BRE 24
Net (decrease) increase in cash and IREKRIRESEEY G
cash equivalents EINFEE
Cash and cash equivalents at the  (REHIFMIRE K
beginning of the reporting period RE&%EY
Cash and cash equivalents at the  (REHIKRIBE K
end of the reporting period HEEEYW
Analysis of the balances of RERFEEBEMH
cash and cash equivalents BEERD
Bank balances and cash IRITHER R IRE
Bank overdrafts IR1TEX
17
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2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
6,000 =
(281) =
(442) (425)
5,277 (425)
(3,584) 160
786 626
(2,798) 786
1,941 2,056
(4,739) (1,270)
(2,798) 786




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR MG

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sun Kong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in
the Cayman Islands on 31 October 2017 under the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands. The address of the Company’s registered
office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal place of
business is situated at 20/F., Glassview Commercial Building,
No. 65 Castle Peak Road Yuen Long, Yuen Long, New
Territories, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the Company together with its subsidiaries (“the Group”)
are principally engaged in sales of diesel oil and related
products in Hong Kong. The details of the subsidiaries are set
out in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
The consolidated financial statements also comply with the
disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance and the
applicable disclosure requirements under the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$ "), which is also the functional currency of
the Company. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest
thousand, unless otherwise indicated.

> 4

—RER

RBERBRAR (TEKAF) 1KR2017F
10B3 1B REREHEEMFE 28 AF
%= (1961 FFE35EA KRR E RIES]) 1T
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8 o AT R E M EEM U B Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR M

Year ended 31 March 2022 #2022 3/531H IEFZ

2.

148

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted
in the 2021 consolidated financial statements, except for the
adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the
Group and effective from the current year.

Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKFRSs 4, 7, 9 and 16 Reform — Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions Beyond
30 June 2021

SUN KONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021/2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR MG

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRSs 4, 7, 9 and 16: Interest
Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect financial
reporting when a company replaces the old interest rate
benchmark with an alternative benchmark rate as a result
of the interest rate benchmark reform (the “Reform”). The
amendments complement those issued in November 2019
and relate to:

e changes to contractual cash flows — a company will not
have to derecognise or adjust the carrying amount of
financial instruments for changes required by the Reform,
but will instead update the effective interest rate to reflect
the change to the alternative benchmark rate;

e hedge accounting — a company will not have to
discontinue its hedge accounting solely because it makes
changes required by the Reform, if the hedge meets other
hedge accounting criteria; and

e disclosures — a company will be required to disclose
information about new risks arising from the Reform and
how it manages the transition to alternative benchmark
rates.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

2.

FEEFER @
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BEHEEEREI99 BB BIREER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR M

Year ended 31 March 2022 & Z202243/531H IFFZ

2.

150

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 16: Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions Beyond 30 June 2021

The amendments exempt lessees from having to consider
individual lease contracts to determine whether rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the covid-19
pandemic are lease modifications and allow lessees to
account for such rent concessions as if they were not lease
modifications. It applies to covid-19-related rent concessions
that reduce lease payments due on or before 30 June 2022.
The amendments do not affect lessors.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted by the
Group in preparing the consolidated financial statements is set
out below.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is historical cost, except
for financial assets at FVPL, which is stated at fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting year as that of the Company using consistent
accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR MG

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intra-group balance, transactions, income and expenses
and profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position which is
presented in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment
loss. The carrying amount of the investments is reduced to
its recoverable amount on an individual basis, if it is higher
than the recoverable amount. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit or loss
during the year in which they are incurred.

> 4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR M

Year ended 31 March 2022 #2022 3/531H IEFZ

2.

152

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less accumulated
impairment losses of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives as set out below from the date on which
they are available for use and after taking into account their
estimated residual values, using the straight-line method.
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis and depreciated separately:

Leasehold improvements 5 years/over the unexpired
term of lease, whichever is

shorter
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the year in
which the item is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR MG

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. FEGHEXK @

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group’s contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) the Group transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset but it does not
retain control of the financial asset.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises the financial asset to
the extent of its continuing involvement and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR M

Year ended 31 March 2022 #2022 3/531H IEFZ

2.

154

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a
significant financing component) are initially recognised at
their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not carried
at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets. Such trade receivables are
initially measured at their transaction price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i)
measured at amortised cost; (i) debt investment measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income; (iii)
equity investment measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income; or (iv) measured at FVPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent
to their initial recognition unless the Group changes its
business model for managing them, in which case all affected
financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first
annual reporting period, where appropriate, following the
change in the business model.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR MG

Year ended 31 March 2022 & Z20224F3/531H IFFZ

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both
of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVPL:

(i) itis held within a business model whose objective is to
hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses arising from impairment,
derecognition or through the amortisation process are
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group's financial assets at amortised cost include trade
and other receivables and bank balances and cash.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR M

Year ended 31 March 2022 & Z202243/531H IFFZ

2.

156

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at FVPL

These investments include financial assets that are not
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, including financial
assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon
initial recognition as at FVPL, financial assets resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies and financial assets
that are otherwise required to be measured at FVPL. They
are carried at fair value, with any resultant gain and loss
recognised in profit or loss, which includes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets. Dividend or interest
income is presented separately from fair value gain or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:

(i)  acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near
term;

(i) part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
are managed together and for which there is evidence
of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking on

initial recognition; or

(iii) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee contract or
not a designated and effective hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR MG

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at FVPL (Continued)

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition as at
FVPL only if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising the gains or losses on them on different bases.
The Group's financial assets measured at FVPL include unlisted
investment in key management insurance contracts.
Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the

liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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2.

158

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of
the financial liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, bank overdrafts, bank borrowings and lease
liabilities. All financial liabilities, are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method, unless the effect of discounting
would be insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECL") on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost to which the impairment requirements apply in
accordance with HKFRS 9. At each reporting date, the Group
measures a loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount
equal to the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on that financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit
risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for
that financial asset at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR MG

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e. the
present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life of the
financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due to
an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the entity
expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument
while 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on the following one or more
shared credit risk characteristics:

(i)  past due information

(i) nature of instrument

(iii) nature of collateral

(iv) industry of debtors

2. FEGSHER @

EWMIA #E)

BEEMBHREERFIETEHEER
At B9 #E (B

TR BE1RRY51 8

RAEEEREYEM I AR EHR
EEEEBXNEGs BIRERERE
GRBYIR(E) °

MEMBEMS  EEBEARBESVRE
NEERNGNHEERERABRERPWE
MIRERE Z HETRAIRE

FRAMEERRENRERIAER
FHNEENFRAIEENSHMER
WIREE R M12E B AEEREIE
ERANRSBARI2ZEARNAERE
WEM T RAENEHMERNEDFE
HITRHE ERR -

HEMEEHRREREESE R
TERUT—ExZERLBEERERS
B

() ZEEAER

(i) TENME

(il) EIF@AVTEE

(iv) BFANITE

BRI A PRAT 2021/2022 &% 159



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR M

Year ended 31 March 2022 #2022 3/531H IEFZ

2.

160

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and loss since
initial recognition. The resulting changes in the loss allowance
are recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of
the financial instrument.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that the Group may not receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full if the financial
instrument that meets any of the following criteria.

(i) information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group); or

(i) there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In particular, the following information is
taken into account in the assessment:

e  actual or expected significant adverse changes in external
credit rating of the debtors;

e actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change to the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligations;

e actual or expected significant changes in the operating
results of the debtor;

e significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor; and/or

e significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the debtor, including changes in the
payment status of the debtors in the Group and changes
in the operating results of the debtors.
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2.

162

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.

Low credlit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(i) it has a low risk of default;

(i) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(iii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the debtor to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.

SUN KONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021/2022

FEGFER @

EWMTIA #E)

BEEMBEREERFIRETEZHEER
At BEEYRE (&

i LA AEROM AERRESK
TRRAERBE30ER M T ANEER
% B4 HE SR LSRR B R IRIG N

BEFELRER MBI ANBED
PREASGEHAR FEEBRREM
TR EEARS SRR ILF AR
s

EEREE R

WEENTER MEMTANEERRE
EREERRE

() HEHRRRE

(i) BMRANEEREBKTAIEFE
RHEEE) > MR R B S5 EF5 A\ ZEAY
HEMNRERERENES -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR MG

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Low credit risk (Continued)

As detailed in Note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements, bank balances and cash are determined to have
low credit risk.

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach
in calculating ECL. The Group recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.

164

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events

that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash

flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a

financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data about

the following events:

(a)

(b)

(0)

(d)

(e)

()

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower.

a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event.
the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the

lender(s) would not otherwise consider.

it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep
discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR MG

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group expects no significant recovery from the
amount written off. However, financial assets that are written
off could still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due, taking into
account legal advice if appropriate. Any subsequent recovery
is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
net of bank overdrafts.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

Nature of goods or services

The nature of the goods or services provided by the Group is
sales of diesel oil, steam coal and related products in Hong
Kong.
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166

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods or
services promised in a contract with a customer and identify
as a performance obligation each promise to transfer to the
customer either:

(@) agood or service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same and that have the same pattern of transfer to
the customer.

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct if
both of the following criteria are met:

(@) the customer can benefit from the good or service either
on its own or together with other resources that are
readily available to the customer (i.e. the good or service
is capable of being distinct); and

(b) the Group's promise to transfer the good or service to the
customer is separately identifiable from other promises
in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer the good or
service is distinct within the context of the contract).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR MG

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good or
service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred
when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over time and,
therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and recognises
revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met:

(@) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

(b) the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example, work in progress) that the customer controls
as the asset is created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the promised asset. In
determining when the transfer of control occurs, the Group
considers the concept of control and such indicators as
legal title, physical possession, right to payment, significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, and customer
acceptance.
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2.

168

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

Sales of diesel oil, steam coal and related products are
recognised at a point in time at which the customer obtains the
control of the promised asset, which generally coincides with
the time when the goods are delivered to customers and the
title is passed.

Ancillary transportation service income is recognised over time
when services are rendered.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured at
amortised cost that are not credited-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the
assets while it is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) in case of credit-
impaired financial assets.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements is presented in the currency of HK$, which is also
the functional currency of the Company, and rounded to the
nearest thousands unless otherwise indicated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR MG

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to determine
whether there is any indication that property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets and the Company’s
investments in subsidiaries may be impaired or impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may be reduced.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated, based on the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the smallest group
of assets that generates cash flows independently (i.e. cash-
generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
periods. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as income in
profit or loss immediately.
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2.

170

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-term
leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments associated
with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a
lease contract as a lease separately. The Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a
separate component are considered to be part of the total
consideration that is allocated to the separately identified
components of the contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR MG

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability
at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
COmprises:

(@) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received;

(c) any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of the
lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful
lives of the right-of-use asset for 2 years.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date of the contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR M

Year ended 31 March 2022 & Z202243/531H IFFZ

2.

172

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)

The lease payments included in the measurement of the lease

liability comprise the following payments for the right to use

the underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid at

the commencement date:

(a)

(b)

(@)

(d)

(e)

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate;

amounts expected to be payable under residual value
guarantees;

exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate

implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily determinable, the

incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing the

carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability and by

reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments

made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR MG

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount rate
when there are changes to the lease payments arising from a
change in the lease term or the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option.

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original discount
rate when there is a change in the residual value guarantee,
the in-substance fixed lease payments or the future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or a rate (other
than floating interest rate). In case of a change in future lease
payments resulting from a change in floating interest rates, the
Group remeasures the lease liability using a revised discount
rate.

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of
the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to
zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the
lease liability, the Group recognises any remaining amount of
the remeasurement in profit or loss.

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease if:

(@) the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

(b) the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR M

Year ended 31 March 2022 & Z202243/531H IFFZ

2.

174

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)

When a lease modification is not accounted for as a separate

lease, at the effective date of the lease modification,

(a)

(b)

(0)

(d)

(e)

the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract on the basis of relative stand-alone price as
described above.

the Group determines the lease term of the modified
contract.

the Group remeasures the lease liability by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate
over the revised lease term.

for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the
lease, the Group accounts for the remeasurement of the
lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full termination
of the lease and recognising any gain or loss relating to
the partial or full termination of the lease in profit or loss.

for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts

for the remeasurement of the lease liability by making a
corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR MG

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grants will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When a
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the years necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where a
grant relates to an asset, the Group recognised in full as other
income to profit or loss in the year of grant if the amount
is immaterial instead of recognised as a deduction from the
carrying amount of the relevant asset and released to profit or
loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments. The directors of the Group considered that
the effect of the recognised amount to profit or loss over the
expected useful life is immaterial.

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited by
those employees who leave the scheme prior the contributions
are vested fully in those employees. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR M

Year ended 31 March 2022 #2022 3/531H IEFZ

176

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Long service payments

The Group's net obligation in respect of long service payments
under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is the amounts
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for
their services in the current and prior periods. The obligation
is calculated using the projected unit credit method and
discounted to its present value and after deducting the fair
value of any related assets, including those retirement scheme
benefits.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arising from initial recognition of
goodwill, or other asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
is not recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR MG

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. FEGHEK &=

Taxation (Continued)

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investment in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the
Company and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A M BRRME

Year ended 31 March 2022 & Z202243/531H IFFZ

2.

178

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each holding company,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself such
a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to
the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a holding
company of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is

a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR MG

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly to
Group's most senior executive management for the purpose of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group's various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individual material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and
judgements are made by the management in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements. They affect the
application of the Group’s accounting policies, reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and
disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going basis
and are based on experience and relevant factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Where appropriate,
revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
of revision and future periods, in case the revision also affects
future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Depreciation

The Group depreciates property, plant and equipment on the
straight-line basis over the respective estimated useful lives
as set out above, with the depreciation charge commencing
from the date an item of the property, plant and equipment
is available for use. The estimated useful life reflects the
management'’s estimate of the periods that the Group intends
to derive future economic benefits from the use of the Group's
property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR MG

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment (including right-
of-use assets)

The management of the Group determines whether the
Group's property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use
assets) are impaired when an indication of impairment exists.
This requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of the
property, plant and equipment, which is equal to the higher
of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Estimating
the value in use requires the management to make an estimate
of the expected future cash flows from the property, plant
and equipment and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Any
impairment will be charged to profit or loss.

Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance for
trade receivables by using various inputs and assumptions
including but not limited to risk of default. The estimation
involves high degree of uncertainty which is based on the
Group'’s historical information, existing market conditions as
well as forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying amount
of trade receivables. Details of the key assumption and
inputs used in estimating ECL are set out in Note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR M

Year ended 31 March 2022 #2022 3/531H IEFZ

2.

182

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2.

Future changes in HKFRSs

At the date of authorising these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/revised
HKFRSs that are not yet effective for current year, which the

Group has not early adopted.

Amendments to HKAS 16
BHEGHENE16REBTR
Amendments to HKAS 37
BEAEGEREI7RET A
Amendments to HKFRS 3

BB BREERFIRETEA
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
BEMBRESENFEDCE
Amendments to HKAS 1
BEEGENE1REITR
Amendments to HKAS 1
BEAEGFERBIRETER
Amendments to HKAS 8

BHE G ERERET AR
Amendments to HKAS 12

SRS ERFE125E5T 4
HKFRS 17
EAMBREERFE17R
Amendments to HKFRS 17

BBV BREERB17RESTE

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

BBV BREERE1058 K%
ARG ERB285RET A

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 U

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 <

FEGEHBR @
BERMBRSERBRKRED

RILFEFREMBREEEER 895t
MAGEBEMU TR AEFERARENE
AEBTRREZRANTET KBTS
B BREER o

Proceeds before Intended Use ’

B E ARABPTISRIE

Cost of Fulfilling a Contract '

BITEAB A’

Reference to the Conceptual Framework

HEE S AEZRAVR

2018-2020 Cycle

2018F 2020 B’

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current ?

BEN a4 BN ARSI IFRNHA2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies ?

& 5T R BR2

Definition of Accounting Estimates ?

BEHEST 2 ER?

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transactions?

B-RPELZEEKEBZERBIRIERE

Insurance Contracts?

R G

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9 — Comparative
Information 2

BREAEBUBREEAF 7R RE B HRESEAFTHR—LE
BERY

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture ?

REFHHMENBNAE AR ZBZEEHET TE’

FR20224F 15 1 H 30 Z 18 BI6 FYF I RE BT 54
FR20234F 15 1 H 30 Z 18 46 FY 4 FE RGBT £ 54

& The effective date to be determined
The directors do not anticipate that the adoption of the new/

revised HKFRSs in future periods will have any material impact
on the results of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR MG

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

3. SEGMENT INFORMATION 3. AHEN

The directors of the Company have determined that the Group
has only one operating and reportable segment throughout
the year, as the Group manages its business as a whole which
is the sales of diesel oil, steam coal and related products in
Hong Kong. The sales of diesel oil and related products services
include sourcing diesel oil and diesel exhaust fluid through oil
trading companies, dispatching the fleet of diesel tank wagons
of the Group to collect diesel oil from oil depots designated
by the suppliers of the Group, and eventually delivering diesel
oil to destinations designated by the customers of the Group.
The sales of steam coal service include sourcing steam coal
and arrange the delivery service. The executive directors of
the Company, being the chief operating decision-makers of
the Group, regularly review the internal financial reports on
the same basis for the purposes of allocating resources and
assessing performance of the Group.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal place of the Group’s operation is in Hong Kong. All of
the Group's revenue from external customers during the year
is derived from Hong Kong and all of the Group's assets and
liabilities are located in Hong Kong.
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FABDEFEEE AEENRREFEE
B—EKE R 2808  $HE & m KA
HERRBELREEBLHE S QB HE
MR BRARE IKREAEBEBI S MATE
BEEBAEAERREEHIEERRER
B TRERFRBEZERERRR
EER BRI - SHES NIRRT B IEHRE
BHERZHERRT - A ATNAITE
= AIAEENTIEZEERRE) T
DEERRTEEEBXRIEMSVER
BEEZRNEHHRS -

KABR/—RKREERRAT RAEEB
TEEEMBAUNEB - AEENRREF
ERBEISFEFNRZEEREEHE B
FEENEEEKRBEREUREE
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Year ended 31 March 2022 #2022 3/531H IEFZ

3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 3. DEEN @)
Information about major customers ERXERZRHNEN
Revenue from customers individually contributing 10% or BRAEE2022F K2021E3831HLEEE
more of the total revenue of the Group during the years ended BRI AEBLWRI0%HU LHNE S
31 March 2022 and 2021 are as follows: SEIBUE -
HK$'000
FAET
Year ended 31 March 2022 HE2022F3831HILEEE
Customer A ZEA 64,246
Customer B ZFB Note H&E
Customer C ZHAC 32,475
Customer D ZFAD 50,717
147,438
HK$'000
FET
Year ended 31 March 2021 HHE2021F3A31HILLEE
Customer A ZERA 57,158
Customer B EFB 47,360
Customer C ZHAC 31,311
Customer D EFAD 28,162
163,991
Note: iz :
The customer contributed less than 10% of the revenue of the Group for HE2022F3831HIEFE 2B HAEB NG
year ended 31 March 2022. B SR E10% ©
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A MR RME

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

4. REVENUE

Revenue from contracts with
customers within HKFRS 15

Recognised at a point in time
Sales of diesel oil

Sales of diesel exhaust fluid

Recognised over time

Ancillary transportation service

All the revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS

15 arises in Hong Kong.

4. W=
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
EAMBEIREERFE 15578
BEANERSHWE
A E B B R Bh s
LeomiE A 230,435 239,371
BERRAHERE 480 460
230,915 239,831
P BF R R B2
FoE 5 5 AR 7% - 281
230,915 240,112

BEEMBREZERF1SRBEANNFAE
BEREHNWmINEBESL
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A M BRRME

Year ended 31 March 2022 #2022 3/531H IEFZ

5. OTHER INCOME

Gains on disposal of property,

plant and equipment
Government grants (Note)

Interest income arising from a

life insurance policy

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group has received BieE -

5. HftigA

HEWE BB K&z Wat

BB (Hfat)
ASREEEENFBUA

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
281 =

- 1,247

44 _

325 1,247

funding support from the Employment Support Scheme under

the Anti-epidemic Fund, set up by the Hong Kong Government.

The purpose of the funding is to provide financial support to

enterprises to retain their employees who would otherwise be

made redundant. Under the terms of the grant, the Group is

required not to make redundancies during the subsidy period and

to spend all the funding on paying wages to the employees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR MG

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

6. LOSS BEFORE TAX 6. BRMRAEIESIE

This is stated after charging: e TS &S H0BR -
2022 2021
20225 20214
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FAET
Finance costs =%
Interest on bank overdrafts RITELFE 190 172
Interest on bank borrowings IRITRERF S 67 =
Interest on lease liabilities HESENE 24 32
281 204
Staff costs BT
(including directors’ emoluments) (BIEEEMS)
Salaries and other benefits e REMER 7,333 7,009
Contributions to defined contribution REMRETE 2 R
schemes 287 296
7,620 7,305
Other items HhEH
Auditor’s remuneration 12 BB B 480 480
Cost of inventories (Note) FERK (Hat) 217,743 231,017
Depreciation of property, ME- -BEREZEINE .
plant and equipment:
Cost of sales EI=N=I DN 2,460 2,422
Administrative and other THREMK SRS
operating expenses 208 296
Depreciation of right-of-use assets: EREESERE
Administrative and other THREME SR
operating expenses 391 396
Fair value loss on financial assets at FVPL BEBBHIZAFEHEN
TREEATEEE 286 =
Impairment loss on trade receivables, net & 53 F& U =R IE Y5 {E K518
JRRE 896 1,995
Impairment loss on other receivables H AN e IR IE YR (B E5 18 128 -

Note: Cost of sales included approximately HK$6,283,000 for the year

ended 31 March 2022 (2021: approximately HK$6,960,000), which
relating to the aggregate amount of certain staff costs, depreciation,

license fee, repair and maintenance and transportation expenses.

> 4

et -

EZE2022F3A31HILEE  SHEMAEE
RETEIMA ITE T E - #ERR
&MU E R 4835 RARY496,283,00078
76 (20214 : £96,960,000787T) ©
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Year ended 31 March 2022 #2022 3/531H IEFZ

188

TAXATION

For the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group’s
entities established in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI") are exempted from income tax.

For the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, Hong Kong
Profits Tax has not been provided as the Group incurred a loss

for taxation purposes.

Current tax

Hong Kong Profits Tax
Deferred tax

Reversal or origination of temporary
difference (Note 21)

Income tax credit

BPHATRIE
BEMER

BRIt E AR RIS EE
(mtaz21)

PRSRIE S

SUN KONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021/2022

I

B E2022F K2021FE3831HIEEE > i?
HEMNEMREBEREREDE ((HBR LA
E)) NIINAERSERERCBGERE
ﬁo

B E2022F K%2021E3831HIEEE » H
RAEEENBREEEERIBERE L
HEHEE BRI o

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
- (719)
- (719)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR RME

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

7. TAXATION (Continued)

Reconciliation of income tax credit

Loss before tax

Income tax at applicable tax rate
Non-deductible expenses

Tax exempt revenue
Unrecognised tax losses

Unrecognised temporary difference

Income tax credit for the year

7.

PRI AR 1R

BBAREKStBRIFTEMR
RNEIHIFRAYR X
iR
ARSI IR B
REERE R L ERR

FAFMERER

R\ &)
FRiSiRIK R AV HER
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$000
FAET FET
(3,134) (8,222)
(517) (1,356)
87 67
- (206)
282 447
148 329
- (719)
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Year ended 31 March 2022 #2022 3/531H IEFZ

8. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND EMPLOYEES’ 8.

190

REMUNERATION

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration

The aggregate amounts of remuneration received and

receivable by the directors and chief executive of the

Company during the years ended 31 March 2022 and

2021 are set out below.

Year ended 31 March 2022

Executive directors
Mr. Law Ming Yik
Mr. Li Isaiah

Independent non-executive
directors

Mr. Fenn David

Mr. Ho Cheung Kong

Mr. Wong Ka Chun Matthew

BiTES
BhERE
g e

BUFHTEE
ERERE

ARIEE
ERARE

EF meTHRABRESHFMH

() EFRRBITHASBHM

B E2022F &20214%3831H 1L
B AABEERESTHRAEEW

K RS BN R 2R S Z 90 T o

B F2022F3531HILF/E
Contributions
to defined
Directors’ Salaries and Discretionary contribution
fees  allowances bonus plans Total
REMR
EElE HEREHR WETEA Bz st
HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$°000
FHET FAET FHET FHET FHET
- 1,012 - 18 1,030
- 650 - 18 668
91 - - 5 96
91 - - 5 9%
91 - - 5 96
273 1,662 - 51 1,986
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR RME

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

8. DIRECTORS'’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration

(Continued)

Year ended 31 March 2021

Executive directors
Mr. Law Ming Yik
Mr. Li Isaiah

Independent non-executive
directors

Mr. Fenn David

Mr. Ho Cheung Kong

Mr. Wong Ka Chun Matthew

BTEZE
BhERE
FREEEE

BUFNITESE
TReLE

AIRILEE
BRARE

8. EF ERITHASRESNHM
(%)
(a) EFRERITHRASNFHM @)
BE2021F3831HIEFE
Contributions
to defined
Directors’  Salariesand  Discretionary  contribution
fees allowances bonus plans Total
REMR
EEE HEkEl BIBTEAL s3Iz M st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000
FAET FAT FAET FAET FET
= 650 - 18 668
- 583 - 18 601
86 - - 4 90
86 = - 4 90
86 - - 90
258 1,233 = 48 1,539

During the year ended 31 March 2022, no emoluments

were paid by the Group to any of these directors as an

inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as a

compensation for loss of office (2021: Nil). There was no

arrangement under which a director waived or agreed

to waive any remuneration for the year ended 31 March

2022 (2021: Nil).

HZE2022F3831HIEEE  KEE

B A A% F EE SRR

%>

EAMAXEBRRPMALREERR
BEREN N IEABEEME (20214
) c B E202253831HLEEE I
BREENEARERETHEFHFINN

ZHE (20214 : #8®) ©

ERAREIRAMRAT 2021/2022 F£3R

191



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A M BRRME

Year ended 31 March 2022 & Z202243/531H IFFZ

8. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES' 8. EE - -RE{THAERESMNEM

REMUNERATION (Continued) (#)

(b) Employees’ remuneration (b)

An analysis of the five highest paid individuals during the
years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021 is as follows:

1 & B9 % BN

B E2022F &20214%3831H 1L
B> EZEeHmMA TN T

Number of individuals

AE
2022 2021
20224 20214
Director ==t 2 2
Non-director JEE=E 3 3
5 5

Details of the remuneration of the above highest paid
non-director individuals are as follows:

it E =i IEE = A By Bl 5F
1B -

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$000 HK$'000
F#ET FAET

Salaries and allowances and R R EYH =
benefits in kind 1,640 1,509

Contributions to defined REMAEE 2 MR

contribution plans 54 54
1,694 1,563
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Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

8. DIRECTORS'’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Employees’ remuneration (Continued)

The number of these non-director individuals whose
emoluments fell within the following emoluments band is
as follows:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,0008 7T

During the year ended 31 March 2022, no remuneration
was paid by the Group to any of these highest paid non-
director individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group, or as a compensation for loss of office
(2021: Nil). There was no arrangement under which any
of these highest paid non-director individuals waived or
has agreed to waive any emoluments for the year ended
31 March 2022 (2021: Nil).

9. DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company for the
years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.

8. EF mRETHABRESNZMN

(%)

(b)

B (2

MEBRUTHEHRENZSIFE
FEATHAZNT :

2022 2021
20224 20214
3 3

BE

yNCS]

HE2022F3831HILEE  AEE
BMEODEANZERESHMIFEES A
TR MM ERAMARER
RIMAEXEBRBNEEHEABET
A1E (20214 | ) -8 E2022F38
BNHIEFE U EEAZE RS H N
FEE AT HRENXRE R RE T AN
AL HE (20214 ) o

9. KRB

2022F 2021383 1HIEFE » &
RS HEIREAKRE ©
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Year ended 31 March 2022 #2022 3/531H IEFZ

10.

194

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the

following data:

Loss
Loss for the purpose of calculating basic
loss

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares, for the purpose of calculating
basic and diluted loss per share

Diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share as
there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding
during years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.

10. SRE1E

A
HESREAS NSRS

iR 8B
SAESRES KRB EGEEN
EERINETEH

SUN KONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021/2022

EREABEDEAUATHEESSE !

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
3,134 7,503

2022 2021
20224 20214
400,000,000 400,000,000

BN EE2022F K20214E3831HIEEE
BEEEESIT RN B E @R SR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR MG

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE
11. SUBSIDIARIES 1. EBAE

Details of the subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period are RIREPR B AR FEHINUWT -

as follows:

Attributable
Place of Date of Particulars of equity interest
incorporation/ incorporation/ paid up capital/ held by the Principal activities/
Name of subsidiary establishment establishment registered capital Company place of operation
AL, SRR, HREE,/ b WNSIEEZ=1: 0] TEEE
i) YNCIEEY Bl 3L 3t 2h Fi3z B R SEMEARFERE FEAh R 1 SEME
Directly held by the Company
FAREERE
Forever Treasure Holdings Limited BVI 14 November 2017  United States 100% Investment holding/
Dollar (“US$")10 Hong Kong
KEERBRAR EBRELEE 20178118148 10%7w (F3Em)) 100% REER /&5
Winner Group Worldwide Limited BVI 8 April 2019 us$10 100% Investment holding/
Hong Kong
Winner Group Worldwide Limited EBREZEHE 2019F4H8H 10%£7T 100% REER /&5
Ever Star Industrial Limited BVI 3 June 2019 us$10 100% Investment holding/
Hong Kong
Ever Star Industrial Limited EBEZEE 201946538 10%7T 100% REER,/BE
Indirectly held by the Company
TABIBERE
Wing Ko Petroleum Chemistry Hong Kong 18 December 2002 HK$10,000 100% Sales of diesel oil and
(China-Hong Kong) Limited related products/
("Wing Ko") Hong Kong
KBEHEL (B8 BRAR ) 2002412818H 10,0007t 100% SHRAARE R
(k=) HHE B
Joyous Treasure Group Limited Hong Kong 10 April 2019 HK$100 100% Inactive
Joyous Treasure Group Limited B 2019F4H10H 10078 7T 100% EER
Wing Ho International Hong Kong 4 June 2019 HK$100 100% Inactive
Development Limited
Wing Ho International Development B 2019F6H4H 100787t 100% EER

Limited

ERAREIRAMRAT 2021/2022 F£3R
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Year ended 31 March 2022 #2022 3/531H IEFZ

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Reconciliation of carrying amount -
year ended 31 March 2021

At the beginning of the reporting period

Additions

Disposal

Depreciation

At 31 March 2021

Reconciliation of carrying amount -
year ended 31 March 2022

At the beginning of the reporting period

Additions

Disposal

Depreciation

At 31 March 2022

At 31 March 2021
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

At 31 March 2022
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

12. Y% BB R=RE

Leasehold Furniture and Office Motor
improvements fixtures equipment vehicles Total
HEEE GRRES WARE RE st
HK$'000 HKS$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
REENEER-HE
2021E3E31E L EE
RERE A 124 48 37 6,234 6,443
hE - - 11 4,086 4,097
e = - - (36) (36)
e (50) (17) (19) (2,632) (2,718)
122021438318 74 31 29 7,652 7,786
IREENHRR- 82202253
B3 LEEE
RIRE A 74 31 29 7,652 7,786
HE - - - 2,703 2,703
HE - - - (39) (39)
e (41) (17) (14) (2,596) (2,668)
#202243831H0 33 14 15 7,720 7,782
1K202153H318
AR 272 193 344 19,708 20,517
REITE (198) (162) (315) (12,056) (12,731)
74 31 29 7,652 7,786
1202238318
A& 272 193 344 20,426 21,235
KEtineE (239) (179) (329) (12,706) (13,453)
33 14 15 7,720 7,782
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Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

13. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

The movements of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
within HKFRS 16 during the years ended 31 March 2022 and

13. EREEERBEEER

REE2022F K20214F38318 IEFE »
ERATHREENFI6HEANERES

2021 are set out below: EnBEEREHFIINTX !
Right-of- Lease
use assets liabilities
ERHEEE HEamE
HK$'000 HK$000
FAET FAET
Reconciliation of carrying amount — IREENHIR-8E202143
year ended 31 March 2021 B31BILEFE
At beginning of the reporting period RERSHAHD 665 (728)
Lease modification HEEET 382 (382)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREESERE (396) -~
Imputed interest expenses on lease HMEaRZHEFNEMZ
liabilities - (32)
Lease payments MEMNR - 425
At end of the reporting period R EHIER 651 (717)
Reconciliation of carrying amount — IREENHIR—8E202243
year ended 31 March 2022 A31HIEFE
At beginning of the reporting period RERSHIHD 651 (717)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREESERNE (391) -~
Imputed interest expenses on lease HMEaBZHEFNEMZ
liabilities - (24)
Lease payments MEMR - 442
At end of the reporting period IR EHIR 260 (299)
At 31 March 2021 1£202143831H
Current portion BNEAZER 7 = (418)
Non-current portion JEBNHERES 7> 651 (299)
651 (717)
At 31 March 2022 122022538318
Current portion BRERER - (299)
Non-current portion JERNHRER 260 -
260 (299)
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Year ended 31 March 2022 #2022 3/531H IEFZ

13.

198

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES
(Continued)

The Group leases office premise for its daily operations with
fixed lease payment term. Lease term is two years, with an
option to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated.

The Group has recognised the following amounts for the year:

Lease payments on lease liabilities

Total cash outflow for leases HEIREe R 48%8

Extension and termination options

The lease contract of office premise contains an extension and
termination option. These options aim to provide flexibility to
the Group in managing the leased asset. The extension option
is normally exercised because there are significant leasehold
improvements while the termination option is normally not
exercised. The Group seldom exercises options that were not
included in the lease liabilities. During the year ended 31
March 2022, total optional lease payment made amounted to
approximately HK$152,000 (2021: Nil).

SUN KONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021/2022

HE&ENEENMR

13. EAEEERBEER @

AEBA/HBRKEUEEREMREAME
EMRGP-HEHRAME  FIEER
BERATA IR EEEA -

FRAEEBREFEELUTIRUA !

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
442 425
442 425
HEHA Re 4R |E EEIE

WMAGFTNHAESHN B S IEIA K& L5
B SRR EALERRHEEE
NEEEEEE A BRI REAHEESR
18 JEHBRIB A W AT > MAR L 3EIE
HERBERWEITE  AEBRDITHERST
AESBREEE - HE202263831
HIEFEE  ENERAENREENS
152,000 7T (20214F : 48) ©
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kR E MR MG

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

13.

14.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES
(Continued)

Restrictions or covenants

The lease imposes a restriction that, unless approval is
obtained from the lessor, the right-of-use asset can only be
used by the Group and the Group is prohibited from selling
or pledging the underlying asset. The Group is also required
to keep the property in a good state of repair and return the
property in its original condition at the end of the lease.

At 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group has no commitment
to lease contracts in relation to leased properties that have not
yet commenced.

At 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group has no commitment
to short-term leases or low-value asset leases.

During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, no lease
contract contains variable lease payment terms.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVPL

FEEHKSE
—TEEEERBREN

Unlisted investment
— key management insurance contracts

13. EREEERBEER @

PR 12X 5255

AR E —IBRS > BIARAE HAH A HLE
ERESEEJRASERER BXEE
AEHE IR FRBEE E - £ BT RRF
RZYERN RIFMEEIRRR » WA HAAS
RERYEMEZERFTAREE

R2022F %202143831H > AA&EFH I i
FtEARE LNEEYEEHEE G4 XK
o

R2022F %202143831H > AA&EFH I i
R EYREEEEREAE-

B E2022F 202163831 HIEFE > #]
BEHEGNHAE N EHEEMRIFR

14. FRBERRATEFAENERHEE

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
1,714 =
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Year ended 31 March 2022 #2022 3/531H IEFZ

14. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVPL (Continued) 14. EBETRATEFENEMEE
#

During the year ended 31 March 2022, Wing Ko, a wholly- HE202283831HIEFE  AREE2E
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a life insurance B 28 A B oK 15 £ — 5 B A B 5 IF A B
policy with an insurance company, an independent third party NEBIE=AREBABMERBITEAL
not related to the Group, on Mr. Li Isaiah, the Chief Executive HEHNTESERELETLASHFRE
Officer and Executive Director of the Company. Under the BoREZFE TmARFRERFEAR
policy, the beneficiary and policy holder is Wing Ko. Wing Ko is K S © K= B4 IR B 57 11,956,000 7T
required to pay an upfront payment of HK$ 1,956,000 for the NiEMR o kB A BEREREDRERHE
policy. Wing Ko may request partial surrender or full surrender R MR > WAR IR (R 2 B AV (R BB (B I EY
of the policy at any time and receive cash back based on the ReERE EFTEERERREAGHNER
value of the policy at the date of withdrawal, which is primarily B RAMEREFERINNEGE2.5%
based on the performance of the underlying investment HREHREF S o

portfolio together with the accumulated guaranteed interest
earned of 2.5% per annum for the first two policy years.

The movement of the key management insurance contracts is FTEEEERBEANEHBER2 U
analysed as follows: T
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$000 HK$000
FAET FAET
At the beginning of the year KA - -
Additions NE 1,956 -
Interest income IS PN 44 -
Fair value changes recognised in RERmPERN AT EES
profit or loss (286) -
At the end of the year RER 1,714 -
The fair value of the key management insurance contracts is FTEEEERBEANAFTELZERSE
determined by reference to the surrender cash value of a life AR AESFBENEFREBER LM
insurance policy at the end of the reporting period together 1RBH BT

with the guaranteed interest as mentioned above.
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Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

15. TRADE RECEIVABLES

16.

Trade receivables B 5 EEIE
From third parties REE=H
Less: Loss allowance T ESIE R

All the trade receivables are expected to be recovered within
one year.

Information about the Group's exposure to credit risks and loss
allowance for trade receivables is included in Note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Deposits T
Prepayments TaftRIE
Other receivables H e U srIE
Less: Loss allowance W ESIE R

15. B 5 EYRIA

Note
Hat

27

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
63,418 53,316
(4,154) (3,258)
59,264 50,058

TRHEAFR A B 2 EUGRRIER I —F Rk E

ERcEREEBENEERRRE S BK
REBEEFNENEN G BRE
fi$5E27

16. HthFEWKRIR

Note
HiaE

27

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET
307 799

399 2,235

51 37

757 3,071
(128) -

629 3,071
BRI AR AT 20212022 i 201
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Year ended 31 March 2022 #2022 3/531H IEFZ

16.

17.

202

OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

All the other receivables are expected to be recovered
within one year, except for the deposits of approximately
HK$179,000 (2021: approximately HK$171,000).

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks and loss
allowance for other receivables is included in Note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND BANK
OVERDRAFTS

Bank balances and cash RITHE RIS

Bank overdrafts RITEZ

As stated in the consolidated statement 4 & IRESRBRFTEH
of cash flows

Bank overdrafts bear interest at prevailing market rate of
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") plus 4% per
annum (2021: 4% per annum). For details of the banking
facilities, please refer to note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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16. EMEWRIA (@)

TEHFTE EMEWRRIERF R —FE AW
B HEE£4179,0008 71 (20214 | &
171,00077T) BRIb o

ERAEREEBNEERR REMEW
NEEBEENESNENGESMBERE
FMi5E27 ©

17. SRITEHFRRREUKRIRITES

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
1,941 2,056
(4,739) (1,270)
(2,798) 786

IRITEZREBBTEERE (EERT
B2 WIRTHIBHENENZELI%
TR (20214 | FF]FKA%) - BRARITR
BENFS ARG a M BHR KM 250



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR MG

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

18. TRADE PAYABLES 18. B 5 ME(IRIA
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$000 HK$000
FAET FAET
Trade payables B S E{IFIA

To third parties FENE=5H 5,332 5,033
At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade RIBERR BREZHRAZINE Z -

payables based on the invoice date, is as follows: FIBREREC DATANE ¢
2022 2021
202245 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 30 days 30K 3,486 5,033
31 to 60 days 31E60K 1,846 -
5,332 5,033
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR M

Year ended 31 March 2022 #2022 3/531H IEFZ

19.

20.

204

OTHER PAYABLES 19. HAthFE(TRRIR
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$000 HK$000
FAET FAET
Accruals and other payables FEST & A M H A & TIE 1,893 1,783
Deposits received BuizE 6 316
Salaries payable FE(I % & 526 595

Payable for purchase of a property, BEME -BEKRKEN

plant and equipment (Note) FE(I IR (HY3t) 1,052 =
3,477 2,694

Note: The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

BANK BORROWINGS

HER

—HB

i
2

Term loan — Secured

The bank borrowings carry variable interest rates 2.5% per
annum below Hong Kong dollar prime rate (“Prime”) (2021:
Nil) and are repayable in various monthly instalments up to 24
October 2029.

The bank borrowings are drawn under banking facility. For the

details of the banking facilities, please refer to note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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20. $RITEM

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
5,719 =

RITEFEENETRESIE(RER
FE ) 2 5% EFHF X E (20214 :
) I ARN2029F 108 24H R B » EAfE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR MG

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

20. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 20. RITERR (@)
Analysis of the amounts due based on scheduled payment RIBE R EPTH N TAT R EH (R
dates set out in the loan agreements (ignoring the effect of any FRIBRERERGERNTE) NWEIHAEEE
repayment on demand clause) is as follows: W -
2022 2021
20225 20214
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Carrying amounts of bank borrowings  FEEZEIRITERMEREE
that are repayable (Note) (B &t)
Within one year —F RN 688 -
More than one year, but not exceeding —F L £ BRBBRE
two years 706 -
More than two years, but not exceeding #BBME  ERBBAE
five years 2,241 -
Over five years HEhF 2,084 -
5,719 -
Less: Amount shown under VRNV A==t =W I N:
current liabilities £XB (5,719) =
Amounts shown under non-current RIERBERIE NFREY
liabilities SXE - =
Note: The bank borrowings contain a repayment on demand clause 5 SRITEREA R ERIERRER LA HORE
and are shown under current liabilities. The amounts due are BEIET HHREBENREER HETEHN
presented based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan TEEERBEZS -
agreements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR M

Year ended 31 March 2022 #2022 3/531H IEFZ

21. DEFERRED TAXATION 21, BERIE
The movement for the year in the Group's deferred tax AEBRIERESENFAESHUWT !

206

liabilities was as follows:

2022 2021

20224 202148

HK$000 HK$'000

FAET FAET

At the beginning of the year KA - 719
Credit to profit or loss (Note 7) st B (HaE7) - (719)
At the end of reporting period R ERR - =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR MG

Year ended 31 March 2022 & Z20224F3/531H IFFZ

21. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 21. RIEFRIE (&)

Recognised deferred tax assets (liabilities) at the end of the REBEHREERINELEREBESE (B8R

reporting period represent the following: 5T

Assets Liabilities
BE aE

2022 2021 2022 2021
20225 20214 20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HKS$'000 HK$ 000
F#ET FAET F#ET FET
Depreciation allowance ELEE - — (900) (872)
Tax losses RIEEs 18 900 872 - =
Deferred tax assets (liabilities) IEERIBE E (B1B) 900 872 (900) (872)
Offsetting I8 (900) (872) 900 872
Net deferred tax liabilities FEIEFR B B S FRE - = - =

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused
tax losses and unrealised provision on impairment loss
on trade receivables of approximately HK$9,881,000
and HK$2,889,000 respectively (2021: approximately
HK$8,002,000 and HK$1,993,000 respectively). Deferred
tax assets has been recognised in respect of unused tax
losses of approximately HK$5,456,000 (2021: approximately
HK$5,285,000). No deferred tax assets have been recognised
in respect of the remaining unused tax losses and unrealised
provision on impairment loss on trade receivables of
approximately HK$4,425,000 and HK$2,889,000 respectively
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax
losses do not expire under current tax legislation.

E’:‘%EiHHEE K%iﬁ@]%ﬁlﬁﬂéﬂé&

,%’\]9,881,000;%71:&2,889,000}%7_1: (2021
£ 9 5I#98,002,0008 75 K 1,993,000
70) c BERMAKR B B IR IBE 1B 475,456,000/
7t (20214E : 495,285,000 70) MESRIELE
MIBEE HRRRREFENFAITE
B MR LD B A 24,425,000 7T K
2,889, ooo%ma’m %@Jﬁﬁ%ﬁlﬁéﬁa&

LL%RIE & 7@#%@ %Hi‘%%@fﬁlﬁ
IR EE o
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kR E MR M

Year ended 31 March 2022 #2022 3/531H IEFZ

22,

23.

208

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
At 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021,
1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022

Issued and fully paid:
Ordlinary shares of HK$0.01 each
At 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021,
1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022

RESERVES

23(a) Share premium

Share premium represents the excess of the net proceeds
from issuance of the Company's shares over its par
value. Under the laws of the Cayman Islands and the
Company'’s Articles of Association, it is distributable to
the Company’s shareholders provided that the Company
is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

23(b) Capital reserve

It represents the amount of the issued and paid-up share
capital of the entities now comprising the Group before
completion of the Group’s reorganisation to rationalise
the group structure for the listing of the Company less
consideration paid to acquire the relevant interests (if any)
upon completion of the reorganisation.
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22. BgA
No. of shares HK$000
RIpEE FET
EE
12 RET180.01 87T By 2258 /%
720204818 ~
2021438318 20214
4B 18 %202243831H 3,000,000,000 30,000
BRITRERE
R ET1E0.018 70 H) Z 78 5%
72202054818
20214E3831H 20214
4818 &2022438318 400,000,000 4,000
23. #fE
23(a) BR1DIE1E
B s Bis A B 21T R 1D I FR 15
FIEFREBEEmERNID  iREE

EBERV R ABEBERRZMA
HAERBNRBEEBBETAE
BN EIHNES AR EER 2K
FTARRBIRER

23(b) B A fE

EXEAEEREFEHREAEENERE
RAEEEREME (EEMEAT LHM
HEBRBEETEEENE) A
NEHETAEBEREHNZERAN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR RME

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

24. OTHER CASH FLOWS INFORMATION

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities

The movements in the Group's liabilities arising from financing

activities are as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2022

Bank borrowings
Lease liabilities

Year ended 31 March 2021
Lease liabilities

HZ2020253831HEEE

SRITfEM
HEAR

BE201E3AMBILEEE
HEaE

24. EthIREREER

METHREENEEHR

rEERBEZFFEENER

Non-cash changes

BT :

FRELH
At 1 April Net Lease Interest At 31 March
2021 cash flow  modification expenses 2022
120215 120225
4B1H REREPH L] FBR% 3A31H
HKS000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS$000 HKS'000
FET FAET FAET FET FAT
- 5,719 - - 5,719
17 (442) - 24 299
717 5,277 - 24 6,018

Non-cash changes
FRes

At 1 April Net Lease Interest At 31 March
2020 cash flow  modification expenses 2021
72020 722021
FAR1E REREFE HEEST FMERX £3A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FHET FAET FET FAET FHET
728 (425) 382 32 717
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A M BRRME

Year ended 31 March 2022 #2022 3/531H IEFZ

25. BANKING FACILITIES

210

25. SRITRAE

2022 2021

20224 20214

Note HK$’000 HK$°000

Kzt F#ET FET

Bank overdrafts RITEX 17 5,000 5,000
Term loans TEEE™ 20 6,000 =
11,000 5,000

At 31 March 2022, the Group had banking facilities of
HK$11,000,000 (2021: HK$5,000,000) granted by a financial
institution in Hong Kong.

The banking facilities are secured by:

(i) A corporate guarantee provided by the Company; and

(i) A personal guarantee provided by an executive director,
Mr. Law Ming Yik.

At 31 March 2022, the Group had undrawn amount under the
banking facility of HK$542,000 (2021: HK$3,730,000).

All of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment
of covenants which are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group was
to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities would
become repayable on demand. In addition, the Group's loan
agreements contain clauses which give the lender the right
at its sole discretion to demand immediate repayment at any
time irrespective of whether the Group has complied with the
covenants and met the scheduled repayment obligations.
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R2022FE3831H AEBHE XSS
TR IER FRIRTTREE 11,000,000 7T
(20214 : 5,000,000 7T) ©

IRTTRE R TS IEFRR

() ARBRMHAEER; &

(i) HRTESERELRERHUNEA
R

7R202283831H  ZEERIBITHET
R RIRENFIE A542,000%8 71 (20214 -
3,730,000 7T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR MG

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

25. BANKING FACILITIES (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants and has made payments according to the schedule
of the loans and does not consider it probable that the banks
will exercise its discretion to demand repayment so long as the
Group continues to meet these requirements. Further details
of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in Note
27 to the consolidated financial statements. As at 31 March
2022, none of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities
had been breached.

. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed elsewhere
in the consolidated financial statements, during the year, the
Group had the following transactions with related parties:

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year were as follows:

Salaries and allowances and benefits
in kind

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme

Further details of the directors’ remuneration are set out in
Note 8(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

> 4

#r SRR R BYA m

FRE R IRETE 2

25. RITREE (@)

FEREEREREBTRSHEENE
o wEREMEERMR BB ARE
AEFERTEZEER RITAKRARE
TENBEERER FAEBRBHESA
BREENE—PHBHNGEHHERE
fi5E27 - 7020223831 H > B EREE
ERMNEZEEOREER

Bk 5 32 5
BRRGEEVHBRREMMASREZRS
SERSN RER AEBERBASET
5325

FTEEEANSRIFM

RERN EFREMEZEEMSIFM
LI

2022 2021
20225 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
3,145 2,586

89 89

3,234 2,675

EEHFWNNE—TFBHANETMHR
RMIEES(a) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR M

Year ended 31 March 2022 & Z202243/531H IFFZ

27.

212

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise of trade
and other receivables, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, bank overdrafts and bank borrowings. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise and maintain
finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial instruments such as trade receivables and trade
payables, which arise directly from its business activities.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
management generally adopts conservative strategies on its
risk management and limits the Group’s exposure to these
risks to a minimum level as follows:

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank overdraft and bank
borrowings with floating interest rate. The Group’s policy
to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed and variable
rate debt. The management of the Group will review the
proportion of borrowings in fixed and floating and ensure they
are within reasonable range.

The Group has not entered into any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest risks and the Group's interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR
and Prime arising from the Group’s bank overdraft and bank
borrowings respectively.

At 31 March 2022, it is estimated that an increase/decrease of

1% in interest rates would increase/decrease the Group’s loss
before tax by approximately HK$105,000 (2021: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR MG

Year ended 31 March 2022 & Z20224F3/531H IFFZ

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 27. BABEMEIEEERKE &)

POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to the exposure
to interest rate risk for non-derivative financial instruments in
existence at that date. The 1% increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the end of the next annual
reporting period.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position, which is net of
loss allowances, represents the Group's exposure to credit risk
without taking into account the value of any collateral held or
other credit enhancements.

Trade receivables

Management of the Group has a credit limit policy in place and
exposures to credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis. In
order to minimise credit risk, management of the Group has
established credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure appropriate actions are taken to recover
overdue debts.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. The default
risk of the industry in which customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. Credit quality of a
customer is assessed based on background search assessment
and individual credit limit which is mainly based on the Group's
own trading records.

FRER @)

LHBRESIRTDERRMNZEEHEINEK
SHREETCEBNZAPFENIF
MTEESBMT AN XRERKOMETE -
T%MILRAXREEENHBEE TN —EFE
HREHAR AN E S 0] SR ET M

(A

RGP BN R REBNEME EREE
(EHBRERER) AXRETEENEER
B WX ARE BAT R E AR @S (S

EigENEE.

FEEEEERAEERBER W&
ERAZNEERR BEEERRKRE
ERB ~&EBREEECHEGERE

EEERAKEMERER  BFFXNES

T ElEAREE

FEEAZEERRZEETERRR
}EZTEE'J%IK%T/ B - ZRAIREENITEZ
BURARBTEEEERE BREEEM-
ERPNERERRES RBAENENE
ANERBEEETHG ZFEEEENE
EEBINRFmakke
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A M BRRME

Year ended 31 March 2022 #2022 3/531H IEFZ

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The credit period granted to customers was ranging from 0 to
120 days. The ageing of gross trade receivables by invoice date

is as follows:

Within 30 days 30KA

31 to 60 days 31E60X
61 to 90 days 61F90K
91 to 365 days 91E 365K
More than one year Bie—F

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had a
concentration of credit risk as 45% (2021: 29%) and 87%
(2021: 84%) of the total trade receivables were made up by
the Group's largest outstanding balance and the five largest
outstanding balances respectively.
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27. WHREBEEEBRREEK @

EERRE (&)
EBSEWKIE (&)
RFIERZEEHRB/NFOEI20K - %3

SHHZ25HE 5 B URIE BRI ERES
LI

2022 2021
20225 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
10,299 18,647
5,829 7,404
7,581 9,352
37,470 15,503
2,239 2,410
63,418 53,316

RIEHR > BN E ZEBGRIBAREE RN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR MG

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 27. B EMREIEEHEREE @)

POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group’s customer base consists of a wide range of
customers and the trade receivables are categorised by
common risk characteristics that are representative of the
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance with
the contractual terms. The Group applies a simplified approach
in calculating ECL for trade receivables and recognises a loss
allowance, if any, based on lifetime ECL at each reporting
date and has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors to reflect differences between economic conditions
during the period over which the historical data has been
collected, current conditions and the Group’s estimate on
future economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.

There was no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made during the years ended 31
March 2022 and 2021.

FERRE #)

ESRYHE ()

AEENEFEHEZNZERAN B5
BURIER AR ARG RO 8 MZES
BRRBERBREBENIEMNE S
IERBE] - A EBE BB EH EZAEE
ZERWHRENRRAEEBR  RESKRS
BEINEF BRI E R RED GRS
A)  LERBEHEBEEEBELR
R EEHERE WA R R FH AR
DU B Wy B2 FEE S 845 HA RS BO A B IR O ~ 3R
L R 7 £ B PR i 5t B9 FE WORR IR TR AR 4 R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 March 2022 #2022 3/531H IEFZ

27.

216

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables from sales of diesel oil

At the end of the reporting period, the Group recognised
an impairment loss of approximately HK$2,421,000 (2021:
approximately HK$1,525,000) on the trade receivables from
sales of diesel oil. The movement in the loss allowance for
trade receivables from sales of diesel oil during the year is
summarised below:

27. WHREBEEEBRREEK @

FERR #&

B S RYHE ()

KE GBI E R E 5 WA

REER AEEMEEEHHEENE
57 P USRI e 50 R (B 5 18 492,421,000 7T

(20214 : £91,525,000787T) ° &NEE KK
BEHEENE ZEREIBMNEGEES
SEFMIT

2022 2021

2022%F 20214

HK$’000 HK$000

FHET FAET

At the beginning of the reporting period 72 %& & 28 47) 1,525 1,263
Increase in allowance on the trade FEEHIHE N E 5 IR

receivables from sales of diesel oil TERY #5512 0 896 262

At the end of the reporting period R EREHAR 2,421 1,525
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR RME

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables from sales of diesel oil (Continued)

As at 31 March 2022

Not past due

Within 30 days overdue
31 - 60 days overdue
61 — 90 days overdue
91 — 365 days overdue

More than one year overdue

122022%F3H31H

FafA
BHAZ0OK A
AHA31ZE60K
#HI61ZE90K
BIHA91ZE 365K
EERBE—F

27. WHREBEEEBRREE @

FERRE (#@)

ESRYHE ()

KE GBI E R E 5 R IE (B

Gross

Expected carrying Loss Credit-
loss rate amount allowance impaired
TAHARSHEE BRERE HEEHE ESEREE

HK$°000 HK$°000

FHET FET
0.7% 34,027 240 No #&
2.1% 13,337 282 No £
4.2% 6,045 256 No #&
7.1% 1,598 113 No #&
17.1% 6,212 1,064 No #&
100% 466 466 Yes B

61,685 2,421
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Year ended 31 March 2022 #2022 3/531H IEFZ

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

218

POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables from sales of diesel oil (Continued)

As at 31 March 2021 122021538318
Not past due 3B HA

Within 30 days overdue A HA30R A

31 - 60 days overdue BHA31ZE60K

61 — 90 days overdue #HA61E90K

91 - 365 days overdue BHA91ZE365K

More than one year overdue  #HEAEBIE—5F

Trade receivables from sales of steam coal

27. WHREBEEEBRREEK @

EEER @)

B S RYHE ()

KE GBI E R E 5 R E (B

Gross
Expected carrying Loss Credit-
loss rate amount  allowance impaired

BHEBEX RERE HEREERE GSEEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000

THT THT
0.5% 38,668 193 No #&
1.5% 2,922 44 No &
3% 2,382 72 No #&
6% 1,854 111 No &
15% 5,473 821 No #&
100% 284 284 Yes B

51,583 1,525

HKE B IR E B E 5 IR

The management assesses that the life-time ECL for the BIEENLARBE —FREE N EH
trade receivables from sales of steam coal amounted to ENEZEURRIET,733,0005% 7T (2021
HK$1,733,000 (2021: HK$1,733,000) which overdue over one 11,733,000 7T) NWZEHATEHE B
year are credit-impaired, thus loss allowance of HK$ 1,733,000 BEAEEERE > Wi20229F £20214F3

was recognised as at 31 March 2022 and 2021.

B31 83 EEEE1,733,0008 7T ©

The Group does not hold any collateral over trade receivables R20228E K%2021%E3831H  AE R E
from sales of diesel oil and sales of steam coal as at 31 March TR BEHEHE R NIEEENEZE

2022 and 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR MG

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 27. B EMREIEEHEREE @)

POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Other receivables

The Group's other receivables include deposits paid and
other receivables in the consolidated statements of financial
position.

The Group considers that other receivables, excluded those
credit-impaired, have low credit risk based on the borrowers'’
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations
in the near term and low risk of default. Impairment on other
receivables is measured on 12-month ECL and reflects the
short maturities of the exposures.

In estimating the ECL and in determining whether there is a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and
whether the financial asset is credit-impaired, the Group has
taken into account the historical actual credit loss experience
and the financial position of the counterparties, past collection
history, current creditworthiness, adjusted for forward-
looking factors that are specific to the counterparties and
general economic conditions of the industry in which the
counterparties operate, in estimating the probability of default
of these financial assets, as well as the loss upon default in
each case.

There was no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made during the years ended 31
March 2022 and 2021.

The management assess that the life-time ECL for the other
receivable amounted of HK$128,000 (2021: Nil) which was
overdue over one year is credit-impaired, thus loss allowance
of HK$128,000 (2021: Nil) was recognised as at 31 March
2022.

> 4

FERRE #)

Bt EgwE

FEBNEMBURRBESEGESFHR
MERANE N T R HEMBRRIE

FEERD ERERATRARETS
NEEREEFTHNENBRAEEZNAR
BIL > HMEWRIE (FBEZEFEER
BEE) NEERBRERIE - HMEKRIEN
BE12ERSRIAEEHEIEE TR
JEBR R O EAERYEIHA B o

REStRMEEHEREREE BV HBES
UREERBETREAEZEMNUREME
ERTBEEERER  AEECZEATE
ERGEEBRERENTZHFOMHR
M BEWRESE - ERERRR WE
LA EBRTZEEMEENEOHE
RENGEERMRZH TR ENAEMNE
HENMRZHFEEMETEN—RE
BARTET T HE

HE2022F K2021FE3831HIEEE » /&
ERAMTEE KRR e o

BIEEFGaiAEE — T E MBS
75128,00078 7T (20214 © #) H1z&EHETE
HEEBEEBEEEERE  Mi20224F3
B31H R EE#E128,000%8 7T (2021
F8)o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR M

Year ended 31 March 2022 & Z202243/531H IFFZ

27.

220

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Other receivables (Continued)

At the beginning of the reporting period 7 ¥Rk 5 HA4])

Increase in allowance B IE 0
At the end of the reporting period REREHAR
Bank balances and cash

The credit risk on bank balances and cash is limited because
majority of the counterparties are financial institutions with
high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies with good reputation. No loss allowance was
recognised for both years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.

There was no change in the estimation techniques or

significant assumptions made during the years ended 31
March 2022 and 2021.
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27. MEEMERBERBE &)

EERK &
B8 (&)
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
128 =
128 —
RITAEFREE

HRABAIRGHEFHAEEEREN
BREEIREEL TS EETANE
R WEIRTTAR RSN EERRE
R o & E2022F K%2021E3831H LER1E
FEHERDEIEEE

HE2022F K2021FE3831HIEFEE » &
BT E KRR HE i EHf o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR RME

Year ended 31 March 2022 & Z20224F3/531H IFFZ

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of banking
facilities.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of bank balances and cash as well as
adequate banking facilities to meet its operation needs at any
time.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
at the end of the reporting period based on contractual
undiscounted payments is summarised below:

As at 31 March 2022 72202253H31H
Trade payables B 5 (I =IE
Other payables HAFE R RIE
Bank overdrafts RITES

Bank borrowings (Note) IR1TER (BaE)
Lease liabilities HESE

As at 31 March 2021 12202138318
Trade payables B ZERIE
Other payables HAERIE
Bank overdrafts RITHES

Lease liabilities ME&E

> 4

27. BEEMEREBERBE &)

MENE = B

$$l%?‘ﬁkﬂﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ’ﬁi§f£8@
FEM BRI 2 R T

FEBNBRREETEREERTREADR
BUREIE £ B K U RER T EIRTT
e hIREHEEURTENRITRRE U
BERmEHEERZ

EREGHNRMRAR ZEBRREHAR
WERM e RERBERESANT -

On demand
or less than 1to
1 year 2 years Total
BMERE
ER— —EmE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FAET
5,332 - 5,332
2,951 - 2,951
4,739 - 4,739
5,719 - 5,719
304 - 304
19,045 - 19,045
5,033 - 5,033
2,694 - 2,694
1,270 - 1,270
442 304 746
9,439 304 9,743
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR M

Year ended 31 March 2022 #2022 3/531H IEFZ

27.

28.

222

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Note:

The amount repayable under certain bank loan agreements that include a
clause that gives the bank a right to call the loan at any time is classified
under the category of “on demand or less than 1 year”. However, the
management does not expect that the bank would exercise such right to
demand the repayment and thus these borrowings, which included the
related interest, would be repaid according to the below schedule as set
out in the loan agreements as follows:

27. WHREBEEEBRREEK @

MisE

RBE TRITEN A (SR T RITHERFIRE]
EMER)  REENSEDES HRERIE
R—E1 585 AT EEERBRITAETER
RAZSREEMER) > I > ZF AR (BEREF
B) RRBEETIBEPT SR L TR R T UEE

On demand
or less than 1to 2to Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
FERDR
BR—F —EME MEASE AEE et
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
As at 31 March 2022 122022538318
Bank borrowings SRITER 836 836 2,509 2,161 6,342
As at 31 March 2021 522021438318
Bank borrowings RITER - - - -

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The following presents the assets and liabilities measured
at fair value or required to disclose their fair value in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis across
the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13
“Fair Value Measurement” with the fair value measurement
categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the entire measurement. The levels of inputs
are defined as follows:

e Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group
can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly;

e Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

SUN KONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021/2022

28. AFEFE

UTHRZREBUFREERH135%
AT EABIEEN=ELRFEER"
URAFEAEATEGEUBERRPE
HREEATENEEN&GR HRAF
B ERBEHERFAEAREEEERN
REBABABBEEHETER DS &
ABIERIRBIEZRNT

s FBIR(BSEFER AEHEFER
FESNEMBERE E B E LR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR RME

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

28. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 28. ATEEE @

(@) Assets and liabilities measured at fair value

Fair value at
31 March

(a) UATFEFENEENMER

Valuation
Fair value techniques and
hierarchy key inputs

i {ER M

K3A3MBEMNATE AFESHR MBAARE

2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TET
Assets measured at fair WUAF(EEH
value BE
Financial assets at FVPL ~ FEiBIEHIZA T
B ENER
BE
— key management —FEEEE
insurance contracts GA=ES
(Note 14) (Htat14) 1,714 -

During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value
measurements, and no transfers into or out of Level 3
fair value measurements, except for the inception of
the unlisted investments — key management insurance
contracts. The fair value changes that are recognised in
profit or loss for unlisted investments — key management
insurance contracts amounting to approximately
HK$286,000 (2021: Nil) relate to the contracts held at the
end of the reporting period. Such losses are included in
administrative and other operating expenses.

> 4

The fair value of the key management

Level 3 insurance contracts is determined

3% by reference to the surrender cash
value, which is primarily based on
the performance of the underlying
investment portfolio together with
the guaranteed minimum interests,
reported by the bank on a regular basis.
TEEEBRREANATES
TRERESEEEE  RERES
BEFEENBITERRSNE
BRBHSNRFEURREN R
BH S

B E2022F K2021FE3831HIEE
EoRRIELrMEERG - FTEEERE
REBEHIN B1R BB 2R A FEET
SzETEEE  RESANEHE
BMAFEFE-RREBRFTER
FaNAFEEEEE4286,000
BT (20214 1 ) st AJE LT E -
EEEERBEEANIEBEmP o tbEE
BIEst AT REMKERSZ -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A M BRRME

Year ended 31 March 2022 #2022 3/531H IEFZ

28. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 28. ATEEE @

(a) Assets and liabilities measured at fair value (a)
(Continued)

The fair value of the payment for life insurance policy
is determined by reference to the surrender cash value
reported by the financial institution on a regular basis.

(b) Assets and liabilities with fair value disclosure, but (b)
not measured at fair value

All other financial assets and liabilities are carried at
amounts not materially different from their fair values as

UATEAENEENER (@)

ASREBEMRNATEZEESR
WBENRSHERFRRCEERE

WRATEETUATEHENE

EMaE

FrEHEmMEREEREBEHUAR
1R2022F 52021 E3831 M AFE

at 31 March 2022 and 2021. WiEEAZEZRNEEESER
29. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 29. BAKIE
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FET

Capital expenditure contracted but not ~ FAUWEEM 2 B KRR EDE

provided for in the consolidated KMEFERNARSMFERE
financial statements in respect of BE 2 EARS

acquisition of property, plant and
equipment
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR MG

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

30. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

31.

The objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and to provide returns for equity owners. The Group manages
its capital structure and makes adjustments, including payment
of dividend to equity owners, call for additional capital from
equity owners or sale of assets to reduce debts. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the
years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB ATMNKRE
Current assets RENEE

Amount due from subsidiaries FE UL I 8 A B 7018
Bank balances R1T4E R

Current liabilities mENAaE

Other payables HAE I

Net current assets MEEERE

NET ASSETS BEZFE

30. B

B

FEEESAEENERARREAERR
BREBEENENRAEGER ABE

[B] #&

cAEBEEEHBEARRBI (FHH

B oafEnEmEE NRKURE @D
BEAEANEWBEINESHHEEELURLD

&%
o35

o REIZE2022F K2021F3831H L

EBERBUREERF 5 E )

31. ZRBFERRR
2022 2021
20224 20214
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat FHET FAETT
11 _* _
38,862 39,231
13 17
38,875 39,248
25 25
38,850 39,223
38,850 39,223
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR M

Year ended 31 March 2022 #2022 3/531H IEFZ

31.

226

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)

Capital and reserves BARRKG#E
Share capital A& 7
Reserves M
TOTAL EQUITY R 4E%E

* Represent amounts less than HK$1,000.

This statement of financial position was approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on and signed on
its behalf by 23 June 2022.

LAW Ming Yik
BHE
Director

EF
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31. ZATHRBRRE (@)

2022 2021

20224 20214

Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Kzt FAET FET
22 4,000 4,000
31(a) 34,850 35,223
38,850 39,223

*

1CFE LB L 1,000 7T °

KRB ARMRN2022F6H23HEESS
HERKEETNE THTNESAKRRE

Zo

LI Isaiah
=S
Director

EF



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR E MR MG

Year ended 31 March 2022 &4 202243531 H IEFE

31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 31. ZRFHBERRER @)
COMPANY (Continued)
31(a) Movement of reserves 31(a) EEEEED

Share Accumulated

premium losses Total
B iEE HitE1E Hast
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAET
(Note 23(a))
(H15%23(a))
At 1 April 2020 1202054818 44,810 (9,293) 35,517
Loss and total comprehensive £EFE 518 5 2 M k5184848
loss for the year — (294) (294)
At 31 March 2021 and 72021538318 &
1 April 2021 20214818 44,810 (9,587) 35,223
Loss and total comprehensive FEE518 % 2 M E51848%8
loss for the year — (373) (373)
At 31 March 2022 142022438318 44,810 (9,960) 34,850
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MEEE

RESULT
2018
20185
HK$'000
FET
Revenue Wz 443,436
Cost of sales 5 E A (420,961)
Gross profit E7 22,475
Profit/(Loss) and total comprehensive  EEEH]/ (518) k2 AW G,/
income(loss) for the year (5548) 48 % 4,882
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
2018
20185
HK$'000
FET
Non-current asset FrRBEE 3,912
Current assets REEE 21,219
Non-current liabilities Framas 1,348
Current liabilities REaE 11,452
Net current assets REEETE 9,767
Net assets BEZE 12,331

The summary above does not from part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

No consolidated financial statement of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2018 have been published.

The financial information for the year ended 31 March 2018 were
extracted from the prospectus of the Company dated 21 December
2018. Such summary was prepared as if the current structure of the
Group had been in existence throughout these financial years and
is presented on the basis as set out in Note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March
HE3AMALEE
2019 2020 2021 2022
2019 2020 2016 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FET FET
474,236 351,113 240,112 230,915
(454,425) (338,464) (237,976) (224,026)
19,811 12,649 2,136 6,889
(179) 1,699 (7,503) (3,134)
EERERE
As at 31 March
138318

2019 2020 2021 2022
20198 20204 20015 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FAET AT FET
5,031 9,378 9,687 9,756
64,731 58,467 55,185 61,834
416 1,033 299 0
8,384 4,151 9,415 19,566
56,347 54,316 45,770 42,268
60,962 62,661 55,158 52,024

J: AREFBUEERGEM B REN—F

o

ti/

AEFW KT ZEE2018F3831HIEFEEZ
EEMBIRE

HE2018F3A31HIEEEZHBERER B
AATIHEAA2018F12H21H 2B ER A
R ED B NAEERTRBNZEM K
FEEBEERE WURESHBIRERMF2R
FHEEZS o






	COVER
	CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)
	CONTENTS
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
	REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	BIOGRAPHIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
	NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	FINANCIAL SUMMARY
	BACK COVER

